
RICK SNYDER 

GOVERNOR 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

LANSING 

October 27, 2017 

Mr. Patrick Gardner, Chairperson 
Newago County Board of Commissioners 
P.O. Box 885 
White Cloud, Michigan 49349 

Dear Mr. Gardner: 

DE€\ 
C. HEIDI GRETHER

DIRECTOR 

The locally approved amendment to the Newago County Solid Waste Management Plan 
(Plan Amendment) received by the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) on 
May 1, 2017, is hereby approved with modification. The required Plan Amendment 
modifications were sent to the Newago County Designated Planning Agency contact, 
Mr. Dale Twing, Newago County Drain Commissioner, on August 30, 2017. The 
approval of the modifications, dated September 27, 2017, was received from you on 
behalf of the Newago County Board of Commissioners. 

Based upon the intent of Newago County (County), the following modifications were 
made to the Plan Amendment: 

Several pages were included as part of the Plan Amendment, however, there were no 
changes made to them. Therefore, to eliminate any confusion, the following statement 
shall be added: "noted: The following pages were included as part of the Plan 
Amendment, however, no changes were made to pages 1-3; 11-2; 111-6; and 111-50." 

Page A 14, FACILITY DESCRIPTION, Incinerator w/Energy Recovery, the facility 
description page appears to have been copied directly from the Wayne County Solid 
Waste Management Plan; therefore, the page number "A 14" identified at the bottom is 
incorrect and shall be deleted from the Plan Amendment. 

On page 111-2, 111.2 IMPORTANT AUTHORIZATIONS, Table 1-A, Current Export Volume 
Authorization of Solid Waste, note that the DEQ Solid Waste Management Planning 
format identifies that Section 111.2 is actually titled "Import Authorization." Further, 
Table 1-A should be titled "Current Import Volume Authorization of Solid Waste." 
However, it appears that the Plan Amendment has changed the column headers to 
show the exportation authorizations for Newago County and not the importation 
authorization. Furthermore, per our discussion, the County did not intend to authorize 
the importation of solid waste into Newago County. Therefore, no changes were 
intended to be made in this regard. Based upon these reasons, this page shall be 
deleted from the Plan Amendment. 

Page 111-4, 111.3 EXPORT AUTHORIZATION, Table 2-A, Current Export Volume 
Authorization of Solid Waste, does not identify Wayne County as an Importing County 

CONSTITUTION HALL• 525 WEST ALLEGAN STREET• P.O. BOX 30473 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-7973 
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Mr. Patrick Gardner 2 October 27, 2017 

that is primarily authorized for exportation from Newago; however, it was the County's 
intention to include Wayne County. Therefore, Wayne County shall be listed as an 
Importing County with 100 percent annual authorized quantity and an authorized 
condition as primary. 

The Plan Amendment also makes the following changes: 

• Updates the annual solid waste disposal quantities needing disposal for capacity 
purposes. 

• Updates the solid waste disposal capacities for each disposal area. 

The DEQ would like to thank Newago County for its efforts in addressing its solid waste 
management issues. If you have any questions, please contact Ms. Christina Miller, 
Solid Waste Planning, Reporting and Surcharge Coordinator, Sustainable Materials 
Management Unit, Solid Waste Section, Waste Management and Radiological 
Protection Division, at 517-614-7426; millerc1@michigan.gov; or DEQ, P.O. Box 30241, 
Lansing, Michigan 48909-77 41. 

cc: Senator Goeff Hansen 
Representative Scott Vansingel 

Sincerely, ;w-~~ 
Jack Schinderle, Director 
Waste Management and 

Radiological Protection Division 
517-284-6551 

Mr. Dale E. Twing, Newago County Drain Commissioner 
Ms. C. Heidi Grether, Director, DEQ 
Mr. Michael McClellan, Environment Deputy Director, DEQ 
Ms. Sarah M. Howes Legislative Affairs, DEQ 
Mr. Fred Sellers, DEQ 
Ms. Rhonda S. Oyer, DEQ 
Mr. Jeff Spencer, DEQ 
Ms. Christina Miller, DEQ\Newago County File 



Board of Commissioners 
P.O. BOX 885 
1087 NEWELL 
WHITE CLOUD, MICHIGAN 49349 
231 /689-7200 

September 27, 2017 

Ms. Christina Miller 
Sustainable Materials Management Unit 
Solid Waste Section 
Office of Waste Management & Radiological Protection 
MDEQ 
PO Box 30241 
Lansing, Ml 48909-7741 

RE: Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan Amendment Modification 

Dear Ms. Miller: 

As a follow up to your letter dated August 30, 2017, the Newaygo county Board of Commissioners 
respectfully requests the DEQ issue its approval of the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 
(Plan) Amendment, and agrees with the DEQ administratively making the modification as discussed 
below. 

The modification recommended by the DEQ involves three different areas of the plan: 

• Page Al4, Facility description, Incinerator w/Energy Recovery should be deleted from the Plan 
Amendment. 

• Pate 111-1, 111.2 Important Authorizations, the County does not intend to authorize the 
importation of solid waste into Newaygo County. Please delete this page from the Plan 
Amendment as well. 

• Page 111-4, 111.3 Export Authorization Wayne County needs to be listed as an importing County 
with 100% Annual Authorized Quantity with the Authorized Conditions of primary. 

I believe the information listed about satisfies the documentation required for your final consideration 
of Newaygo County's proposed amendment. Should you require additional information, please do not 
hesitate to contact Drain Co \ssioner Dale Twing at (231) 689-7016. 

DEPARTMENT OF ErM / ,: ,; .;;.:;.;]i\L QUALITY 



Newaygo County Drain Commissioner 

COMMISSIONER 
Dale E. Twing 

Dear Christina Miller 
Solid Waste Planning, Reporting and Surcharge Coordinator 
Office of Waste Management and Radiological Protection 
Department of Environmental Quality 
Constitution Hall 
4 South 
525 West Allegan 
P.O. Box 30241 
Lansing, Ml 48933 

Dear Christina, 

Friday, April 28, 2017 

This information is for Newaygo County's Solid Waste Management Plan Amendment to . 
allow the export of solid waste to Wayne County. Enclosed are the documents requested, I hope this 

will finalize the process Please let me know if I need anything else. I will be personally handling any 

correspondence here on out as my deputy drain commissioner no longer works here. Thank you for 

a ll of your help with this process and we look forward to wrapping this up as soon as possible. 

Sincerely, 

~~ E~ ~ , 
Dale E. Twing 7 
Drain Commissioner 
Chairman-Newaygo County 
Board of Public Works 

Office Hours: Monday - Friday, 7:00 a.m - 4:00 p.m. 

306 S. NORTH STREET • BOX 885 • WHITE CLOUD, MICHIGAN 49349 • PHONE 231.689.7213 • FAX 231.689.7266 



Notice of Public Hearing 

Solid Waste Management Planning Committee, Newaygo County 

Take Notice that the Solid Waste management Planning Committee, Newaygo County, Michigan, will hold a 

public hearing on the proposed amendment to the county's Solid Waste Plan at 1:30 p.m. on November 14, 

2016 at the Board of Commissioner's Room 1087 E. Newell St. White Cloud, Ml 49349 

The committee has proposed an amendment to allow waste generated in Newaygo County to be exported 

to Wayne County, Pursuant to Part 115 Public Act 451 of 1994. 

By order of the Newaygo County Board of Public Works 



FACILITY DESCRIPTIONS 

Facility Type: Incinerator w/ Energy Recovery 

Facility Name: Greater Detroit Resource Recovery Facility 

County; Wayne Location: Town: il Range: 12 E Section(s): 32 

City or Township: Detroit 

Address: 5700 Russell St Detroit, MI 4821 I Phone: (313) 876-0140 

Map identifying location induded in Attachment Section: [8]Yes ONo 

If facility is an Incinerator or a Transfer Station, list the final disposal site and location for Incinerator ash or Transfer 
Station wastes : Ash landfilled at Carleton Farms Landfill 

181Public OPrivate Owner. Greater Detroit Resource Recovery Authority 

Operating Status ( check) 
181 
D 
181 
D 
D 
D 
D 

open 
closed 
licensed 
unlicensed 
construction permit 
open, but closure 
pending 

Waste Types Received (check all that apply) 
[8] residential 
[8] 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 

commercial 
industrial 
construction & demolition 
contaminated soils 
special wastes • 
other: 

• Explanation of special wastes, including a specific list and/or conditions: 

Site Size: 
Total area of facility property: 
Total area sited for use 
Total area pennitted: 
Operating: 
Not excavated: 

CW"I"ent capacity: 
Estimated lifetime: 
Estimated days open per year: 
Estimated yearly disposal volume: 

(if applicable) 
Annual energy production: 

Landfill gas recovery projects: 
Waste-to-energy incinerators: 

17.5 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
1,043,000 
until2024 
365 
1,040,000 

A 14 

acres 
acres 
acres 
acres 
acres 

~ tons or D yds3 

years 
days 
181 tons or 0yds3 

megawatts 
megawatts 

•.· ... 

' ·· ;. 
'· • .. 
'· 

Return to
Amendment 
Letter

murphys4
Highlight

murphys4
Sticky Note
The facility description page appears to have been copied directly from the Wayne County Solid Waste Management Plan; therefore, the page number "A 14" identified at the bottom is incorrect and shall be deleted from the Plan Amendment.



Selected System 

111.2 Important Authorization 

If a Licensed solid waste disposal area is currently operating within the County, disposal of solid waste generated by the EXPORTING 

COUNTY is authorized by the IMPORTING COUNTY up to the AUTHORIZED QUANTITY according to the CONDITIONS AUTHORIZED in Table 

Table 1-A. 

Table 1-A 

CURRENT EXPORT VOLUME AUTHORIZATION OF SOLID WASTE 

EXPORTING IMPORTING FACILITY AUTHORIZED AUTHORIZED 

COUNTY COUNTY NAME QUANTITY/DAILY QUANTITY/ANNUAL 

Newaygo Oceana N/A 100% 100% 

Newaygo Mason N/A 100% 100% 

Newaygo Osceola N/A 100% 100% 

Newaygo Lake N/A 100% 100% 

Newaygo Wayne N/A 100% 100% 

Additional authorizations and the above information for those authorizations are listed on an attached page. 

Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 

AUTHORIZED 

CONDITIONS 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

111-2

Return to

Amendment

Letter

murphys4
Highlight

murphys4
Sticky Note
Table 1-A should be titled "Current Import Volume Authorization of Solid Waste."  However, it appears that the Plan Amendment has changed the column headers to show the exportation authorizations for Newago County and not the importation authorization. Furthermore, per our discussion, the County did not intend to authorize the importation of solid waste into Newago County. Therefore, no changes were intended to be made in this regard. Based upon these reasons, this page shall be deleted from the Plan Amendment.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Facilities Solid Waste 

Ottawa Coun 

Autumn Hills 

South Kent C 

North Kent C 

Kent County 

Muskegon Co 

White Lake L 

Muskegon Co 

Pierson Cent 

ty Farms Landfill 

Recycling and Disposal Facility 

ounty Landfill 

ounty Transfer Station 

Waste-to-Energy Facility 

unty Solid Waste Facility 

andfill, Inc. 

unty Landfill Authority Transfer Station 

ral Sanitary Landfill 

Estimated Lifetime 

25-30 Years 

30.2 Years 

38 Years 

NA 
NA 
14 Years 

NA 
NA 
4.94 Years 

xport agreements with surrounding counties will ensure that the The import/e 

county's was 

management 

te disposal needs are met, while encouraging the private sector waste 

industries to be competitive. 

Collection- T he county will continue to rely upon the private sector 

Transportato 

the waste ha 

municipalitie 

in- The county will continue to rely upon the private sector to meet 

uling and related solid waste transportation needs of residents, 

sand businesses located within the county. 

Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 1-3 



Overall, the county does not anticipate any major uncertainty assoicated with managing the 

solid waste generated within its borders. All residentail and commerical/industrial solid 

waste needing disposal will be transported to out-of-county disposal areas, except for 

industrial solid waste that does not meet Type II standard, which will be disposed of by each 

ind us try at their own disposal sites. Due to the success of the household and agricultural 

hazardous waste collection and awareness programs, it is not expected that problems 

associated with toxic sludges or contaminiated solid waste will occur. 

Due to the high rate of participation with recycling and composting and the capacity these 

programs have for growth, it is anticipated that the problems associated with increased 

volumes of solid waste will only result from substantial increase in population. Recycling 

and composting programs have already had a substantial impact on reducing the amount of 

solid waste needing disposal, as seen in the figures below. 

TOTAL QUANTITY OF SOLID WASTE GENERATED: 40,918 • Tons Annually 

TOTAL QUANTITY OF SOLID WASTE NEEDING DISPOSAL: 32.132 • Tons Annually 

11.2 Solid Waste Disposal Areas 

Inventory and description of all solid waste disposal areas within the County or to be utilized 

by the County need to meet its disposal needs for the planning period. 

Facility Name County Type of Facility 

Ottawa County Farms Landfill Ottawa County Type II Landfill 

Autumn Hills Recycling & Ottawa County Type II Landfill/ Processing Plant 

Disposal Facility 

South Kent County Landfill Kent County Type II Landfill 

North Kent County Transfer Station Kent County Type A Transfer Station 

Kent County Waste-to-Energy Facility Kent County Waste-to-Energy 

Muskegon County Solid Muskegon County Type II Landfill 

Waste Facility 

White Lake Landfill, Inc. Muskegon County Type II Landfill (Closed) 

Type Ill-Approved Construction Permit 

Muskegon County Landfill Authority Muskegon County Type A Transfer Station 

Transfer Station 

Pierson Central Sanitary Landfill Muskegon County Type II Landfill 

Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 11-2 



SELECTED SYSTEM 

111.3 EXPORT AUTHORIZATION 

If a licensed solid waste disposal area is currently operating within another County, disposal of solid waste generated by the 

EXPORTING COUNTY is authorized up to the AUTHORIZED QUANTITY according to the CONDITIONS AUTHORIZED in Table 2-A if 

authorized for import in the approved Solid Waste Management Plan of the receiving County. 

EXPORTING 

COUNTY 

Newaygo 

Newaygo 

Newaygo 

Newaygo 

Newaygo 

Newaygo 

IMPORTING 

COUNTY 

Ottawa 

Ottawa 

Kent 

Kent 

Muskegon 

Montcalm 

Table 2-A 

CURRENT EXPORT VOLUME AUTHORIZATION OF SOLID WASTE 

FACILITY 

NAME 

Ottawa County Farms landfill 

Autumn Hills Recycling & 

Disposal Facility 

South Kent County Landfill 

Waste-to-Energy 

Muskegon County Solid 

Waste Facility 

Pierson Central Sanitary 

Landfill 

AUTHORIZED 

QUANTITY/ 

DAILY 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

Additional authorizations and the above information for those authorizations are listed on an attached page 

Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 

AUTHORIZED 

QUANTITY/ 

ANNUAL 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

AUTHORIZED 

CONDITIONS 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

Primary 

111-4 

Return to
Amendment
Letter

murphys4
Highlight

murphys4
Sticky Note
Current Export Volume Authorization of Solid Waste, does not identify Wayne County as an Importing County that is primarily authorized for exportation from Newago; however, it was the County's intention to include Wayne County. Therefore, Wayne County shall be listed as an Importing County with 100 percent annual authorized quantity and an authorized condition as primary.



SELECTED SYSTEM 

111.4 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AREAS 

The following identifies the names of existing disposal areas which wil be utilized to provide 

the required capacity and management needs for the solid waste generated within the 

County for the next five years and, if possible, the next ten years. Pages 111-8 through 111-12 

contain descriptions of the solid waste disposal facilities which are located within the County 

and the disposal facilities located outside of the County which will be utilized by the County 

for the planning period. Additional facilities within the County with applicable permits and 

licenses may be utilized as they are cited by this Plan, or amended into this Plan, and 

become available for disposal. If this Plan update is amended to identify additional facilities 

in other counties outside the County, those facilities may only be used if such import is 

authorized in the receiving County's Plan. Facilities outside of Michigan may also be used if 

legally available for such use. 

Type II Landfill: 

Ottawa County Farms Landfill 

South Kent County Landfill 

Muskegon County Solid Waste Facility 

Autumn Hills Recycling & Disposal Facility 

Pierson Central Sanitary Landfill 

Type Ill Landfill: 

White Lake Landfill, Inc. 

Incinerator: 

Waste-to-Energy Incinerator: 

Kent County Waste-to-Energy Facility 

Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 

Type A Transfer Facility: 

North Kent County Transfer Station 

Muskegon County Landfill Authority 

Transfer Station 

Type B Transfer Facility: 

Processing Plant: 

Autumn Hills Recycling & Disposal Facility 

Waste Piles: 

111-6 



SELECTED SYSTEM 

Facility Name 

Ottawa County Farms 

Autumn Hills 

South Kent Landfill 

Kent County Waste-to-En 

Muskegon County Solid 

Waste Facility 

Total 

ergy 

TABLE 111-8 

DISPOSAL CAPACITIES 

Capacity Available 
Life Expectancy 

(tons) 

16,500,000 25-30 

20,750,000 30.2 

7,600,000 38 

625/days Unknown 

849,480 14 

Newaygo County Solid Waste M anagement Plan 

Capacity Per Year 

(tons) 

550,000 

687,086 

200,000 

194,000 

63,891 

1,694,977 

111-50 



July 27, 2016 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 
306 S. NORTH STREET 
P.O. BOX 885 
WHITE CLOUD, Ml 49349 
(231) 689-7225 
FAX: (231) 689-7266 

Ms. Christina Miller 

Sustainable Materials Management Unit 

Solid Waste Section MDEQ 

PO Box 30241 

Lansing, Ml 48909-7741 

Subject: Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan Amendment 

Dear Ms. Miller 

Enclosed is a copy of the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan Amendment. The amendment 

was prepared based on guidance documentation from the DEQ website . 

The amendment seeks to authorize the export of solid waste to Wayne County. An updated copy of the 

export authorization table is enclosed. 

On*' 2016 the Newaygo County Solid Waste Planning committee approved the updated export 

table, commencing the 90 day public comment period. The public hearing was held 1{12'/,2016. The 

public hearing yielded no concerns. The amendment was approved by the SWMPC on /~/;'f,2016 and 

was approved by the Newaygo County Board of Commissioners .¢,,2016. 

Newaygo County received amendment approval from greater than 67% of the municipalities, with_ of 

29 municipality approvals. (copies enclosed). 

Sincerely, 

Dale E. Twing, Chairman 

Newaygo County Board of Public Works 



Minutes 
Solid Waste Management Planning Committe 

July 29, 2016 
3:00P.M. 

Members Present: Harmon, Kalkofen, Kooistra, Miller, Fenstermacher, Trapp, Twing. and Coffey (via phone) 
Board Members Absent: Bender, Stroven, Page. Ross. Hruby. and Scott 
Also Present: Borgman - Staff 

I. Chairman Twing called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. and gave a short synopsis for the 
purpose of the meeting: Nestle-Gerber is attempting to go landfill free, to do so they need to 
haul some of their waste to Wayne County. In Wayne County they have a waste to energy 
incinerator. (Kent County's incinerator is at capacity) In order to legally haul to Wayne 
County we have to amend the Newaygo County Solid Waste management Plan, to allow 
export to Wayne County. 

2. Public Comment: 

3. 

None 

New Business: a. Amendments to Solid Waste Plan 

Members discussed the process as laid out by the DEQ: SWMPC meets/passes amendment, 
90 day public review followed by a public hearing, then the S WMPC recommends the 
amendment to the County Board of Commissioners, with their approval it goes to the local 
municipalities where it requires 67% or approval, and finally to the DEQ. 

Motion by Kooistra, seconded by Fenstermacher to amend table 1 ~A in section iii.2 of the 
Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to include Wayne County as an authorized 
county to export solid waste to. All ayes. Motion carried. 

Members agreed that a letter should be sent to the municipalities explaining the process and 
and giving them a heads up of their role in the process. 

4. Public Comment: 
None 

5. Adjournment: 
Meeting adjourned at 3:20 p.m. 



JASON VANDERSTELT 
NEWAYGO COUNTY CLERK 
COUNTY BUILDING 
P.O. BOX 885 
WHITE CLOUD, Ml 49349-0885 

November 23, 2016 

16-382 

231-689-7235 

Motion by Charles Trapp, second by James Maike, to amend Table 1-A of Section 
111.2 of the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to allow for export of 
solid waste to Wayne County. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry Lethorn, 
James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays - None. 
Motion Carried. 

ATTEST: A CERTIFIED COPY 

BOARD OF COMMISSION MEETING 
NOVEMBER 23, 2016 

J4xsi~ 
NEWAYGO COUNTY CLERK 



BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 
306 S. NORTH STREET 
P.O. BOX 885 
WHITE CLOUD, Ml 49349 
(231) 689-7225 
FAX: (231) 689-7266 

To All Solid Waste Management Committee Members: 

Tuesday, July 19, 2016 

You have been appointed by the Newaygo County Board of Commissioners to serve on the Solid 

Waste Management Planning Committee. Please be advised that the first meeting will be held on 

Thursday, July 28th at 3:00 p.m. at the Drain Office located at 306 S. North Street in White Cloud. If you 

have any questions please do not hesitate to contact our office at 231-689-7213. 

Thank you, 

c .. ~ -o c?~. 

Dale Twing 

Chairman, Board of Public Works 



Dale Twing 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dale - below is what I have. 

First Name Last Name 

adminsec - Deb Berger 

Tuesday, July 19, 2016 11:05 AM 

Dale Twing 
Waste Haulers 

Company Name 

Ken Page - A-Waste 

sent Rocks Trash & Waste Services 

Ben Ross Sam's Disposal 

sent Republic Sevices/Allied Waste 

sent RMS Recycling and Disposal 

~.L• 
Independent Rural Waste 

sent -f R...ns\--<... '{ ~Vlo.(..kv,, Services (:) 

sent Waste Management 

sent Recycling for Newaygo County 
Mark 

Lola Harmon Ramsey Cart-Right Recycling 

Mike's Dumpster Dent 

Deb Berger, Administrative Secretary/Office Manager 
County of Newoygo 

Address 1 

9673 Colonial Ave 

PO Box 134 

6107 E 6 Mile Rd 

21545 W. Cannonsville Rd. 

4345 S. Wolf Lake Rd. 

4579 N Park St 

1900 Sullivan Dr 

817 S. Stewart Ave. 

P.O. Box 883 
White Cloud, /vii -!93.:.19 
Telephone: (231) 689-723--l 
Fox: (2.31) 689-nos 
adminsec@co.newaygo.mi.us 

I 4 ,vdsJJ kveva.Jl 
L~.'bS¼ Se_ V V ice.S 

This message, including any attachments, contains conl 
contains information which is private and legally prated 
immediately by reply e-mail and destroy all copies. You 
contents of this transmission, or the taking of any actio 

keed ~,-+y 

d31-83J-~990 

V 

City State 

Grant Ml 

White Cloud Ml 

White Cloud Ml 

Pierson Ml 

Fruitport Ml 

Reed City Ml 

Harrison Ml 

Fremont Ml 

ual and purpose. It 
e contact the sender 
bution or use of the 

Zip 

49327 

49349 

49349 

49339 

49415 

49677 

48625 

49412 



Request for consideration - Finance Committee - County of Newaygo 

A lgen d I a tern N 09b3 o: M t· o 10n: - -16 149 1 
ORIGINATOR: 

Dale Twing, 
BUDGETED NON-BUDGETED PARTIALLY BUDGETED Drain Commissioner - - -

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: REQUEST DATE: REQUESTER SIGNATURE: 

Board of Public Works 05/11/16 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST (GENERAL DESCRIPTION, FINANCING, OTHER OPERATIONAL, IMPACT, POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVES): 

At the April 18, 2016 Board of Public Works (BPW) Meeting individuals were selected to serve on the 14 
member Solid Waste Management Planning Committee. The BPW is recommending to the Board of 
Commissioners that the following individuals be appointed: 

Background #of Reps 
Names 

ReauJred 
Solid Waste Industry 0 ~.oug Harmon, Cart-Right Recycling 

Ken Page, A-Waste 
Ben Ross, Sam's Disposal 
Independent Rural Waste Services 

Environmental Group 2 'fEJale Twing, Drain Commissioner 
IXWarren Bender, Books Lake Board 

Countv Government 1 \/Chuck Trapp, Commissioner 
Citv Government 1 Laura Kalkofen, White Cloud Citv Manager 
Township Government 1 Roman Miller Sherman Township Supervisor 
Ree:ional Plannine: 1 /Ryan Coffey, MSU Extension Office 
Industrial Waste Generator 1 John Hruby, Nestle 
General Public 3 ~tan Stroven, Board of Public Works 

~Rich Kooistra, Board of Public Works 
[Chet Scott, Board of Public Works 

The following motion has been recommended to the Finance Committee by the Physical & Economic Development Committee. 

To affirm and approve the appointments recommended by the Newaygo County Board of Public 
Works to the Solid Waste Management Planning Committee. 

INFORMATION DATE: FINANCE MEETING APPROVAL: COMMISSION DATE: 

05/11/16 YES NO OTHER 05/25/16 



MEETING NOTICE 

Solid Waste Management Planning 
Committee 

Date: 7/28/16 

Time: 3:00 p.m. 

Place: Drain Office - 306 S. North St. White Cloud, Ml 

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

First meeting for the statutory process to amend 
the Newaygo County Solid Waste Plan 

SIGNED: ,::f:)-~ ~ c-=77 
DATED: 7- /<t- /cb, 



TO: Township Officials/ Clerks of Municipalities 

FROM: Dale E. Twing 
Chairman, Board of Public Works 

RE: Solid Waste Planning-final phase 

MEMO: 

As we've previously mentioned, Nestle-Gerber is attempting to go landfill free, to do so they need to 
haul some of their waste to Wayne County. In Wayne County they have a waste to energy incinerator. 
(Kent County's incinerator is at capacity) In order to legally haul to Wayne County we have to amend 
the Newaygo County Solid Waste management Plan, to allow export to Wayne County. 

As part of the DEQ process we need at least 67% of the local municipalities to formally approve of the 
amendment. We have conducted our required 90 day public review and held a Public Hearing. (At 
which no residents showed up to voice any comments or concerns) 

If your board/council could please pass the following motion (hopefully before the end of2016) it 
would be greatly appreciated and allow us to submit the plan amendment to the DEQ: 

Motion by ___ _ , seconded by _ _ _ to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste 
Management Plan to allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. 

A copy of the minutes showing this motion was passed would also be greatly appreciated. 
Email to dalet(@.co.newaygo.mi.us 
Fax to 231-689-7266 
Mail to :BPW 306 S. North St. White Cloud, MI 49349 

If you have any questions with regard to this matter, please feel free to contact our office. 

**Please note the 689-7225 BPW phone is inactive, please call: 689-7214 
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GRANT TOWNSHIP 
HILLSIDE CEMETERY 

~ase not• 1ha1 1M 1emporary and sea, 
sonal grave ()ea)nlllOns must be ,e­
moved and 1,1rns d1,11npl9d by S&lurdfty, 
October 15. 201e 

Aespeclfully, suhm,urtd, 
~ Berends 
H1l&Jde Cemetery Sexton 

NOTICE OF VACANCY 
The Newaygo County RegioMl Educ:Ati0na1 Service Agency ,s 
seeking epplic111ions for an Assislanl Prevention Coordinator, 
Th~ indivtdual will \N011t under lhe direct supervision of the Ex· 
&eullve O,reclo, of Intervention & Prevanl1on SefVices to e.ssill 
In the coon:tiMllon And knplemen1atlon ol prevention progrl!lmt, 
Cand'idates must be I high school gr!Kluale, preferably vnth llln 
4soaata's degree In 1.uetarial sc;iel'lee, nave Uvee years ot 
rele-,lant de/lCel u.peoence, and possess stro,\g org8Azatt0n1J 
i,nd lime management skils. Thi$ 1s a part-time position. The 
dee.drlne ror appiy1ng is October 17, 2016. Apphcams mus! 
&and a compl6ted aupporl s1atf applic&l lon (ev(lilable in lhe Job 
posting secllori a1 www neresa.org), letter 01 applical lon 11nd 
resume lo Or Lori Tubbergen Clar1t, Superinterident. 4747 W 
'48th Street, Fremortl. "11 49412. NC RES.A. 16 an EOE. 

NEWAYGO COUNTY 
ACCOUNTANT · TREASURER'S OFFICE 

The Newaygo Counly Treasurer is seek,ng an organized, de-
1 .. lkl,rian1ect energetic lndwictuel to fill 1h• pos,t>Qo ol Accou,1· 
1an1 The ,uccesstul cand<latit wiU pertorm complex accounl­
rng tM,ks lnclud1ng developing and f~lemenbng sysle.ms lo, 
;.,0111tyz1ng reip<H'IJn9 a"ld conlrotltng nno. t 1hf0m'a)Ofl relll· 
ed 10 d&hoquem UUM, 1nwistmen1s ano lurd& depaa~ed by 
!lie Cou~. Requires an Associate Degree from an iaccred, 
ited collegeluniverdy, Bachelor's OftQfae la preterred. w11h 
3-5 year& or progresS!vely responsible Recounting experience 
lil1l1z1ng 1m1t1mi.11tHI ,u.'t:Q1mf111g s ys lem• tmd p,up,:ulng tman­
clal report:$. Expe<lenee with governmen1a1 eccounling i& also 
prnlerred Tri,s pot1h()Olf I\JU-ttme with ,uil benefit pac6\age 
The hourty ra111 range 11 $16.31 lo $19, 14 -.Uu may Oblaln an 
apphcallon, a CClp/ of lhe Job d~IOf\, and apply online by 
V1Sit1rig htlpJtwv,,w countyotnewaygo com/08,Hrs.aspx. Posi· 
rionl),051.irtgtaopet' untlriled 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE · PROPOSED 
ORDINANCE CHANGES 

WILCOX TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
Notice iS also hereby given that tile Wlleoll'. Township Plan· 
n lng Comm~1/on wtll hO,d a pub/le hHrlng on TuNday, 
November 1, .2016, •• 7:00 PM, at the W,k:ox Township Hall, 
IOcated a t 1795 N. Evergreen. While ClolJd Michigan. The pt.b· 
lie ls provided the opportumly to review and commanl on 

Proposed Ordhu1nco Changes to tho rollowlng : 
Article 2 Ooflnitlort, • Add definilion, tor "!arm 111n1m1I•" 
•nd .. fence" •nd c.hange deftn,tlon to1 ..,priv11l.e street "', 
ArUcle 3 General Provisions • Chang• to "'AcCHIOry 
Structu rM Ind Buildings "' and .. Anlm•l• In the Town· 
•hip" , 
Artlc lea 5, 15, and 7 • Adding allowanc,, 10, Agriculture tn 
th• Aesldenllal Olstrfctl. 

fQr turtttor information Of a copy of lhe P10po5ed Ordmance 
Changes k>r revJew. please contacl Laurel A. Sytsma, lhe 
Planning CommtSM>o Secretary, at 3272 N Poplar Avenue,, 
White CIOud, ~I 49349 or by phone 81 231 ·689·5396. 

All 1n1erested persons a,e hereby 1nviled to attand Iha pvb· 
ic near,ng and provide comment, expreK concerns °' oller 
•upport, In lteu ot personel appearance, you may StJbmll v,,fll · 
len commenUJ ,ega,dlng concerns o, tupf)0(1, to ltte Township 
Cle~. P. 0 BoK 728, White Cloud Ml, 49349·0728. 

Oclober 12, 2016 
Teres&B HamijlOfl, Cieri( 
Willcox Township Board 

PUBLIC NOTICE • GRANT TOWNSHIP 
fhe Grant Townah~ Plann,ng CommiaM>n will hold a public 
heanng !Of special land use on Thursday, October 27, 2016 at 
7:00 pm. The m&etlng will be held at the Granl Township Hall, 
located at 16 17 E 120th St, Granl M t 49327 The purpose of 
1h• mwung la 10 revtew the apptic:allon made by Justin Cur· 
!is. pa,cel I 23-06~100-0I• localed at 9706 Muon Or lor lhe 
PUfP058 d a landacapmg, pk1wmg and p,operty mainleoance 
and aef\'.ca company 
Below ,s a llal of propo$9<1 changes· 

• fhe bu11{1rtg u.e "M,I be cM.ng~ 1,om « p,ua pl•c-• 10 
Offlce!i for ,ales And 1·at1 

• Tha add11ton 01 a 40 x "8 x 1'4 pole b1un 
• Add111on or 100 • ;$ a bulk 11\MtM,-I drW .are" 
• Ada.1,on ~ • 100,. :?5 ooml)Otting •r•• th•1 11d ,-.nlo1 
·~·~) ~yardso1 ~,.,1,11 

• A,01),tlQn o, • OOfTIPfny 9GV·P~nt o rt\ "IQ llH ol 5 ~ · )5 
• Add tO~ Of• 80 tal internet ICM•t 
• .Addition of ,·o,ag• b,na ro, mulch, 11011• Ma salt fn• 

oroposed aro would b• 25 x li 
• Th• company would re111n lhe comtnl 811:e ~,, 'Nlth Jllft 

changeable leltor area 
• Add1!10n Ion 01 • 27•30 plow ,1ooa1111J ua11 w11h a 6 PfN'illfy 
fence 
•Add- not • 10120~tdbl..~ 1110f11Qtll'•ill~ h0\llt 

.t . 500g•llonand12!tl)gJJon l\lu. 
• .o\ddtlU'I 011 IS0.160 ',la1a a1e lot lflli<Jtil t1e·1u•nv&10Ut 

areas 
llM~•--i..1•oun•~ AIO'llll~Ch-MIIFINl~P!,,oli.,Aa ... ,111 
I 1ft MIIKnl!t~ Kl ~17'J:lJ)•iJt>) w.tflt•Amari!l,.,."",D· n1 Ld• 
ll"IM/1\CI 

lr,,,t1•,t(ll1..t\.M,11J11II~ ,,11, •lil;J•'-'"'°"'Y"''"' ~f>IIV1••i:•MMJW -.,i­
*IIINGN'II fuwl'labp&cwob>'""'IW>9°'Gdll',gti.lolo-e',g- Glacl'f'\IWI· 
I'\~ Tt""""' ( '""' 1tt1(tl()lf,Stf),,JIVl~lf f71 ,_..,.. 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
The City ol Whhe Ctoud Pl11nning Com­
"M6siof1 will conduct a putjlC heanng •I 
their regula,tv scheduled meeting on 
Tuesday. October 25, 2016 al 7 o'ctocil 
in ltle evening and wt11 be condUcied •J 
wt11e Cloud C11y HAIi, 12 N. Chartes 
S1ree1, White Ck>ud, Michrgtln '493'9, 
The purposA of 1h11 pu~ic hearing win 
be to review propo&ed zoning ordl· 
r,ar1ee am!fldment language coneem 
Ing heigh! re6lnc1t005. Propo&ed 1An­
gu1tge is avai&ble lo view at C,ty Ha• 
during no,rnal bul.ineu hOurs. Wnuen 
convnenlS may be sent to the aboYe ad· ...... 

NOTICE OF VACANCY 
The Newaygo COuncy Regional Educe­
,..,~ Se<vlco AQency " ... long lljlj>ljc.A, 
ll()ns br e spect&i educabon 1eactie, aide 
This indlvidullJ will work vnder the i:,1rec;1 
e,upervision Of Iha le.ache, lo aS&i&t In lhi, 
tns1ruction ancs care of students. CaJldl, 
detes. mus! be a h l()h school Qr8duRto, 
prele,ably wllh tome additional 8dua1-
lional skill& and I raining and be phy51c('Ny 
c,p.at;e or part>rming oolies In e .ape,c11~ 
ic prognun. The deadhne k>r applying Is 
Oc1ober 17, 2016. Al)phc.ants must sen<J 
a completed 11Pf'11C815on (aval1eble VI ttle 
job posliT11] &eetion el www.ncr~.0ft1). 
letter ol applicelion and resume lo o , 
Lori Tubberg~ Clark, Superinlendent, 
4747 W. 48th SlrN4, Fremont, M l 49412. 
NC RESA II 1n EOE 

ANIMAL CARETAKER 
WANTED 

Hog la rm has Job opening lor wo,I( In 
hems irt Wal~1lle Duties iocludll care 
ol sows and pgl84S. gerieral dean.ng 100 
recotd keef)if'lQ The ~ requlr-es be­
ing on your IHl wrth aome bending and 
tome 1llt1ng. Hounl •re llppr0X.. 8am-4pm 
8 days a week. Rec.1uired lo WOCk awry 
other Sat 11.nd Sim hut days are MOfler, 
Starting pay Is S 1 O 00/hour 8tt~l1t, lrt­
ctucle pa.Id VlllCllllon and per$00AI dflya, 
double lime lor holtdays. OVft'IJme 0"'8f 
.aotn, melchtng ,etrtement p,ogUlfl\ 
&T'O. bonus'. nuittt and life Insurance 
Visit .....t>site Vllleyvktwpor\.com 10 &ub­
m\1 an applalion online or meil/ slop In 
At Valley View Jlor~ 5701 N. Maple Island 
Ave, Walkerville Ml 49459 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC 
HEARING 

Solid Waste Management 
Planning Committee 

Newaygo County 
Take Notice that ihe Solld W85ie mM-
09""*" Plomlr,g Co'llmt1Be, N"""'f• 
go C0u111y, Mlclllgan. will hold a pulll,c 
heating on lhe propo&ea BJTendmenl 
10 the counly's Sold Waste Plan ftl 
1:30 p,m. on Nowirnl>tt( 14, 2016 a11he 
Board or c omm-s1onef'1 Room 1087 E 
Nt'IW811 SL WhllH Clov(i, M l 49349 

The commillee has proposed an 
amendm&nt 10 allo.w waste generRted 
m Nei;.irygo Coonly 10 be expor18d lo 
Wayne County, Purwanl lo Part 115 
Put,r; l\cl 451 of 199,d 

e., order QI~ 
Newaygo County Bonl'd ot Public Wolk& 

Wednesday. Or:tober 12, 2016 Page IS 

NEWAYGO AREA 
FIRE DISTRICT 

OPEN BOARD POSITION 
The NMIIYQO F'lfe °'5tnct CofTvnal'ICI 
Soard 11; Mi>k1T"9 a,poti;ant IQ fl 11,e 
rernaindef OI u,e term ot the bid 
Membet' J I Larye, expinng June JO. 
2018. Interested ca.ndidalei rnuSI be 1 B 
~ a.rs or age, US citizen, and a resident 
01 1rta '°~rtn! r11, dl91'tl 

lnteresied P8fSOn5 please subm,C 11 ,. 
aume an<J letter of lf'lftnt IO: 
Newaygo Area Fire Olstncc 
177 Coopef1.IJW, Or,ve 
Newaygo, Ml 49337 
Deadline 10 suDmit an epplicailon ,s Fri• 
day October 28, 20 t6 by 3·00 p.m 

Jennile< Baogero 
Secreiary--Tr1M$1.1'9r 
Newaygo Fr• Ot&tncl 

MAINTENANCE MECHANIC 
TECHNICIAN NEEDED 

Uveslock prOduoer localad In W11llo.o.rvl1i1t 
~1 escabl11~ I"! 1996 and ma~hl"IQ 
200,000 ptgs "'1nUAlty 16 SNQng 110 n­
chVldua! to WOt\ Ofl l'l'\lllntenAnCe arw:t re­
pair. Ouh86 woutd ~loae main1enance 
and repair 0, lru<.ius, and Ire.liens, trou­
bleshooting. lnsl~lijr,g. mainlalning, ant! 
repairing barn venlitation control&, bfirn 
feeding 5ygtemsand hog eQutPm6(ll.. T~l8 
would be a full lime po5,1bon Mon.·ffl 
with weekend hours only Ir needed Wa 
will 1'810 the rtgtll person b.Jl IOfflt me­
<ihal'IC81 abifiry will t,,a, needed and r.vm 
ltl(perienca II helpful Pay ti based on 
~btl1I)' and a;glf11tn;.e, 8e1"!41111$ lntlvdit 
overtime over 40hr$, h&anh 1n~r111nr,-e, 
pa.id personal and vacalion tkne. r~lre­
ment plftn !Ind £0rftl-Jl.flOU&I bonuset II 
ll'\lt>re$1ed PIMMt drop ott or ma,I ,.,me 
k> 5701 N Map!• Island Ra, Wllkerv~te 
Ml 49459 o, em8l1 ,ecume '° fifJtldrn!IIO 
vaHeyviewl)O(k..com 

CITY OF WHITE CLOUD 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

Counly of Newaygo 
Please 1alr.e notice lh&.t lhe Cily CounGtl 
ot lhe C1ty Of While Cloud. pur&uMI 10 
and in 8ccordance with Public Act 196 o, 
the Pub!IC AclA lit Michigan ol 1974, aA 
amended, w,ll holcj a publi::: h&&nng on 
Monday, October 17, 2016 al 6:00 pm , 
a1 lh• C11y or Wh 10 Cb.,d otucet... ,n lht 
Cit; 01 Whtie c~ Newaygo Coun1y, 
Michlg&n 
The pubic na,artng wit! be nelo by ine 
City Councn 01 the c,ry ~ White Ckiud 
lo consider e r&quesl by Norlh C91'11ra.l 
Co-op 10 seek APfJ«M\I of an e.pp!.icalion 
for la,c aba1emon1s. within the lnduSlrl!II 
Development Dl&trlct localed al 148-1 E 
Washington St/eet, 146,& E. Washington 
Streel a.nd 24' N Wasttington Cou,1 
Whloe Cloud lndusinal O..triol, Whl .. 
Cloud, Mlchlflon 
A eov1 ot 1,P related inbrmatlOn ol Iha 
requesl Is e.vaij bfe lor public lnspec110n 
Ill the office~ lhO City Cl•t". IOU1fftd •I 
12 N. Ch&rles, White Cloud, Ml 49349, 
Monday lhrough Thuraday, belween 
8:00 a.m. ands 00 p..m. 
Al lhe public nfffing. d lnletesltt<I per· 
50l'IS will be haan:t ano all aspects of lhfl 
requesled lllll: abatement apphc,1i1;on1 
wil be open k>r d15CUS61on 

Lor!l L KalkO!an CMC 
CityMani.gl!N'/Clerk 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ENGLEWRICiHT LAKE IMPROVEMENT BOARD, 

NEWAYGO COUNTY 
TO Al l RECORD OWNERS OF OR PERSONS OF INTEREST IN PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE ENGLEWAIGHT LAKE IMPROVEMENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENI 
DISTRICT· 

TAKE NOTICE 1h111 Iha Englewrighl L.t1ke Improvement 8ot1nJ. Newaygo County, 
MIChlQ&n. will hold a public hearing Of p,ecticabilily al 7 00 p.m. on NOYefflbe, 2, 
2016, at lhe Ensley Township Hall, 7163 E 120th SI . Send l.aJ,.e, Ml 49343, to 
review the teesibil,ty sludy and delenn•ne the pnu::bcabtllty of continuing lhe lalc;e 
lmprovemen1 project iii 1he beau111u1 Ef'lgWWngh1 Lake Improvement 5'*:1a1 ~s&· 
men1 Olslrk:t, Al lhe public hearing, the Board will CMskSer any obfections, rev,sions. 
correction&. amendments, or changes lo lhe plans, or es1,n1e1e ol costs. The h1111wng 
rnay be adjourned from Ume-lo·tima wilhout lurlher notice, 

II the Board e.cc&pts the leasibilily of lhe project following lhe hearing ol praclicabtl~y. 
11 will ne111 hold & pub'ic heanng (A a&H&sment. a.l&O on Novlltfflber 2. 2016, lo review 
lhe propo&&d ~I 8$$0!.&ment roll and haar obJOClions thefelo, and IO dele,mlrl• 
N othcu 10 con ir , uid uH.umo," toll ,,,_ ha. bdWI JJrepared IDr lhe puflXIII• 
of as.ses~ng the cost of ma,ntainmg me &Kasllr,g lake Improvement ptojeci tor Eriole· 
wright lake The heanog may be 8rl)Ourn6CI from llme-l<Hlme w tlhOul furcher noll04J 

TAKE FURTHER PtOTICE tha1 lhe plans Sho¥/ing lhe proposed lake Improvements, 
1ocalions, and 08llrMl9d cosLc;, ttnd tni, proposed sped&J u&e&&rnent roll are aval!, 
able for public aitamination during ordinary business hours bek>re lhe public hearing 
11 lhe Nt~aygo county Otaln Orfio. 308 S Nor It\ St . Whll• Ck>ud Ml 4.934g nd .oi 
lhepubllc hearing al Emley Township Hftll, 7163 E. 120th & , Sand Lake, Ml 493,,13 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that lhe OWNr o r any pe,.on having an In,. ,. •• In 

~ ~~.:~tt;;~~(:;:;.m:.~i1!!~:10=:. w;~: =::!:,:. 
However, appearance and proles1 81 Iha public hearing on the 5')e(:ial HH56menl 
roll are requlr~ In oroe, lo appeal lhe apeclal asseumenl to the Michigan Tax Tri• 
bunal . Any person or local unit of government objectir,g 10 Iha assessmenl roll mu&I 
tppaar &I me hearing& a.,d f1lo htl or f1 r Cbjection 1n Wf1ttt\g wnh 1h• CMbpor,on p1 
the Englew,ighl lake lmprovemenl 8o8rc, by no 1a1er lhan lhe ck>se o4 lhe hearing•: 
or •!ff tY¢rl p••tof'I may lita an •op 11r,11r,u 1r,d pt'otNt fl( lat!er aOd18SMd u, 
Englewrigt,t L&ke lmPfOV8men1 Boa.rd, 306 S North Sl, Whli:e Cloua. Mt 49~, tna 
recerve<:1 by tne Board by no later thltn tne date ol hear,ng, tn when case, personal 
appea111nce at lh• hearing Shall nol be required. The Board w1H ma,ntam a record of 
parties whO appaer 10 protest a1 tM net1,rings. It one Qr bnlh tie11nnos are 1erm1ne1ed 
or adjou,ned tor the day before s party i5 provide<l the 0pp0rtun!1y to be he,srd, R 
party whose appe11ra™=e was recorded shall be considered lo haw, protestl!td Iha 
special assessment In person. 

BY ORDER OF 1"E ENGLEWAIGHT LAKE IMPAO\/EMENl BOAAD 
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1 NEWAYGO COUNTY 

2 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE 

3 PUBLIC HEARING RE PROPOSED AMENDEMENT TO THE SOLID WASTE PLAN 
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8 DATE: Monday, November 14, 2016 

9 TI ME : 1 : 3 0 P . M . 

ORIGINAL 

10 LOCATION: Newaygo County Board of Commissioners Room 

11 

12 

1087 E. Newell Street 

White Cloud, Michigan 

13 REPORTER: Lori J. Cope, CSR-4113, RPR 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

COPE REPORTING SERVICE 
(616) 204-2204 
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Stan Stroven 

Rich Kooistra 

Ryan Coffey 

John Hruby 

Roman Miller 

Dale Twing 

Chet Scott 
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12 Ken Page 

13 Darrell Fenstermacher 
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17 Christopher Wren, County Administrator 
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White Cloud, Michigan 

November 14, 2016 

1:30 P.M. 

*** 
MR. TWING: It's 1:30. I will call the meeting to 

order. If we could introduce so everybody knows who each 

other is. Stan, do you want to start. 

MR. STROVEN: Stan Stroven, member of the Board of 

Public Works from Sherman Township. 

3 

MR. KOOISTRA: Rich Kooistra, Board of Public Works. 

MR. COFFEY: Ryan Coffey. 

MR. HRUBY: John Hruby representing Gerber. 

MR. TWING: Dale Twing, Board of Public Works. 

MR. SCOTT: Chet Scott, Board of Public Works. 

MR. HARMON: Doug Harmon, Board of Public Works. 

MR. PAGE: Ken Page, A-Waste Disposal. 

MR. TWING: Okay. With that, could I have a motion 

to approve the agenda? 

MR. HARMON: So moved. 

MR. SCOTT: Support. 

MR. TWING: Any discussion? 

Here comes another member. Come on up, Roman. I've 

got one more seat for you. 

All those in favor say aye. 

IN UNISON: Aye. 

COPE REPORTING SERVICE 
(616) 204-2204 
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MR. TWING: Opposed? 

All right. We had a meeting on July 28th and we 

have minutes for that. You can take a second to look at them 

if you would like. It basically was to adopt this proposal 

for the public hearing. Take a second to look at it and then 

I would entertain a motion. 

4 

MR. SCOTT: So moved we approve the minutes for July 

28th. 

MR. KOOISTRA: Support. 

MR. TWING: Is there any conditions or corrections 

or questions on that? 

MR. HRUBY: Dale, I don 1 t know if this is the right 

time to ask. I was looking at the table at the end of the 

document you handed out. 

MR. TWING: Yes. 

MR. HRUBY: It has got the exporting counties and 

the importing counties. And the only thing I'm wondering is, 

we don't have to go through the gymnastics, maybe sometime 

down the road, is I know that there is an also incinerator in 

Kent County. 

MR. TWING: Yes. 

MR. HRUBY: Current ly they are full, they are not 

accepting waste, but I think they have a long-term plan to 

perhaps expand that facility. 

MR. TWING: We already have them as a part of it. 

CO PE REPORTING SERVICE 
(61 6) 20 4 - 220 4 
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MR. HRUBY: I don 1 t see them on this list. That was 

the only 

MR. TWING: Yeah. I don't know where that chart 

come from. We did what the DEQ lady told us on the phone to 

do, but they are a part of our plan. 

MR. HRUBY: Okay. All right. 

MR. TWING: That was what we -- one of the things 

that we tried to get around from. 

Is that Fenstermacher, John? 

MR. BORGMAN: Yeah, I believe so. 

We have got like an overall one with Kent, I guess, 

for lack of the terminology because I don't have it in front 

of me. We can do anything back and forth with Kent. 

MR. HRUBY: Oh, okay. 

MR. BORGMAN: And then some of the stuff, like this 

is broken out individual, just for solid waste we couldn't do 

like the digester take stuff there. 

MR. TWING: We ran out of seats. So have a seat. 

We are open and we are discussing. 

MR. PAGE: Is Muskegon County the same? 

MR. BORGMAN: I believe so. It had our neighboring 

counties pretty wide open all of the way around there. 

MR. PAGE: Okay. 

MR. TWING: Any more questions or discussions? If 

not, all of those in favor say aye. 

COPE REPORTING SERVICE 
(616) 204-2204 
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IN UNISON: Aye. 

MR. TWING: Opposed say no. 

All right. I don't know how long we have to keep 

this open. Obviously we all know, I think, why we are here. 

This is a formal adoption of an amendment for Newaygo County 

to be able to export from our businesses or whomever to Wayne 

County, who has a waste-to-energy generator down there. And 

that, like we just discussed in the minutes, we did have an 

agreement or we do have an agreement with Kent County to do it 

at theirs, but they are maxed out, and in the future hopefully 

they won't be so we won't have to go so far, but as of now 

they aren't accepting anything new. 

I don't know the legalities of how long we keep a 

public meeting open. 

MR. WREN: I would merely suggest that you state a 

time that the public meeting started. 

MR. TWING: All r i ght. 

MR. WREN: It has got to be a reasonable amount of 

time. 

MR. TWING: This meeting was opened at 1:30. As of 

now there is nobody here and we will stay open maybe 

another -- how long do you think, Chris? 

MR. WREN: I think the law states a reasonable 

amount of time. 

MR. KOOISTRA: All you have to do is you have got to 

COPE RE PORTING SERVICE 
(616) 204-220 4 
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ask if there is any public comment. If there is no public 

comment, then you can cruis e right along with your 

amendment. 

MR. WREN: As long as it's a reasonable amount of 

time. 

MR. KOOISTRA: That's right. So --

MR. TWING: Let's wait a few more minutes because 

this will only take two minutes to approve and adopt. 

7 

Do we have any -- you guys, you are involved, where 

do you see recycling going from here? Being as we are here, I 

mean, we might as well talk about something. 

MR. PAGE: Considering Kent County's disposal rates 

have gone higher than getting rid of trash at this point for 

us, at the end of the year it is going -- a year ago it was 

free. This past year it has been $10 a ton. At the beginning 

of the year it is going to be $40 a ton. That is more than 

what I pay at the landfill to get rid of garbage. The biggest 

problem with it all is the overall perception of free, and we 

need to get rid of that, because I can't do the service for 

people. I would love to do the service everywhere I pick up 

trash. I would love to be able to provide recycling. But 

when you tell somebody, well, unfortunately that container for 

recycling is going to cost you more than your garbage 

container 

MR. TWING: It's a disincentive. 

COPE REPORTING SERVICE 
(616) 204-2204 
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MR. PAGE: -- they look at it and go well, never 

mind, because nobody has really that big of an urge to recycle 

and save the earth. So, I mean, I wish we could. I wish we 

could. I mean, you have no idea the thought processes I have 

gone through trying to figure out how the heck to develop 

something for the county, for us, that we could actually 

support generating the energy off of our waste and doing it. 

But the money is just astronomical. It's kind of hard to get 

somebody to jump on board and hand me a hundred million 

dollars so I can go do it. It's going to be tough. It's 

going to be tough in the future. I see it getting tougher and 

tougher to get people on board. 

MR. TWING: What are you guys doing up there? 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Well, Osceola County has a 

THE REPORTER: Your name, please? 

MR. TWING: He's a part of the board too. 

THE REPORTER: Your name? 

MR. WREN: I would close the public hearing before 

you did this probably. 

MR. TWING: All right. Let's close the public 

hearing. I see no -- has anybody got anything on the public 

hearing as far as the amendment? If not, we will close the 

public hearing. 

MR. KOOISTRA: Well, you have to make a motion to 

accept the amendment, don't you? 
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MR. WREN: But just the public hearing is closed. 

MR. KOOISTRA: Oh, the comment part? 

MR. WREN: Yes. 

MR. SCOTT: I make a motion. 

MR. TWING: Now I would entertain a motion to adopt 

the amendment as proposed and send it to the county 

commission. 

MR. HARMON: I make that motion. 

MR. PAGE: I will second it. 

9 

MR. TWING: All right. Any discussion? If not, all 

those in favor say aye. 

IN UNISON: Aye. 

MR. TWING: Opposed say no. 

All right. Go ahead. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Osceola County has a recycling 

center, but the items are limited to plastics and cardboard 

and papers and don't -- aren't real inclusive of all waste 

streams. And glass and some of the some of the products 

are getting harder to find an outlet. They are not cost 

effective to dispose of. They run under a volunteer system. 

So, again, on costs of operation, our company has donated the 

waste -- their waste pickup to them and our company has also 

donated our recyclables that we pick up to the facility. Our 

manpower picks them up and delivers them to them, but we use a 

facility that the county and the volunteers got together and 

COPE REPORTING SERVICE 
(616) 204-2204 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

10 

operate and pay for and manage themselves. So it's a real 

low-budget facility. They have a nice facility out of an old 

AT&T garage in Reed City, Michigan. There is a lot of older 

people are volunteers. There is a few young people. We have 

tried to get them to integrate some of the workforce to 

package and bale cardboard and paper from the jail or -- you 

know, the local jail. They have been at different times a 

little more profitable than others. 

Mecosta County and Osceola County run similar 

systems under volunteer programs. But it's a tough one when 

you are a waste hauling company. And I have worked with Kent 

County too on other projects and they used to be free. They 

charge and they are going to charge more. And they just need 

some -- we are looking into grants through the federal 

government. There is energy grants if you can take waste and 

produce it into energy, so we are looking at trying to put 

waste streams of recyclables into energy pellets. It is one 

of the -- it seems like it's the most sensible and it can use 

a variety of waste to go into energy pellets. But the grant 

actually has to be developed, the facility, and all of the 

steps. I mean, it's years away from happening. 

But in conjunction with our landfill and transfer 

station operation in Reed City, Michigan we would like to have 

a participation between Lake County, Newaygo County, Osceola 

County, and Mecosta County because we still need the flow. We 
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need all of the independent waste haulers and even potentially 

a few of the larger waste haulers to bring in the recyclable 

materials to make and have a commitment of so many tons. 

Grand Rapids does it and they don't produce any necessarily 

energy, they just try to make recyclable products back to 

recyclables, which is a low-cost thing. But if we can make a 

product that we can sell for a little bit more like an energy 

pellet, then it has potential. That is kind of what we have 

been working on, but it's a long ways out. 

MR. TWING: Yeah. 

MR. HARMON: Do you have one center or do you have 

several in the county or just one drop-off? 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: We have collection points. Le 

Roy has a collection point. Luther has a collection point. 

We run one in Baldwin. We do a collection point in Baldwin. 

We have done one up by Na-Tah-Ka. 

MR. HARMON: Are these manned then, you have 

somebody there that's 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: In two of the ones, in Na-Tah-Ka 

and Baldwin, we send our crew out with a truck and we use 

large bags that we get given by -- the bags are given to us by 

Yoplait. They are a large waste bag and we hang them on the 

side of a flatbed truck and people put in the milk jugs. They 

sort it. They bring it and sort it. Now, people are a little 

bit pissed because -- excuse my language -- because they used 
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to bring -- they used to bring their waste and throw it in a 

30- or 40-yard dumpster and Waste Management used to haul the 

recyclable load. Well, we followed the recyclable load. It 

got billed as a recyclable load, it got charged to them, the 

township was paying a fee for it. Well, that recyclable load 

went straight to the landfill, went and zipped in and dumped 

out on the ground and got smushed in. Well, thanks, you paid 

for recyclables, but somebody threw a banana peel in there and 

they didn't like it, so they rejected the load. And they were 

doing that. 

MR. PAGE: Which can happen every load. Every load 

could go to the landfill. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Yeah. They don't have a 

recyclable center either. They weren't hauling it to Grand 

Rapids to the recycle center. They weren't bringing it to 

our -- the local recycling center. So many years ago -- we 

have been working with Osceola County and Lake County really 

strongly for the last few years and we have been collecting a 

lot of recyclables, papers from grocery stores. You know, 

grocery stores and banks have participated the most because 

they have paper and they have cardboard, and those products 

are the most profitable ones, even though they are not super 

profitable. We are lucky because we have -- up in Manistee we 

have the paper mills, the PCA, and they use a recharge of 

recyclable paper there that they ship from all over the United 
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States back there to put in with paper as it is manufactured. 

So there is a lot of venues, but it takes a lot of effort and 

it's really a huge, nonpaying job, so it isn't moving along 

super fast because it's not a -- but --

MR. TWING: Do you have a board regionally that you 

are going to want some people like from Newaygo County, from 

us or whatever, to come up there? 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Well, I am happy that I have 

been asked to help with solid waste here in this community, in 

Newaygo County. I sit on the Lake County and I'm the Mecosta 

County with the Solid Waste Committee and because our facility 

is in Osceola County. So I'm trying to get a quad county 

coalition together because I would like to provide -- you are 

with A-Waste? Yeah. I would like to provide all of the 

independent waste haulers in this area another location to 

bring waste to. I mean, you are close to Muskegon County. 

MR. PAGE: There is always negotiation. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: What is that? 

MR. PAGE: There is always negotiation. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: You are right, but Muskegon 

County treats the people real fairly. 

MR. PAGE: Absolutely. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: If you are an independent and 

show up at Pierson, you can get put at the end of the line, 

you can get charged a high rate. If you go up to Manistee you 
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get the same crap. If you go to any of the big -- oh, 

Harrison, they make it really tough on an independent hauler. 

And our company has grown. We handle over 10,000 customers 

between Osceola, Lake, a little bit of Newaygo, and a little 

bit of --

MR. PAGE: What company are you with? 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: I'm with Independent Rural 

Waste, IRWS, and then we have another division that's called 

A-1 Services, which is 

MR. MILLER: Do any of these counties have a 

countywide millage to help? 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Most of the townships. We haul 

for townships. We have township contracts. We pick up all of 

the Pleasant Plains Township and have for, I think, five 

years. We pick up Yates Township, which is the Idlewild area. 

We pick up Webber Township. And we went into the township and 

campaigned because they used to have just Republic and 200 

customers. Well, there was 1,600 customers in the township, 

and we bid a contract for five years to go into the whole 

township and provide a cart to every resident, and it's really 

economical based when you can go door to door to door to door. 

You know, if you are driving a county mile or five country 

miles between stops you can't give anybody a discount. But 

when you can go into a township - - another thing too is in the 

townships up there they have a lot of dirt roads and they used 
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to have those big four-axle Waste Management trucks come in 

there. We use some smaller satellite trucks to run down to 

the end of those little two-tracks and dirt roads to pick up 

and do less road damage. The county road commission is happy 

because they don't have road maintenance that they used to. 

The whole township gets picked up and people pay for their 

the tax bill up there ranges between 50 to $100 a year for a 

parcel of land to have annual pick up. Now, all of the 

parcels pay, but a lot of the down-staters that don't have a 

vote or don't live there have to pay the same. Well, we 

represented it as it's a utility. You pay for your ambulance 

service, you pay for your phone service, you pay for your 

school service, you still don't live here, you still pay for 

those services. If you build your house or your cabin, now 

you have got garbage service at the end of your driveway. It 

was a little bit of a hard sale, but even in the little 

township up there, Cherry Valley, which we cover like a quad, 

four townships all in a block, that little township has waste 

pickup service. They have about 200 annual yearly residents 

and we have been picking them up for over 10 years. They are 

just happier than a lark that everybody in the township -­

there is no trash in the ditch, no trash in the road, there is 

not trash all over the place. It's a clean township. People 

that come and go get picked up all of the time. It works. 

MR. TWING: You are doing recycling with it. Right? 
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MR. FENSTERMACHER: And we do -- the recycling is 

done. In Baldwin it gets done once a month that people, you 

know, store the stuff and then bring it to the township hall 

and we have a collection point. In Leroy they do it I think 

twice a month. 

MR. TWING: So it 1 s not curbside. 

MR. HARMON: No. 

16 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: No, it's not curbside. We have 

offered curbside to the city of Reed City and they are having 

a bid for the city coming up in December and we will be 

offering it to them again. And, again, because there is a 

collection facility in Reed City that processes it, it will be 

a low cost to that city, but it's all about transportation, 

how far you've got to haul it. 

MR. TWING: Well, we will stay in touch. I 

appreciate that. 

All right. Before we adjourn does anybody else have 

any comments they want to make or anything? 

MR. HARMON: What is the direction of this now? 

MR. TWING: It goes to the county board, the county 

board approves it, then we will send it out to the townships, 

and it needs 67 percent of the townships approval. 

MR. HARMON: And that's --

MR. TWING: Then we send it to DEQ and the DEQ gives 

it its blessing. 
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MR. HRUBY: So is there an expected timeline for all 

of that? Does the county or -- the townships have an certain 

period of time, typically at the next meeting? How does that 

work? 

MR. WREN: The county will approve it at probably 

the next meeting as long as Dale gets it to my secretary. And 

as we were talking before the meeting we will send out to the 

townships a request, but it will probably require a bit of a 

nudge. 

MR. TWING: It will take awhile. I'm not sure 

exactly what they have for --

MR. WREN: It's probably going to fall back on this 

board to an extent. You have many township representatives on 

the board already, but to get 67 percent of our townships to 

respond is going to be a challenge. 

MR. PAGE: I can talk to Cory about possibly getting 

out to the supervisors and trying to --

MR. WREN: Any means possible. You know, if you can 

reach out to Cory, you can reach out to Morgan, reach out 

to --

MR. TWING: I will go to the next township -- what 

is that -- that's once a month? 

MR. KOOISTRA: No, that is once every quarter, but 

the boards -- all of the townships meet once a month anyway. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: How many townships? 
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MR. HARMON: 24. 

MR. KOOISTRA: 24 townships. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Divide it up on your 

committee. 

18 

MR. WREN: Again, they might respond right away. We 

already -- the board already sent --

MR. TWING: Yeah. We sent out a letter saying we 

would like to do this as fast as possible and it's coming. 

And I will you know, we will send this out as soon as the 

board passes it and ask for a quick response. I will wait 

about a week and then I will make phone calls and then after 

that I will reach out to you people that I know are hooked up 

with the townships like Ryan, and I know Doug goes to a lot of 

meetings and whatever, and we'll go hold their hand if they 

have to have it. 

MR. WREN: Well, at the county meeting Dale can come 

up and talk, and the papers are all here. So if you put it in 

the paper elected officials tend to react a little quicker. 

MR. TWING: Yeah. I've got a good rapport with the 

paper. So we will get something in the paper too that we 

passed this. 

All right. Is there anything else? 

MR. SCOTT: Can you recommend that they respond in 

30 days or not? 

MR. KOOISTRA: You can. 
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MR. TWING: We can, if you want to. 

MR. KOOISTRA: I would actually give them 30 days. 

They are all going to meet within 30 days of today anyways. I 

mean, as the cycle goes. 

MR. SCOTT: Yeah. 

MR. TWING: 30 days after the county board approval. 

We will put that in. 

MR. KOOISTRA: Because if you don't give them a 

deadline it is going to sit on the corner of their desk. 

MR. SCOTT: Yeah. 

MR. TWING: We will put that in the letter. 

MR. PAGE: I would actually -- instead of going 30 

days I would say at least by the end of December because o f 

the fact that all of the townships meet on different -­

different weeks, so it could go right down through the end of 

the month before they have their next meeting. 

MR. WREN: It's not going to go to the county for 

another two weeks, so I would say 30 days. 

MR. SCOTT: The end of December, would be desired to 

have it returned by the end of December. 

MR. TWING: Yeah. When is the next township group 

meeting, does anybody know? 

MR. KOOISTRA: I think usually in December. 

MR. STROVEN: In December, but usually the first 

Wednesday, but that group has only about 10 percen t of the 
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townships that show up, so I wouldn't rely on that group. 

MR. KOOISTRA: You are going to want to go to each 

township and notify each one. 

MR. PAGE: Brooks Township meets on the third 

Tuesday of every month. 

20 

MR. TWING: I have got a meeting coming up with Cory 

anyways, so I will --

MR. WREN: Yeah, just reach out if you can. 

MR. STROVEN: You should be able to get action out of all 

of the townships during the month of December. 

MR. TWING: You would hope so. 

All right. Anybody else? 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: If you would like to do anything 

with recycling going into the future I would like to keep 

working with you. 

MR. TWING: We are getting close to a place where we 

might talk to you and see where we are going. I mean, we are 

right in 

going to 

here now? 

the process of a transition and, you know, we are 

look for alternatives probably. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Is there any recycling going 

MR. TWING: Yeah. 

MR. FENSTERMACHER: Where does it go? 

MR. TWING: Grand Rapids for now. 

MR. SCOTT: How many of the cities or towns in 

COPE REPORTING SERVICE 
(616) 20 4-220 4 

on 



Ill .. ' • 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

21 

Newaygo County have recycling? 

MR. HARMON: Seven. 

MR. PAGE: There is like seven locations. 

MR. TWING: They offer it in Newaygo and Grant, but 

Fremont is the only mandatory. 

MR. SCOTT: Fremont is the only mandatory. 

MR. PAGE: Oh, as far as curbside? 

MR. SCOTT: Yeah. 

MR. TWING: I'm going to adjourn the meeting. 

(Whereupon this hearing was concluded at 1:54 p.m.) 
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COUNTY OF KENT 

I, LORI J. COPE, Certified Shorthand Reporter and 

Notary Public, do hereby certify that the foregoing matter was 

taken before me at the time and place hereinbefore set forth. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that this matter was taken in 

shorthand and thereafter transcribed by me and that it is a 

true and accurate transcript. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 

23rd day of November of 2016, at Fremont, Michigan. 

LORI J. COPE, CSR-4113, RPR 

Notary Public for Newaygo County 

My Commission Expires: 3-25-2021 
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Request for consideration - Board of Commissioners - County of Newaygo 

Agenda Ite1n No: Motion: 
ORIGINATOR: 

Dale Twing, 
Drain Commissioner _ BUDGETED _ NON-BUDGETED _ PARTIALLY BUDGETED 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: REQUEST DATE: REQUESTER SIGNATURE: 

Solid Waste Management 
Planning Committee 11/23/16 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST (GENERAL DESCRIPTION, FINANCING, OTHER OPERATIONAL, IMPACT, POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVES): 

At the May 11, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting a motion was made to appoint a Solid Waste 
Management Planning (SWMP) Committee to begin reviewing the county's Solid Waste Management 
Plan. 

On Monday, November 14, 2016 the SWMP Committee held a public hearing in the Board of 
Commissioners room to discuss exporting solid waste to other counties, in particular Wayne County as 
they have the capacity and an incinerator. 

Newaygo County's current Solid Waste Management Plan does not allow for this, an amendment to the 
plan is necessary. 

The following motion has been recommended to the Board of Commissioners by the Solid Waste Management 
Planning Committee. 

SUGGESTED MOTION (STATE EXACTLY AS IT SHOULD APPEAR IN THE MINUTES): 

To amend Table 1-A of Section 111.2 of the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to 
allow for export of solid waste to Wayne County. 

AGENDA DATE: 

11/23/16 

FINANCE MEETING APPROVAL: 

YES NO OTHER 

COMMISSION DATE 

11/23/16 
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Newaygo County Board of Commissioners 
MINUTES November 23. 2016 9:30 A .M. 

CALL TO ORDER. 
PRAYER, & PLEDGE 

COMl11ISSIONERS PRESENT 

AGENDA· MOTION NUMBER 

Meeting called to order by Chairperson Patrick Gardner, at 9:30 a.m., 
with Prayer by Newaygo County Chief Deputy Clerk, Pamela A. Rolfe, 
and Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag led by Commissioner Philip 
Deur. 

Philip Deur, Patrick Gardner, Steven Johnson, Larry Lethorn, James 
Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, Charles Trapp 

16-379 -·~-----
Motion by James Maike, second by Christian Ortwein, to approve the agenda for November 23, 
2016. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein , 
Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays - none. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT Ada Linderman, Director of Northern Counties for Disability Network 

• Since the topic of public transportation is not listed on the Agenda, Ms. Linderman 
questioned whether that topic would be addressed under miscellaneous committee reports or 
administrator's report. Chairman Gardner indicated reports occur regularly on this topic and 
Administrator Wren would be happy to answer her questions after the mee~n2. 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 

MOTION NUMBER 16-380 

Motion by Steven Johnson, second by Philip Deur, to approve the Consent Agenda dated 
November 23, 2016, including: the regular meeting minutes dated November 9, 2016; the Semi­
Monthly Detail Analysis and Expenses dated November 16, 2016; the October 2016 Check 
Register; and the October 2016 Budget Report. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry 
Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays - none. 
Motion carried. ------------------

UPDATE Revised 2016 Apportionment Report - -
Equalization Director, Donna VanderVries, reported the necessity of revIsmg the 2016 
Apportionment Report due to an EMS/First Responders Millage that passed at the November 
election for Norwich Township. 
MOTION NUMBER 16-381 

Motion by James Maike, second by Charles Trapp, to adopt the amended 2016 Apportionment 
Report as submitted by the Newaygo County Equalization Department. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven 
Johnson, Larry Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. 
Nays - none. Motion carried. 

PRESENTATION 3rd Quarte.r Casual Day 

Employee Representation Commit.tee member, Jason O'Connell, presented the 3rd Quarter Casual 
Day donations in the amount o!_ $~_~4 to True North for the Children's Christmas Pro~ram. 

sT ANDING COMMITTEE REPORT I Finance Committee 

CHAIR l Commissi~~er Larry Lethorn 

Reported the following actions (see below): 

1 Newaygo County Board of Commissioners 
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M_OTION NUMBER _ _ J 16-36~:!_ __ ~ ~~~~----~------=~-~~~~--------=------- --· --, 
I 
Motion by Larry Lethorn, second by Philip Deur, to approve the 2017 Public Defender Agreements 
for the 78th District Court, and allow Judge Monton and the contractors to sign any and all 
necessary documents. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., 
Christian Ortwein

2 
Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays -_!!_O~ Motion carried. 

r 16-370-1 -MOTION NUMBER 
---- ----------

------
Motion by Larry Lethorn, second by Christian Ortwein, to approve the 2017 Public Defender 
Agreement for the 27th Circuit Court-Criminal Division, and allow the Chief Judge and the 
contractors to sign any and all necessary documents. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry 
Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays - none. 
Motion carried. 

MOTION NUMBER 16-371-1 
- - ------ -

Motion by Larry Lethorn, second by Charles Trapp, to approve the 2017 Circuit Court Reporter 
Independent Contractor Agreement between the Newaygo County Circuit Court and Barbara Lynn 
Wiles, and allow Judge Monton and the aforementioned contractor to sign any and all necessary 
documents. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., Christian 
Ortwein, Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays - none. Motion carried. 

MISC. COMMITTEE REPORT Commissioner Steven Johnson l 
• Attended the Recipi ents Rights committee meeting for N ewaygo County Mental Health a_nd I 

the District Health Depart~ 10 me~~ng with Commissi~r Maike last Friday. 

!_ M~~--COMMITTEE REPORT I Commissi~-;,-;:-Jame-; Maike . ------- -~ ----- l 
i , On Monday, the West Michigan Shoreline Regional Development Commission met at MSU I 
I Extension in Fremont. An update on Parks was provided by Parks Director Nick Smith. 

• Attended the District Health Department #10 meeting. The personnel manual, which has 
been shared with all commissioners, will be discussed and comments taken at the DHD#10 
December !!)_eeting. _ _ ___ ___ _______ _ __ _ 

- --- ·1 

MISC . co_M~IT~:_E ~EPORT . i Commission~ Larry Let~~'.:!__ - . - - --- - - ··- -·- . ----·· -- ·- - ---- - · - - -
• The Health Education & Human Services Committee meeting will occur this morning at 

10:30 a.m_. or immediately followin_2_ t~is Board mee!i~~-
. - --···- _____________ , .. ______ --------

MISC. c oMMITTEE ~EPORT j Commissioner Christian Ortwein _ 

• Attended a Land Use Steering Committee meeting on Monday. Land Use Educator, Ryan 
Coffey, provided a report of his activities, accomplishments, and involvement with the local 
township~ and The Dragon. 

Ao ~ 1N~~~~AT10~ REPORT __ @__hristopher Wren, County Adminis~r~tor __________ _ 

• Attended the new Commissioner training sponsored by the Michigan Association of Counties! 
and MSU Extension yesterday. Commissioners-elect Kolk and Willett were. both in 
attendance as well. I 

• Attended a meeting this week with Mark Guzniczak of the Right Place and Consumers 
Energy; discussion included Consumers' history in Newaygo County and with the Hardy and\ 
Croton Dams. . 

• Had the opportunity to sit down with the legislative representative from Michigan Association! 
of Counties following the new Commissioner training yesterday. The Dark Store issue is on 
the forefront of the legislative agenda since this is such a huge problem for a number of1 
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counties and is resulting in significant loses. 
• Revenue sharing increased by 1 % this year and it appears revenues will continue to stabilize 

in the future . 
• Wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

·--- --, 
PUBLIC COMM ENT Holly Moon, County Treasurer 

• Provided everyone with ad vanced c opies o-f -th-e- fo_r_e-cl-o-su_r_e_n-,o- tice, which is requir~d to be l 
published by P. A. 123, and includes all parcels in jeopardy as of November 15th

• 

• Followed up on the Dark Stores issue reporting on a case in the Upper Peninsula, and also 
indicating there is opposition in the Senate to considering anything _!_hat affects ret~ . ___ _ 

-
PUBLIC COMMENT Ada Linderman, Director of Northern Counties for Disability Network --- ---

• Provided information on the group that has been meeting to discuss a public transit system 
and the potential of a pilot program, Dial A Ride, with the Fremont Area Community 
Foundation providing financial assistance. Ms. Linderman went on to report on the possible 
issues and ramifications that could result if the transit system program went ahead without a 

_ pilot_ pr~Qram: 
I 

MISC. MOTION 16-382 

Motion by Charles Trapp, second by James Maike, to amend Table 1-A of Section 111 .2 of the ~ 
Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to allow for export of solid waste to Wayne 
County. Ayes - Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry Lethorn, James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, 
Charles Trapp, Patrick Gardner. Nays - none. Motion carried. 

MISCELLAN EOUS Commissioner James Maike 
------ ------i 

• Commented on the considerations of the transportation committee that is assessing the 
potential of a public transit sys~ m and the extended timeline. 

MISCELLANEOUS Commissioner Patrick Gardner 
• Reminded everyone of the positions available for appointment on various boards and 

commissions, including the Area Agency on Aging, Board of Public Works, Parks, 
Brownfield Authority, and Road Commission, among others. 

• Informed all on the passing of Oceana County Commissioner Evelyn Kolby, asking for 
prayers for the family. 

• _ yvished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

CLOSED SESSION MOTION NO. 16-383 

Motion by Christian Ortwei~. second by Philip Deur, to go into closed session at 10:02 a.m. to j 
,discuss Corrections Command Negotiations and Lawsuit Mediation. Roll Call Vote: Aye - Charles 
!Trapp, Aye - Philip Deur, Aye - Steven Johnson, Aye - James Maike, Aye - Christian Ortwein, 
Aye - L~rry Lethorn, Aye - Patrick Gardner~~ a_ys - none. Motion ca! rj~d. _ _ __ 

OPEN SESSION MOTION NO. 16-384 -_ - - _ ~ - -- _ I-
Motion by Philip Deur, second by James Maike, to return to open session at 10:22 a.m. Ayes -

Philip Deur, Steven Johnson, Larry _Lethor~, James Maike, Jr., Christian Ortwein, Charles Trapp, 
Patrick Gardner. Nays - None. Motion earned. 

- ----·· . 
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ADJOURNMENT Patrick Gardner, Chair r Therebeing no further business before the Board of Commissioners, the meeting was adjourned 
at 10:~ a.m. ___ __ -·· _ _ _j 

COUNTY CLERK CERTIFICATION Andrew B. Robinson, County Clerk 

CHAIRPERSON CERTIFICATION Patrick Gardner, Board Chair - - - -
DATE CERTIFIED December 14, 2016 -------
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PH 616-636-8510 

Ensley Township 
7163 E 120th Street 

Sand Lake, Ml 49343 
Minutes of February 7, 2017 

Fax 616-636-4773 

The regular meeting of the Ensley Township Board was ca lled to order at 7:30 PM by Supervisor 
Starr. The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Prayer. Board 
members present were Phillip Starr, Faye Folkema, Cynthia Harwood, Brenda Bird and Tim 
Butler. There were three guests. 
Approval of Agenda: There was a motion by Bird, supported by Folkema to approve the 
agenda. All affirmed. 
Minutes of Previous Meeting: There was a motion by Starr, supported by Harwood to approve 
the minutes of January 7, 2016. All affirmed. 
Financial Report: 

General 
Fifth Third Bank 
CD#l 
Independent Bank 

Common Checking 
Roads 
Total 

598.59 
150,000.00 
218,430.55 

2,510.07 
197,496.06 

$ 569,035.27 
Receipts #7397-7425 were used totaling $93,104.73. There was a motion by Butler, supported 
by Harwood to approve the financial report. All ayes, motion carried. 
Building Inspector: There were four building permits and three electrical permits. 
Zoning Administrator: There were five zoning compliances. 
Planning Commission: The election of officers and meeting dates were done. Master Plan and 
Land Division changes were discussed. 
Crime Watch: The next meeting will be February 21. 
Nature Preserve: Walt Jones was elected to be the new chairperson. The Moonlight Walk is 
this Saturday at 7:30 PM. 
Public Comment: 7:47 -7:58 PM. 
New Business 

1. Salary Resolutions: Resolution 2017-1 for the Supervisor's salary was offered by 
Bird, supported by Butler. A roll call vote was taken and all voted "aye." Resolution 
2017-2 for the Treasurer's salary was offered by Harwood, supported by Bird. A roll 
call vote was taken and all voted "aye." Resolution 2017-3 for the clerk's salary was 
offered by Starr, supported by Folkema. All voted "aye" upon a roll call vote. 

2. Resolution Regarding Property Tax Interest: Resolution 2017-4 was offered by 
Bird, supported by Starr. A roll call vote was taken and all voted "aye." 

3. Poverty Exemption Resolution: Resolution 2017-5 was offered by Harwood, 
supported by Starr. Al roll call vote was taken and all voted "aye." 



4. Hall Rental Policy: There was a general consensus that the hall should not be 
rented out during business hours except on Saturday. 

5. Meeting Dates: The following is a list of meeting dates : April 4, May 9, June 6, July 
11, August 1, September 5, October 3, November 7, December 5, January 2, 2018, 
February 6, March 6, and the annual meeting March 31, 2018. The Zoning Board of 
Appeals will be February 8, 2018. A motion was made to adopt the meeting dates 
by Starr, supported by Harwood. All affirmed. 

6. Park Attendant: A motion was made by Starr, supported by Folkema to have Walt 
Jones be the park attendant for another year. All affirmed, the motion carried. 

7. Park Enforcement: A motion was made by Starr, supported by Butler to hire Walt 
Jones and Sean Maloney as park enforcement for another year. All ayes, the 
motion carried. 

8. Dog Clinic: A motion was made by Starr, supported by Bird to do the dog clinic on 
Saturday, March 11, 2017. All affirmed, the motion carried. 

9. Liquor License Renewal: Starr made a motion to approve the liquor license 
renewals from Pilgrim's Run and Gould's Mini Mart. The motion was supported by 
Folkema. There were four "ayes" and one "nay" (Bird.) 

10. Meeting Room Chairs: A motion was made by Starr, supported by Bird for Starr to 
purchase two or three chairs to bring back to try out. All affirmed, motion carried. 

Unfinished Business: None 

Bills: Checks #14170 to 14200 were used totaling $14,052.38. The General Fund totaled 
$10,640.38, the road fund totaled $8,169.59 and the Building Fund $1,354.53. There was a 
motion by Bird, supported by Butler to pay the bills. All affirmed, the motion carried. 
Supervisor's Report: Noted 
Correspondence: None 
Public Comment: 8:34 to 8:38 pm. 
Adjourn: There was a motion by Butler seconded by Bird to adjourn. All affirmed. 

Submitted by, 

Cynthia Harwood 



PH 616-636-8510 

Ensley Township 
7163 E 120th Street 

Sand Lake, Ml 49343 

Minutes of January 3, 2017 
Fax 616-636-4773 

The regular meeting of the Ensley Township Board was called to order at 7:30 PM by Supervisor 
Starr. The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Prayer. Board 
members present were Phillip Starr, Faye Folkema, Cynthia Harwood, Brenda Bird and Tim 
Butler. There were eight guests. 
Approval of Agenda: There was a motion by Harwood, supported by Butler to approve the 
agenda with the addition of #3. Clean-Up Days. All affirmed. 
Minutes of Previous Meeting: There was a motion by Bird, supported by Starr to approve the 
minutes of December 6, 2016. All affirmed. 
Financial Report: 

General 
Fifth Third Bank 598.59 
CD#l 150,000.00 
Independent Bank 178,473.57 

Common Checking 2,509.23 
Roads 153,028.85 
Total $ 484,610.24 

Receipts #7364-7396 were used totaling $92,937.80. There was a motion by Butler, supported 
by Harwood to approve the financial report. All ayes, motion carried. 
Building Inspector: There was one building permit and one electrical permit. For the year 2016, 
building permits were up 25% and electrical permits were down 18%. 
Zoning Administrator: There were three zoning compliances. A few zoning violations are being 
worked on. 
Public Comment: 7:37 to 7:47 PM. 
New Business 

1. Budget Workshop: The general fund, road fund and building inspection fund were 
reviewed. Each fund has equal revenue and expenditures. Starr recommends the 
purchase of 40 new chairs for the meeting room, led lighting for the fire barn, and a 
two dollar per hour increase for the election chairperson. 

2. Fire Works Permit: Starr made a motion to allow Tim Newton to do his fireworks 
display next July. This was supported by Butler. All affirmed. 

3. Clean-Up Days: A motion was made by Starr, seconded by Folkema to hire Ron 
Smith Dumpsters at the same rate as last year for May 12 and 13. All ayes, motion 
carried. 

Unfinished Business: None 



Bills: Checks #14149 to 14169 were used totaling $8,679.39. The General Fund totaled 
$8,433.39 and the Building Fund $246.00. There was a motion by Bird, supported by Starr to 
pay the bills. All affirmed, the motion carried. 
Supervisor's Report: Noted 
Correspondence: None 
Public Comment: 8:35 to 8:43 pm. A special "thank you" to Dave Rondeau for building a voter 
card box for the clerk. 
Adjourn: There was a motion by Bird seconded by Folkema to adjourn. All affirmed. 

Submitted by, 

~-~ 
Cynthia Harwood 



PH 616-636-8510 

Ensley Township 
7163 E 120th Street 

Sand Lake, Ml 49343 
Minutes of December 6, 2016 

Fax 616-636-4 773 

The regular meeting of the Ensley Township Board was called to order at 7:30 PM by Supervisor 
Starr. The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Prayer. Board 
members present were Phillip Starr, Faye Folkema, Cynthia Harwood, Brenda Bird and Tim 
Butler. There were two guests. 
Approval of Agenda: There was a motion by Bird, supported by Harwood to approve the 
agenda. All affirmed. 
Minutes of Previous Meeting: There was a motion by Starr, supported by Folkema to approve 
the minutes of November 1, 2016. All affirmed. 
Financial Report: 

General 
Fifth Third Bank 598.59 
CD#l 150,000.00 
Independent Bank 167,248.23 

Common Checking 2,508.15 
Roads 84,382.34 
Total $ 404,737.31 

Receipts #7342-7363 were used totaling $36,934.02. There was a motion by Harwood, 
supported by Butler to approve the financial report. All ayes, motion carried. A motion was 
made by Folkema, seconded by Harwood to amend the investment policy to include 5th 3rd 

Bank as a depository for the Township. All ayes, the motion carried. 
Building Inspector: There were five building permits and two electrical permits. 
Zoning Administrator: There were two zoning compliances. 
Planning Commission: Charts and graphs will be completed by their next meeting in January 
for the master plan. Updating the ordinance continues. 
Public Comment: 7:47 - 7:52 PM. 
New Business 

1. Board Appointments: Starr made a motion to appoint Barry Wolf and Ross 
Harwood to the Planning Commission; Sidney Allard, Joseph Fleeger, Fred Folkema 
to the Board of Review; for the Construction Board of Appeals - Daniel Fisk, Michael 
Folkema, Bill Gould Jr. Ray Andrus, and Rob Scholton; The Zoning Board of Appeals 
re-appointed Bill Greenhoe; Bob Snow and Dennis Boonstra to the Park Advisory 
Board, and Marian Schestag, Michele Rodammer, Louie Schreuder and Jerry Klock 
Sr. to the Nature Preserve Committee. This motion was seconded by Folkema. All 
affirmed. 

2. Zoning Issue: An issue was discussed about a residence that had the house burn 
down two years ago and was not cleaned up. The residents are living in a travel 
trailer. 



3. Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan: A motion was made by Starr, 
seconded by Harwood to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste 
Management Plan to allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. All affirmed, the 
motion carried. 

Unfinished Business: None 

Bills: Checks #14115-14148 were used totaling $12,364.87. The General Fund totaled 
$11,352.54 and the Building Fund $1,012.33. There was a motion by Starr, supported by Butler 
to pay the bills. All affirmed, the motion carried. 
Supervisor's Report: Thank you to Rick Fish for winterizing the well at the North Ensley 
Cemetery. 
Correspondence: None 
Public Comment: 8:28-8:34 pm 
Adjourn: There was a motion by Bird seconded by Folkema to adjourn. All affirmed. 

Submitted by, 

Cynthia Harwood 



Grant Township Board 

Meeting Minutes 

January 9, 2017 

Opening 
The regular meeting of the Grant Township Boacd was called to order at 7:00 PM 
opening with a prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance on January 9, 2017 by Stanley 
VanSingel, Supervisor. 

Present 

Stanley VanSingel, Gladys VeltKamp, Edith Elsenheimer, Janet Lesley and Max Mellon 

Approval of Agenda/Minutes 
A motion to approve the Consent Agenda, Minutes from the December 5, 2016 meeting, 
was made by Janet Lesley and seconded by Max Mellon. All were in favor and the 
motion was carried. 

Clerk 

No after audit bills trus month. 

Gladys presented a copy of the MT A conference information packet for April l O - 13 to 
be held in Lansing. Gladys will register all that want to attend this conference and make 
room reservations. 

Zoning 

Kim Martens provided permit and zorung activity for the month of December in addition 
to an overview of all requests received and processed for 2016 showing a substantial 
increase over 2015. 

There will not be a planning meeting in January. The next planning commission meeting 
will be held on February 16. There wilJ be a Special meeting for the ZBA to hear the 
case for Dan Tellkarnp. 

Fire Report 

Larry Bisson provided a summary from the December 26, 2016 meeting and informed the 
board that an election for a new Fire Chief will take place in November 2017. 



' . . ( ,r~ 
\ 

Planning Commission 

Not represented this month, updates provided by Kim Martens. 

Op~Issues 
\ Stan asked that Gladys read the memo :received regarding the request received 

\Y~ ' from Nestle-Gerber to obtain approval from area municipalities to legally haul 

~~ waste to the Wayne County Energy Incinerator. 

~ 0 / A motion to approve was made by Gladys VeltKamp, seconded by Edith 

\). ~ Elsenheimer to approve amending to the Newaygo CoW1ty Solid Waste 

~ ~w ~ Management Plan to allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. All were in 

, favor and the motion passed. Gladys will fax a copy of the meeting minutes 

showing the approval to Dale Twing/Newaygo County. 

• The board discussed that we are still waiting for additional pricing for. new sign 

options to replace ow- current sign. We have received infonnation from Johnson 

Sign, who we will have attend our March meeting to make a presentation_ Hard 

wiring vs wireless was recommended during discussion by board. 

• A podium has been ordered for meeting usage_ ("**Note: Podium arrived 

1/11/17) 

• Stan will not be in attendance for our February meeting. His position for that 

meeting will be filled by one of the trustees. 

New Business 
• Trisha Rose and Jim Fues addressed the board to request permission to begin 

splitting and selling property with any subsequent building to be contingent on 
road upgrades and approvals. It is the board's opinion that road updates and 

approvals should be made before any property splits and ownership changes 

occur. Kim will check with attorney, Cliff Bloom for his opinion and will then 
notify the owners. 

• We will have two presentations at our next meeting on February 6, 2017 

** A Representative from The Newaygo County Building Inspect.ors office will 
provide a report 

* * Newaygo County Recycling will provide a presentation 

• The next Board of Review will meet here on Tuesday, March 7th. 

• Stan discussed Edie' s upcoming surgery and the need to have someone fill in for 

her in her absence. Gladys made the motion to hire Edith's daughter Jennifer, 

who is familiar with her role at a rate of $15.30 per hour in her absence. The 
motion was seconded by Janet Lesley, all were in favor and the motion passed. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:55pm by Stanley VanSingel, supervisor. The next 

general meeting will be at 7:00 pm on February 6, 2017. 



. •. 

Troy Township Board Meeting 

February 6,2017 

Meeting was called to order February 6, 2017 at 7:00 pm by Janice Vest. 

Pledge led by Janice Vest. 

Roll call: supervisor Janice Vest, Clerk Vicki Branch, Treasurer Susan Hollar, 

Trustee Erica Quick, Trustee Onalee McMiller. 

Minutes of January 2, 2017 read by Clerk, Vicki Branch. 

There were no changes, additions, or deletions for minutes of January 2, 2017. 

Motion to accept minutes as read by Janice Vest, seconded by Erica Quick, motion 

carried. 

Vicki informs board of the solid waste plan to accommodate Gerber-Nestle needs. 

Motioned to accept by Janice Vest, seconded by Vicki Branch, motion carried. 

Motion to accept minutes as read, by Susan Hollar, seconded by Onalee McMiller, 

Motion carried. 

Treasurers report given by Susan Hollar. 

Changes: Bathroom fund to building fund. 

Motion to accept treasurers report with changes by Onalee McMiller seconded by 

Erica Quick. Motion carried. 

Guests Fire Chief Scott and Deputy Chief Brad from Lilly township Fire 

Department. 

Came to discuss fire safety such as, smoke detectors in every room, fire 

extinguishers in homes, keep all heating equipment cleaned and updated as much 

as possible. Also to discuss setting up a fire escape plan for Troy Township hall. 

Brad informed the board of a new program that will happen spring of 2017, the 

program will help private property owners with four or more structures or with 

neighbors close for the Forest services to clean up under brush and pines with 

flammable sap. This will help prevent forest fires or help stop fires from moving 

further. 



, .. 

Supervisors report was given by Janice Vest. 

Jan asked for a motion for approval of the Board of Review to use the federal 

poverty guide lines for tax exemptions for the next four years. 

Motioned by Erica, seconded by Onalee, motion carried. 

Jan suggested some of the money from renting the hall goes for light and for 

propane, $5.00 for the lights and $5.00 for propane and the remaining goes into 

the building fund. 

Motion to accept by Erica, seconded by Onalee. 

Motion to adjourn and pay bills at 8:30 motioned by Erica, seconded by Onalee. 

Submitted by, . 

Clerk, V U,0\\ (}A, 'v\J ~ 
2/6/17 



HOME TOWNSHIP 
Board Meeting - Monday, December 12, 2016 

Meeting called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Supervisor Spalo. 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

Present: Earl Spalo, Deb Wilkinson, Leroy Jackson, Emily 
Swanson-Theunick and Diane Reinke 

Others Present: None. 

Minutes of the November 14, 2016 meeting were read by the Clerk. Motion 
by Leroy to approve minutes as read. Seconded by Earl. All in favor. 
Motion carried. 

Treasurer's Report distributed by the Treasurer. Motion by Leroy to 
approve report as presented. Seconded by Earl . All in favor. Motion 
carried. 

Bills to be paid were presented by the Clerk. Check# 4269 through Check 
# 4278 n the total amount of $2,380.19. Motion to accept bills to be paid by 
Leroy, seconded by Deb. All in favor. Motion carried. 

Unfinished Business: 
Snow Removal Bid from Leroy. Motion by Deb, seconded by Diane to accept 
snow removal bid from Leroy for the winter of 2016/2017 as follows: $50.00 
per plow, and $15.00 per shoveling of walkway. All in favor. Motion 
carried. 

New Business: 
Motion by Leroy, seconded by Deb to publish Board meeting dates and 
Planning Board meeting dates for 2017 in the Pioneer. Also, to change the 
Board meeting times from 7:30 pm, to 7:00 pm. All in favor. Motion carried. 
Clerk will request publication in the Pioneer for 12/30/16. 

Planning Board member Robert Anderson sworn in by the Clerk on December 7, 
2016. Vance Lockerby to be sworn in on January 9, 2017. 

Motion by Leroy, seconded by Deb to approve amending to the Newaygo 
County Solid Waste Management Plan to allow export of solid waste to 
Wayne County. All in favor. Motion carried. 

Motion to adjourn meeting by Deb. Seconded by Leroy. All in favor. Motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:44 p.m. _ 
Submitted by: Diane M. Reinke, Home Township Cler~ ~ 

~ 



LINCOLN TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
1988 N. WISNER, WHITE CLOUD, MI 49349 

December 15, 2016 7:00 P.M. 

MINUTES 

The meeting was called to order by the Supervisor, Buck Geno, at 7:00 P.M. 

The Supervisor led those present in The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

Present: Dennis Dickinson, Amy Stockwell, Sharon Noggle, Roger Ungrey, and Buck Geno. 

Others Present: Dick Barager 

Motion by Dickinson, second by Ungrey, to approve the minutes from the regular Board meeting held 
November 17, 2016. Motion carried. 

Motion by Dickinson, second by Stockwell, to approve the agenda with additions. Motion carried. 

Public Comment: None 

Zoning Administrator's Report: On file. 

Fire Board Report: Noggle reported on the runs from the previous month. The Fire Agreement has been 
completed and will be presented to the Township next month for approval. 

Treasurer's Report: On file. Motion by Noggle, second by Ungrey to accept the Treasurer's report as 
submitted. Motion carried. 

Supervisor's Report: None 

Unfinished Business 
Cemetery: Postponed until next month. 

New Business 
Motion by Noggle, seconded by Stockwell to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste 
Management Plan to allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. All ayes, motion carried. 
Motion by Noggle, second by Ungrey to approve the land division/combination for Davis and Lorraine 
property as submitted. Motion carried. 
Motion by Ungrey, seconded by Dickinson to reappoint Robert Miller, Greg Jenson, and Randy Carson to 
the Board of Review. All ayes, motion carried. 
Motion by Dickinson, second by Stockwell to pay the bills. Motion carried. 

With no objections, the Supervisor declared the meeting adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 7: 15 pm. 

Submitted by, 

~~ 
Sharon Noggle, Clerk 
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Minutes of the january 3rd.2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page I of5 

The regular meeting of the Sherman Township Board was held onjanuary 3"1
• 2017 a t 7:00pmat the township 

hall. Meeting called to order by supervisor. After the pledge of allegiance to the flag, roll call was taken : 
Members present: D Berens. K Berens. Miller. K Smalligan. Stocking. Absent: none. There wa-; a ITK)tion by 
K Smalligan. 2nd by D Berens to approve the agenda as presented. All yes, agenda approved. 

There was a ITK)tion by K Berens. 2nd by K S nnlligan, to approve the minutes of the December 5th
• 20 l 6 regular 

meeting with correction ofaudit meeting dates and typos. All yes, minutes approved. 

There was no public comment at this time. 

Berens gave the treasurer's report including bills to be paid. She said the state revenue monies had been received. 
There was a motion by K Smalligan, 2'td by Stocking to accept the report and approve the bi lls. Roll call vote; 
YES: D Berens. K Berens, Miller. K Smalligan. Stocking. NO, none. Motion passed. 

Clerk said that the audit has been completed. Four bids were received for plowing: 
Chad Kuka!: $50.00 per time 
Chad Korytkowski : $55.00 per time (Chad's snowplowing service) 
Mark Wyn: $45.00 per time (Clean Cut lawn service) 
D folkema: $90.00 per time (D Folkema snow plowing) 
There was a question if it would be a conflict of interest if the zoning administrator could do the plowing. There 
is no problem with that. There was a motion by K Smalligan. 2 nd by D Berens to hire Chad K ukal to do the 
plowing at $50.00 per time. Roll call vote; YES: D Berens. K Berens, Miller. K Smalligan. Stocking. NO. 
none. Motion passed. 
A PA 116 form for Kent and Lavonne Folkema was presented to the board. There was a motion by K Smalligan. 
2nd by K Berens to approve the PA l 16 application. All yes. application approved. 

Miller sa id that a lawsuit over an accident at 48 th and Wisner had been settled. 

Trustees had nothing to report at this time. 

Miller handed out the fire run report from Fremont. 

Doug Berens said the PZC is working on site visit permission forms for zoning permits and ZBA hearings. 

The building inspector gave his report. He had written 6 permits and had 2 inspections. For the 2016 year, he 
had written 43 permits and collected $6,329.00 in permit foes. 

Wiseley gave the zoning administrator's report. One permit had been written. Chad Kuka! presented the board 
with information on training for zoning administrators. It is a 2 day seminar at a cost of$850.00 per person and 
he said that ifwe belong to the MTA, the cost is cut by 75%. There was a motion by K Smalligan. 2',d by D 
Berens to approve Chad Kuka! and Troy Wiseley to attend the seminar. Roll call vote; YES: D Berens. K 
Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking. NO, none. Motion passed. 
Miller updated the board on the dilapidated buildings. He said that ifwe ha ve to take legal action, it will be 
expensive. He is going to check with the township lawyer to perhaps send a letter out to have the buildings 
cleaned up by May or face possible legal action. 

Chenard gave the report on the sewer authority. Julius Trapp will retire, effect ive February I st. Stan Stroven JR 
has been appointed as new manager. 



Minutes of the january 3rd
, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 2 of 5 

S Stroven said that the old copier had died and that North Kent Office machines said it was not worth fixing. A 
new copier had been brought in for trial use. I fthe township wants to keep it, the cost would be$ I ,300.00 and 
North Kent would not charge the township for the service call on the old copier. (approx $400.00) leased copiers 
are about $100.00 per month After some discussion, there was a motion by Stocking, 2nd by K Berens to 
purchase the copier from North Kent Office for $1 ,300.00 Roll call vote; YES: D Berens. K Berens, Miller. 
Stocking. NO, K Srnalligan. Motion passed. 
Stroven presented the federal poverty guidelines for the board of review to ui;e. There was a motion by K 
S mal ligan, 2nd by D Berens to adopt the guidelines for 2017. A II yes, guidelines adopted. 
S Stroven asked the board to approve paying for training for the board ofreview members. There was a motion 
by K Berens, 2nd by Stocking to approve the training. Roll call vote; YES : D Berens, K Berens. Miller, K 
Smalligan, Stocking. NO, none. Motion passed. 

There was nothing new from the cemetery. 

The White Cloud fire district is still working on getting warning lights for the corner by M 37. Stocking 
presented the budget for the fire department: Revenues $201 ,351.00 Expenses $201 ,351.00 township share is 
$19,609.70 There was a motion by Stocking. 2nd by D Berens to approve the budget and authorize the payment of 
the township share. Roll call vote; YES : D Berens. K Berens, Miller. K Smalligan, Stocking. NO. none. 
Motion passed. There was nothing new from the Fremont fire dept. 

There was a request from the Newaygo County board of Public Works to pass a motion to allow Newaygo 
County to export solid waste to Wayne County. S Stroven said in theory that Wayne county could ship waste 
here if Newaygo county had a landfill. He said the Board of Public works told him that the county would not 
open a landfill. There was a motion by K Srnalligan, 2nd by D Berens to approve amending the Newaygo County 
Solid Waste management plan to allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. Vote taken. all yes. motion 
passed. 

An amended ordinance for the White Cloud Fire District was presented to the board. The changes in the 
ordinance are mainly to increase the amount the fire chief can spend without coming back to each entity for 
approval. the amount was set at $10,000.00 there was a motion by K Berens. 2nd by K Smalligan to approve the 
amended ordinance as presented. All yes, motion passed, ordinance approved. 

The City of Fremont had asked the township to approve a town.ship resident on 481
1, st to hook up to city water. 

The well water at the residence was not useable. S Stroven said that we should just give approval to that parcel to 
hook up. There was a motion by K S mal ligan, 2nd by Stocking to approve resolution #0 1-2017 as follows: 
WHEREAS: the City of Fremont does provide water facilities for a portion of 48th Street east of 
Luce Avenue in Sherman Township, 
Therefore, The Township of Sherman does resolve that parcel #62-14-31-300-012 (4615 W 48th st) 
and parcel #62-14-31-300-013 (4595 W 481h st) in Sherman Township adjacent to the City of 
Fremont water facilities arc eligible to connect to that facility . 
YEAS : K Berens. D Berens. Miller, K Smalligan. Stocking 
NAYS: none 
Resolution approved. 

S Stroven said that his email is not working yet. He said that we could each individually get email from gmail if 
we wanted to do that. 

Under public comment, W Stroven asked about the cost oft he well at the cemetery. The bill of $8,020.23 had 
been paid 



Minutes of the january 3rd
, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 3 of5 

Meeting adjourned at 8 :40pm Suhmitted by: Murry D Stocking clerk 

Visitors to meeting: Gary Smalligan 
Dick Chenard Troy Wisely 

Stan Stroven 
Chad Kuk.al 

Lee Hoppa 
Warren Stroven 

Karl OeVisscr Butch Deur 

Gen fund *(Fire protect) (Fire station) "(Cnst Jake) *(Maro dr) *(Rob Jk) 
Starting bal )8.915.08 10.124.23 2,632.43 29.225.94 6,093.86 12.215.63 -
Receipts 29.103.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Expend iturcs -13.118.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 -350.00 -800.00 

0 () 0 0 0 0 
Audit -1,760.74 
correction 
Audit 6,936.06 
correction 
New balance 60,075.82 10,124.23 2,632.43 29 215.94 5,743.86 11,415.63 

•Fire protection, Fire station, Crystal Lake, Mayu Drive, Rohinson Lake monies arc kept in general fund account hut not 
shown in General Fund total. 

Cem fund Fire run Capaq fund Road fund Win tax fund Sum tax fu11d 
Starting bal 2,888.65 3,618.79 I 1.841.31 8.458.66 463,125.52 19,342.16 
Receipts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 230,717.56 1.908.60 
Expenditures -414.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 -436,256.68 -6,019.15 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
New balance 2,473.95 3,618.79 / I 84/.31 8,458.66 257,586.40 15,231.61 

r 
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Minutes of the january 3rd

, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 4 of 5 

r-· • I · manc1a transactions or 1an r · 20 17 
General fund General fund 
Ck# Amt To Act #101- Rec# Arnt from Acct #IOI-

5608 44.04 Dale Berens 371-701 14306 28.171.00 State of rnich 
5609 11.04 Doug Berens 100-101 14307 722.80 Building permits 
5610 867.19 K Beren.5 253-701 14310 210.00 Hall rental 
5611 46.17 DC!ark 371-701 29,103.80 
5612 46.17 M Deur 371-701 
5613 44.04 K Komolces 371-701 
5614 591.30 Miller zadrnin 371-701 
5615 69.26 A Srnalligan 400-701 
5616 542.02 G Srnalligan 371-701 
5617 264.30 K Srnalligan 100-701 
5618 585.48 Stocking 215-701 
5619 670.00 S Stroven 209-701 
5620 132.14 W Stroven 100-701 Crystal lake special lt~sessirent 
5621 66.07 D VanOstenberg 400-701 
5622 101.76 T Wisely 371-701 
5623 702.58 Miller super 171-701 
5624 488.34 State IRS 

Bk-ian 752.26 FED IRS 
14478 151.65 CPCo hall 265-803 
14479 103.25 DTE 265-803 Mayo drive special assessment 
14480 243.00 WCS UA sewer bill 265-803 Ck l4499 350.00 RJ custom plowing 
14481 70.92 Miner suonly hall 265-
14482 39.00 Bloom lawyer 
14483 36.60 Stocking starnos 
14484 0.00 Robinson lake check 
14485 77.00 Smalligan miles 371-800 
14486 10.50 Wiselv miles 371-800 
14487 45.00 Klemundt clean 265-804 
14488 50.81 Beren.5 ink can 253-800 Rob irt~o n lake spec ia I assessment 
14489 47.00 Berens stamps 253-800 Ck 14484 800.00 PLM lake management 
14490 25000 C Kuk.al plowing 265-804 
14491 67.50 Times indicator plow bid 
14492 100.00 Ross acct I 00-804 
14493 104.85 Comcast 265-803 
14494 1,300.00 North kent office 265-800 
14495 81 00 Hi-lites plow bid 
14496 3,700.00 Lake mich coa audit 100-804 
14497 30.00 MTA for Doug Bern.5 100- The following changes were made per the audit ; 
14498 28.58 CPCo oark payment 
14499 0.00 Mayo dr check IRS octl5 929.12 IRS payment 
14500 405.00 MT A b or r tra ininJ:!. IRSnovl5 831 .62 IRS payment 
14501 152.56 AT&T 265-803 1,760.74 

13, I 18.38 Deposits 
14101 6,819.41 Admin fees summer 

l41 XXX 112.18 Late fees 
2.57 Interest 
1.90 bank fees ad i 

6,936.06 



Minutes of the january 3rd
, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 5 ofS 

CEMETERY FUND TRANSACTIONS 
Rec 

Ck 1708 
1709 

xxxx 
22.70 CPCo 

392.00 Devisser bases 
414.70 

CAP ACQ FUND TRANSACTIONS. 

WINTER TAX FUND TRANSACTIONS 
Ck 1776 l1!1.902 .78 Fremont schools 

1777 60,31839 Wcschools 
1778 42 ,076.84 Newaygo co 
1779 28,125.43 NCRESA 
I 780 30.274.46 Library 
I 781 42.835.57 Fremont schools 
1782 8,879 .18 We school 
1783 8,782.27 Newaygo co 
1784 26,742 .75 NCRESA 
1785 6,319.01 Library 

436.256.68 

ROAD FUND TRANSACTIONS 
Rec I 

XXX 

FIRE RUN COLLECTION mANSACTIONS 

Rec 

SUMMER TAX FUND TRANSACTIONS 
1344 5,648.87 Co treas 
1345 370.28 

Rec 14305-83 
14308 
14314 
14320 
14321 

14322-88 

Rec 14303-22 
14304 
14309 

14311-25 
14312 
14313 
14315 
l•Bl6 

14317-30 
14318 
14319 
14323 
(4324 

14325-35 

6,019 15 
xxxxx 

833 .30 
9 .51 

160.65 
(69.89 
33 .33 

701.92 
I 908.60 

40,057 .29 
28.756.46 
I 8,347 06 
33,626.64 

2.968 n8 
10,209. 15 
(2,450 70 
9,599.52 
4 ,021! .44 

17,199 20 
516 .20 

2,899.79 
23,276 .21 
26,782 .22 

230.7( 7 56 
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Minutes of the january 3rd

, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 1 of5 

The regular meeting of the Sherman Township Board was held onjanuary 3rd
, 2017 at 7 :00pm at the township 

hall. Meeting called to order by supervisor. After the pledge ofallegiance to the flag, roll call was taken: 
Members present: D Berens, K Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking. Absent: none. There was a motion by 
K Srnalligan, 2nd by D Berens to approve the agenda as presented. All yes, agenda approved. 

There was a motion by K Berens, 2nd by K Smalligan, to approve the minutes of the December 5th
, 2016 regular 

meeting with correction of audit meeting dates and typos. All yes, minutes approved. 

There was no public comment at this time. 

Berens gave the treasurer's report including bills to be paid. She said the state revenue monies had been received. 
There was a motion by K Smalligan, 2nd by Stocking to accept the report and approve the bills. Roll call vote; 
YES: D Berens, K Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking. NO, none. Motion passed. 

Clerk said that the audit has been completed. Four bids were received for plowing: 
Chad Kuka!: $50.00 per time 
Chad Korytkowski: $55.00 per time (Chad's snowplowing service) 
Mark Wyn: $45.00 per time (Clean Cut lawn service) 
D Folkema: $90.00 per time (D Folkema snow plowing) 
There was a question if it would be a conflict of interest if the zoning administrator could do the plowing. There 
is no problem with that. There was a motion by K Smalligan, 2nd by D Berens to hire Chad Kuka! to do the 
plowing at $50.00 per time. Roll call vote; YES: D Berens, K Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking. NO, 
none. Motion passed. 
A PA 116 form for Kent and Lavonne Folkema was presented to the board. There was a motion by K Smalligan, 
2nd b)' K Berens to approve the PA 116 application All yes, application approved. 

Miller said that a lawsuit over an accident at 48th and Wisner had been settled. 

Trustees had nothing to report at this time. 

Miller handed out the fire run report from Fremont. 

Doug Berens said the PZC is working on site visit permission forms for zoning permits and ZBA hearings. 

The building inspector gave his report. He had written 6 permits and had 2 inspections. For the 2016 year, he 
had written 43 permits and collected $6,329.00 in permit fees. 

Wiseley gave the zoning administrator's report. One permit had been written. Chad Kuka! presented the board 
with information on training for zoning administrators. It is a 2 day seminar at a cost of$850.00 per person and 
he said that if we belong to the MTA, the cost is cut by 75%. There was a motion by K Smalligan, 2nd by D 
Berens to approve Chad Kukal and Troy Wiseley to attend the seminar. Roll call vote; YES: D Berens, K 
Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking. NO, none. Motion passed. 
Miller updated the board on the dilapidated building;,. He said that if we have to take legal action, it will be 
expensive. He is going to check with the township lawyer to perhaps send a letter out to have the buildings 
cleaned up by May or fuce possible legal action. 

Chenard gave the report on the sewer authority. Julius Trapp will retire, effective February 1'1. Stan Stroven JR 
has been appointed as new manager. 



Minutes of the january 3rd
, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 2 of5 

S Stroven said that the old copier had died and that North Kent Office machines said it was not worth fixing. A 
new copier had been brought in for trial use. I fthe township wants to keep it, the cost would be $1 ,300.00 and 
North Kent would not charge the township for the service call on the old copier. (approx $400.00) leased copiers 
are about $100.00 per month. After some discussion, there was a motion by Stocking, 2nd by K Berens to 
purchase the copier from North Kent Office for $1,300.00 Roll call vote; YES : D Berens, K Berens, Miller, 
Stocking. NO, K Smalligan. Motion passed. 
Stroven presented the federal poverty guidelines for the board ofreview to use. There was a motion by K 
Smalligan, 2nd by D Berens to adopt the guidelines for 201 7. All yes, guidelines adopted. 
S Stroven asked the board to approve paying for training for the board of review members. There was a motion 
by K Berens, 2nd by Stocking to approve the training. Roll call vote; YES: D Berens, K Berens, Miller, K 
S malligan, Stocking. NO, none. Motion passed. 

There was nothing new from the cemetery. 

The White Cloud fire district is still working on getting warning lights for the corner by M 37. Stocking 
presented the budget for the fire department: Revenues $201 ,351.00 Expenses $201,351.00 township share is 
$19,609.70 There was a motion by Stocking, 2nd by D Berens to approve the budget and authorize the payment of 
the township share. Roll call vote; YES: D Berens, K Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking. NO, none. 
Motion passed. There was nothing new from the Fremont fire dept. 

There was a request from the Newaygo County board of Public Works to pass a motion to allow Newaygo 
County to export solid waste to Wayne County. S Stroven said in theory that Wayne county could ship waste 
here if Newaygo county had a landfill. He said the Board of Public works told him that the county would not 
open a landfill. There was a motion by K Smalligan, 2nd by D Berens to approve amending the Newaygo County 
Solid Waste management plan to allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. Vote taken, all yes, motion 
passed. 

An amended ordinance for the White Cloud Fire District was presented to the board. The changes in the 
ordinance are mainly to increase the amount the fire chief can spend without coming back to each entity for 
approval. the amount was set at $10,000.00 there was a motion by K Berens, 2nd by K Smalligan to approve the 
amended ordinance as presented. All yes, motion passed, ordinance approved. 

The City ofFremont had asked the township to approve a township resident on 48th st to hook up to city water. 
The well water at the residence was not useable. S Stroven said that we should just give approval to that parcel to 
hook up. There was a motion by K Smalligan, 2nd by Stocking to approve resolution #01-2017 as follows: 
WHEREAS: the City of Fremont does provide water facilities for a portion of 48 th Street east of 
Luce Avenue in Sherman Township, 
Therefore, The Township of Sherman does resolve that parcel #62-14-31-300-012 (4615 W 481

h st) 
and parcel #62-14-31-300-013 (4595 W 48th st) in Sherman Township adjacent to the City of 
Fremont water facilities are eligible to connect to that facility. 
YEAS: K Berens, D Berens, Miller, K Smalligan, Stocking 
NAYS: none 
Resolution approved. 

S Stroven said that his email is not working yet. He said that we could each individually get email from gmail if 
we wanted to do that. 

Under public comment, W Stroven asked about the cost of the well at the cemetery. The bill of$8,020.23 had 
been paid 



Minutes of the january 3rd
, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 3 of5 

Meeting adjourned at 8:40pm Submitted by: Murry D Stocking clerk 

Visitors to meeting: Gary Smalligan Stan Stroven 
Chad Kulcal 

Lee Hoppa 
Warren Stroven 

Karl De Visser Butch Deur 
Dick Chenard Troy Wisely 

Gen fund *(Fire protect) (Fire station) *(Cryst lake) *(Mavodr) *(Rob lk) 
Starting bal 38,915.08 10,124.23 2,632.43 29,225.94 6,093 .86 12,215.63 
Receipts 29 103.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Expenditures - 13 118.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 -350.00 -800.00 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
Audit -1,760.74 
correction 
Audit 6,936.06 
correction 
New balance 60,075.82 10124.23 2,632.43 29,225.94 5,743.86 11,415.63 

*Fire protection, Fire station, Crystal Lake, Mayo Drive, Robinson Lake monies are kept in general fund account but not 
shown in General Fund total. 

Cem fimd Firer,m Caoaq fund Road fimd Win taxfllnd Sum tax fu,id 
Startinl!. bal 2,888.65 3,618.79 11,841.31 8.458.66 463,125.52 19,342.16 
Receipts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 230,717.56 1,908.60 
Exoenditures -414.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 -436,256.68 -6,019.15 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
New balance 2,473.95 3,618. 79 11,841.3} 8,458.66 257,586.40 15,231.61 

r 



Minutes of the january 3rd, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 4 of5 

manc1a transactions or 1an • I ti . 2017 
General fund General fund 
Ck# Amt To Act #101- Rec# Amt from Acct #IOI-

5608 44,04 Dale Berens 371-701 14306 28,171.00 State ofmich 
5609 I 1.04 Doug Berens 100-101 14307 722.80 Building permits 
5610 867.19 K Berens 253-701 14310 210.00 Hall rental 
561 I 46.17 D Clark 371-701 29,103.80 
5612 46.17 MDeur 371-701 
5613 44.04 K Komolces 371-701 
5614 591.30 Miller zadmin 371-701 
5615 69.26 A Smalligan 400-701 
5616 542.02 G Smalligan 371-701 
5617 264.30 K Srnalligan 100-701 
5618 585.48 Stocking 215-701 
5619 670.00 S Stroven 209-701 
5620 132.14 W Stroven 100-701 Crystal lake special assessment 
5621 66.07 D VanOstenbere. 400-701 
5622 101.76 TWisely 371-701 
5623 702.58 Miller super 171-701 
5624 488.34 State IRS 

Bk-ian 752.26 FED IRS 
14478 151.65 CPCo hall 265-803 
14479 103.25 DTE 265-803 Mayo drive soecial assessment 
14480 243.00 WCSUA sewer bill 265-803 Ck14499 350.00 RJ Cll'itom plowing 
14481 70.92 Miner suooly hall 265-
14482 39.00 Bloom lawver 
14483 36.60 Stocking stamps 
14484 0.00 Robinson lake check 
14485 77.00 Smallie.an miles 371-800 
14486 10.50 Wisely miles 371-800 
14487 45.00 Klemundt clean 265-804 
14488 50.81 Berem ink cart 253-800 Robinson lake soecial assessment 
14489 47.00 Berens Stamos 253-800 Ck 14484 800.00 PLM lake management 
14490 250.00 C Kukal plowing 265-804 
14491 67.50 Times indicator plow bid 
14492 [00.00 Ross acct 100-804 
14493 l04.85 Comcast 265-803 
14494 1,300.00 North kent offJCC 265-800 
14495 81.00 Hi-lites plow bid 
14496 3,700.00 Lake mich cpa audit 100-804 
14497 30.00 MTA for Doug Berns JOO- The followin~ changes were made per the audit: 
14498 28.58 CPCo park payment 
14499 0.00 Mayo dr check IRS oct15 929.12 IRS payment 
14500 405.00 MTA b or r training IRS novl5 831.62 IRS pavrnent 
14501 152.56 AT&T 265-803 1,760.74 

13,118.38 Deposits 
14101 6 819.41 Admin fees summer 

14IXXX 112.18 Late fees 
2.57 Interest 
1.90 bank fees adi 

6,936.06 



Minutes of the january 3rd
, 2017 meeting of the Sherman Township Board. Page 5 of 5 

CEMETERY FUND TRANSACTIONS 
Rec 

Ck 1708 
1709 

xxxx 
22.70 CPCo 

392.00 Devisser bases 
414.70 

CAP ACQ FUND TRANSACTIONS. 

WINTER TAX FUND TRANSACTIONS 
Ck 1776 181,902.78 Fremontschools 

1777 60.318.39 We schools 
1778 42,076.84 Newaygo co 
1779 28,125.43 NCRESA 
1780 30.274.46 Library 
1781 42,835.57 Fremont schools 
1782 8,879.18 Wcschool 
1783 8,782.27 Newaygo co 
1784 26,742.75 NCRESA 
1785 6,319.01 Library 

436,256.68 

ROAD FUND TRANSACTIONS 
Rec 1 

XXX 

FIRE RUN COLLECTION TRANSACTIONS 

Rec 

SUMMER TAX FUND TRANSACTIONS 
1344 5,648.87 Co treas 
1345 370.28 

Rec 14305-83 
14308 
14314 
14320 
14321 

14322-88 

Rec 14303-22 
14304 
14309 

14311-25 
14312 
14313 
14315 
14316 

14317-30 
14318 
14319 
14323 
14324 

14325-35 

6,019.15 
xxxxx 

833.30 
9.51 

160.65 
169.89 
33.33 

701.92 
1908.60 

40,057.29 
28,756.46 
18,347.06 
33,626.64 

2,968.68 
10,209.15 
12,450.70 
9,599.52 
4,028.44 

17,199.20 
516.20 

2,899.79 
23,276.21 
26,782.22 

230,717.56 



01 / 21 / 2016 21:35 23165279300 

BIG PRAIRIE TOWNSHIP 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
DECEMBER 13, 2016 

lJUDYBAKER 

The regular meeting of the Big Prairie Township Board was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by 
Supervisor Wright. 

The PledRe of Allegiance was said. 

PAGE 01 

Roll call showed the following Board members present: Wright, Baker, Scott, and Thompson. 
Anderson was absent. 

Motion by Baker seconded by Scott to approve the agenda, motion carried. 
Motion by Baker seconded by Scott to approve the minutes of the November meeting as 
received, motion carried. 

Treasurer report: 
Beginning balance 
Income 
Disbursements 
Withholding 
Balance 
Report filed for audit. 

124,231.34 
34,980.13 
16,123.95 
1,527.90 

141,559.62 

Scott will be attending a Treasurer's class in Mount Pleasant and she is checking into on line 
banking. 

Correspondence was read. A letter of resisnation from Jackie Thompson as assessor was read. 

Zoning Report was reviewed. 
Planning Commission will meet again on April 6, 2017 at 6:00 p.m . 

Fire Dept.: Fire Chief Tom Brock brought up the need to replace 7 MSA tanks in 2017 and 7 in 
2018.Five people will be taking medical training at a cost of $280.00 each. There were 13 runs 
for the month. 

Board reports: Wright had signs made for the Rec Area and ordered a sign for the Cemetery. 
Baker went over election recount information. 

Motion by Scott seconded by Thompson to approve and pay the bills, motion carried. 

Assessor: Motion by Scott seconded by Baker to appoint Thompson as the Assessor at same 
fee, motion carried. 
Scott will sit on the Fire Committee. 



01/21/2015 21:35 23155279300 lJUDYBAKER PAGE 02 

Solid Waste agreement was read with the amendment. Motion by Wright seconded by Scott to 
support the amendment to the Newaygo County Solid Waste agreement, motion carried. 

No further business to come before the meeting. meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m. 

Subject to Board approval 

Q~~"--~'-''..L~ ~~. \~ ,~t,l-·1 

~ '-' ,.)._~.x,.__,.__ ~\lJ.." , t..~\ L 

Judith Baker, Clerk 



December 13, 2016 

ASHLAND TOWNSHIP BOARD 
NEWAYGO COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Regular Meeting Marv Geers, Supervisor 
Margaret Goodmonson, Clerk 
Michelle McKlnlay Treasurer 
Gary Nelsen, Trustee 
Blll Butchart, Trustee 

MEETING DA TE December 13, 2016 ISSUE DATE December 191 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

1.) Supervisor Marv Geers called the regular meeting of the Ashland Township Board to order 
December 13, 2016 at 7:30 pm 

2.) The meeting was opened with an invocation by Margaret Goodmonson, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. · · 

3.) Roll was called and board members present were Supervisor Marv Geers, Clerk Margaret 
Goodmanson, Treasurer Michelle McKinlay, & Trustees Gary Nelsen and Bill Butchart .. 

4.) Guests present were, Shelly Boerema , Brenda Wilde and Frank Stable. 

5.) McKinlay read the Treasurers report and Butchart motioned to accept the report as read and 
Nelsen supported. AF /MC 

BILLS TO BE PAID 

6.) Goodmanson presented the outstanding bills for payment in December. Nelsen motioned to 
pay the bills as presented and Butchart supported the motion. AF/MC 

CONSENT AGENDA 

7.) After reviewing reports/minutes a motion was made by McKinlay and supported by Nelsen to 
approve the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of November 10, 2016 along with the 
Zoning Administrator's, Assessor's monthly report and Junk Enforcement report. AF/MC 

NEW BUSINESS: 

8.) Geers explained that there were several members of the Planning Commission whose terms 
will expire, as well as one ZBA member. Goodmanson made a motion to appoint John 
Podbreggar, Jim Wilde, Charlie McKinley and Diane Bullis to the PC, along with Steve 
Chesebro to both the PC and ZBA and Butchart supported the motion. AF/MC 

9.) Geers also explained that Dan Murray's appointment to the library board is due to expire. 
Geers has talked with him and he does wish to be appointed again. Butchart made 



,: . . ·./' { 

· .. . : ·. a motiort to r-eappQint Dan Murray as Ashland's representative to the GrantA(~:: qJ,s~~ 
Library and Mq(r~J~Yf.~litpp.~etU~ r,tlo.tt9J~\~F/MC'-:\ · .-·: ·:: ,. :_: .. · ·. /, · ' ':,\::{t :'·. ''.:·~-: · 

:, ~ ,• .. . ' ,: . , .. \ .... ' . .. ,: ·:. . . ., . . .. . •' . . . . ' 

10.) The ~~rd discussed. cf'ates :~dr thet Rig·u1~r._j owhship -~_oard Meetings for the ·2011..Ja~uary 
2,(l-t8A~utahar;t-tn9tfomed to approveVffi'eia'i1owlr\g 'date$ and Nelsen s.upported. AF/MC . 

· , - ! ,- · - · • . · .-. · ·i_. · ·· ,;F~~f~ary 14,. 2017 August 8, 2017 
·. _ ... ;- .. · _ .<~~!-~h 14, 2017 Se,ptember 12, 2017 

· _ .. ·-: _;· AP:~-1,l 11, 2017 . October 10, 2017 
May 9, 2017 NQvember 14, 2017 

< . J ,unif13~-:20·17 -· .· Decem~r .14,,-201,7 
: ·.)~:!y_,jl,_. iqj'i _:· : ... . . . Janµc;1ry ~. ?Pi8 . 

All meetings are hsld at 7:30pm at the Ashlan.d Township Hall 

1t,J ... 9~:P_r~s-~t~~: ,~n am~p~.rp~n~to .tlJ~·bCl~f~. ~g~rding:. N~w~Y99·: C9t..01.W,_SQ~id.,:\/¥~~te- . 
Management Plan; as requested by the Board ofPublic -Wor:ks .. T~i~;~~µJp a1JQ,w1,N~~ll~­
Gerber_to .legally haul waste to Wayne County, thus fulfilling their desire to_go ·landfill free . 

. _poq.~~pn,~~F.VTI~~,e .. a ·l'TJ9"ti9~ to .. ¥,P-[~~e ~~-Pr:9P,.osed .an::iend!11ent.a~~:t M,c.t(in1ay_ · . · · 
supported.AF/MC. . . . . . . 

12J-~~~rs, b[p~gh.t.Jt tg t~:~o.arq.~ a.tt.~qlic:,q .. th.E;t n~ed_- fc;>r a, :s~ca.nd,,srpalle,r tr~i.l~rJ~.r. t~~--~metery 
l~~f'.' n.l~Yl~f-,·~~~~i t~»-,-g~t_.q,up~~~Jo,pr~e~\rt0:-;tne, boarq:,·:;. . : ' . ' .. · . . . .. 

OTHER TOWNSHIP-BUSINESS:. ·-·; .. :· .... ' '·' ,, . ,• . . . 

13,:) . .,Frank .. Sta.ble read th~ annual crime ~eport.to,.the ooard. 
• ' • · ' • • • ' •• • • • ' · • , ' . • .,, ' · " > , • •• • ' ~ ' • • • ; ,• ' '• • 

14.) The Bridge Project on Colonial is on schedule tq_begin in 20·17. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
" : . '·: , ·, 

Meeting Adjourned ;_ . -. . .. · .. 

Account 
Gen 
Road 
:1'3-01·: 

Respectfully submitted, 

Income 
$37,993.33 
$ 1.44 
$ ', .. 2.-10 .. : ·: 

' ,,:. 

. c._c. tq: Marv Geers 
. Michell~ McKinlay 
-Gary Neisen 
·Bill Butchart 

Expense 
Gen $25,761 .00 
Road $ 487 .54 
13-P.1 . , . '$.2Q25c73 

Hang. P.ft_!iyer:~ ·•. 
- Office ih-!x>x · .. 

. Hand beiwerect t,y Geers 
: ·Hand Oellv.erietfby Geers 
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******•······································································· Village of Hesperia, Michigan 

Regular Council Meeting 
December 12, 2016 

***********************************************************•******•*********** 

Call to order: President Farber called this Regular Council Meeting to order at 7:30 pm in 
the Village Hall. Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Roll Call was taken with a quorum noted. 

Roll Call: Members Present: Doris Delong, Carol Kochans, Mike Farber, Joyce McDonald, 
Jayne Biggart, Arthur Raymond, Jim Smith 

Also present: Bill Rumsey, Clerk Miller, Bonnie Robinson, Eileen Nelson, David Huntley, Sally 
Kraley, Gail Tilley, Mari Ann McGahan, Chief Gibbs 

Set the Agenda: 
Motion by Kochans/Seconded by Delong (motion CARRIED) 
Motion made to ADD "Approve President's Committees". It was added under "New Business" 
Yeas: Delong, Kochans, Smith, Biggart, Raymond, McDonald, Farber 
Nays- 0 

Motion by Raymond/Seconded by Biggart (motion CARRIED) 
A motion was made to approve the minutes of the regular Council Meeting of November 14, 
2016. 
Yeas: Raymond, Delong, Kochans, McDonald, Smith, Biggart, Farber 

Motion by Delong/Seconded McDonald (motion CARRIED) 
A motion was made to approve the invoices for the month of November 2016 in the amount of 
$46,027.55 
Yeas - Smith, McDonald, Kochans, Delong, Biggart, Raymond, Farber 
Nays - 0 

Announcements/Correspondence: Christmas card from State Representative Bumstead. 
Informational letter from Fremont Area Community Foundation. 

Committee Reports: 

Dams, Parks, Civic & Recreation: 
Streets, Sidewalks & Equipment: 
Water & Sewer: 

Finance, Budget & Insurance: Delong remarked on the Village's finances. She reported the 
bills were a little high this month due to a Bond payment that was due, also remarked on the 
attorney bill. 
Ordinance: 
Ambulance: 



Grants, Fund Raising, Chamber-Interact: 
Personnel & Salary: . 

Village Hall, Village Facilities & lighting: 

Technology, Website, Cable TV: 

Police & Zonin..&_B~ports: Chief Gibbs submitted his report. There were 65 total calls, 18 
reports, 2 juvenile arrests, 4 criminal arrests, 6 warrants, 4 traffic citations, l parking citation, 3 
traffic accidents. 
3 Zoning permits, 4 site plan reviews, 3 Zoning Violations 

PRESIDENT/DPW Report: 
Village received it's Groundwater Discharge Permit 

Unfinished Business: 

New Business: 
Village Treasurer McGahan sought approval from Council for the Village to begin accepting 
credit/debit cards for water/sewer bill and tax payments. A company called "Point & Pay" was 
recommended by BS&A and IT Right. They are both familiar with the company and the 
software we use coincides with their software. 
Motion McDonald/Seconded by Kochans (motion CARRIED) 
Motion to implement "Point & Pay" to accept water/sewer and tax payments. 
Yeas - Kochans, Delong, Raymond, Smith, McDonald, Biggart, Farber 
Nays: -0-

President Farber reported on a water/sewer issue, he will be meeting with the attorney on 
Wednesday, then turning it over to the Water/Sewer Committee for review and their 
recommendation to Council at the next regular Council meeting. 

Council received a letter from Newaygo County Board of Public Works asking for their approval 
of amending the Newaygo County So!id Wa5te Management Plan to allo•.iv export of solid waste 
to Wayne County. 
Motion by Raymond/Seconded by McDonald (motion CARRIED) 
Motion to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to allow 
export of solid waste to Wayne County. 
Yeas - Raymond, Kochans, Delong, Smith, Biggart, McDonald, Farber 
Nays-0 

"Approve and Adopt the President's Committee Appointments" which have been submitted to 
Council members - there was NO MOTION to do so. 

Public Comment - 1 Minute 
Sally Kraley was present to report the Banners for the Downtown have been ordered, she asked 
to be placed on the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 



She also asked ifthe electric plug-ins in the Webster Park could be "beefed up" at some point 

to allow for additional Christmas lights. 

Miscellaneous: 

Adjournment: 
Motion by Raymond, seconded by McDonald to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 8:10 pm. 

cz9ct;(f bo1i~u.u 
Peggy/ MiYler 
Hesperia Village Clerk 

"Village of Hesperia is an equal opportunity provider and employer'' 



****************************************************************************** 
Village of Hesperia, Michigan 

Regular Council Meeting 
December 12, 2016 

****************************************************************************** 
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the Village Hall. Pledge of Allegiance was recited. Roll Call was taken with a quorum noted. 

Roll Call: Members Present: Doris Delong, Carol Kochans , Mike Farber, Joyce McDonald, 
Jayne Biggart, Arthur Raymond, Jim Smith 

Also present: Bill Rum·sey; Clerk Miller, Bonnie Robinson, Eileen Nelson, David Huntley, Sally 
l<raley, Gail Tilley, Mari Ann McGahan, Chief Gibbs 

Set the Agenda: 
Motion by Kochans/Seconded by Delong (motion CARRIED) 
Motion made to ADD "Approve President's Committees". It was added under "New Business" 
Yeas: Delong, Kochans, Smith, Biggart, Raymond, McDonald, Farber 
Nays- 0 

Motion by Raymond/Seconded by Biggart (motion CARRIED) 
A motion was made to approve the minutes of the regular Council Meeting of November 14, 
2016. 
Yeas: Raymond, Delong, Kochans, McDonald, Smith, Biggart, Farber 

Motion by Delong/Seconded McDonald (motion CARRIED) 
A motion was made to approve the invoices for the month of November 2016 in the amount of 
$46,027.55 
Yeas -Smith, McDonald, Kochans, Delong, Biggart, Raymond, Farber 
Nays-0 

Announcements/Correspondence: Christmas card from State Representative Bumstead. 
Informational letter from Fremont Area Community Foundation. 

Committee Reports: 
Dams, Parks, Civic & Recreation: 
Streets, Sidewalks & Equipment: 
Water & Sewer: 
Finance, Budget & Insurance: Delong remarked on the Village's finances. She reported the 
bills were a little high this month due to a Bond payment that was due, also remarked on the 
attorney bill. 
Ordinance: 

Ambulance: 



Grants, Fund Raising, Chamber-Interact: 
Personnel & Salary: . 
Village Hall, Village Facilities & Lighting: 
Technology, Website, Cable TV: 

Police & Zoning Reports: Chief Gibbs submitted his report. There were 65 total calls, 18 
rep~rts, i juv~nile' arrests, 4 criminal arrests, 6 warrants, 4 traffic citations, 1 parking citation, 3 
traffic accidents. 
3 Zoning permits, 4 site plan reviews, 3 Zoning Violations 

PRESIDENT/DPW Rep~rt: 
Village received it's Groundwater Discharge Permit 

Unfinished Business: 

New Business: 
Village Treasurer McGahan sought approval from Council for the Village to begin accepting 
credit/debit cards for water/sewer bill and tax payments. A company called "Point & Pay" was 
recommended by BS&A and IT Right. They are both familiar with the company and the 
software we use coincides with their software. 
Motion McDonald/Seconded by Kochans (motion CARRIED) 
Motion to implement "Point & Pay" to accept water/sewer and tax payments. 
Yeas - Kochans, Delong, Raymond, Smith, McDonald, Biggart, Farber 
Nays: -0-

President Farber reported on a water/sewer issue, he will be meeting with the attorney on 
Wednesday, then turning it over to the Water/Sewer Committee for review and their 
recommendation to Council at the next regular Council meeting. 

Council received a letter from Newaygo County Board of Public Works asking for their approval 
of amending the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management P!an to allo•;v export of so.lid waste 
to Wayne County._ 
Motion by Raymond/Seconded by McDonald ·· - . (motion CARRIED) i: 

[ 

Motion to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to allow 
export of solid waste to Wayne County. 
Yeas - Raymond, Kochans, Delong, Smith, Biggart, McDonald, Farber 
Nays - 0 " · -

"Approve and Adopt the President's Committee Appointments" which have been submitted to 
Council members - there was NO MOTION to do so. 

Public Comment - 1 Minute 
Sally Kraley was present to report the Banners for the Downtown have been ordered, she asked 
to be placed on the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 



She also asked if the electric plug-ins in the Webster Park could be "beefed up" at some point 
to allow for additional Christmas lights. 

Miscellaneous: 

Adjourn.ment: 
Motion by Raymond, seconded by McDonald to adjourn. Meeting adjourned at 8:10 pm. 

o;;iullysur/1~ 
Peggyt~, 
Hesperia Village Clerk 

"Village of Hesperia is an equal opportunity provider and employer" 

( 
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APPROVED MINUTES 
EVERETT TOWNSHIP 
REGULAR MEETING 

December 20, 2016 

1. Call to Order: Supervisor Judy Maike called the meeting to order at 1 :05 p.m. 
2. Roll call: Present: Judy Maike, Supervisor; Brandy Fleming, Treasurer; Curt Chaffee, Trustee. 

Richard Long, Trustee; Pamela Chaffee, Clerk. Also Attending: Jim Maike, County Commissioner; 
Jeffrey Craigmyle, Transfer Station Officer; Deputy Ray Lundeen, Newaygo County Sheriff's 
Department 

3. Pledge of Allegiance. 
4. Agenda Approval: Motion by Trustee Curt Chaffee to accept afenda with the following additions: 

Unfinished Business: E. Don Clary- Recognize his service. 2" by Trustee Richard Long, all ayes. 
Motion carried. 

5. Approval of Board Minutes of November 15 & 28, 2016: Motion by Trustee Richard Long to 
accept the November 15 & 28 minutes with the correction of two typos. Second by Treasurer 
Brandy Fleming. Ayes all. Motion carried. 

6. Public Comment: none. 
7. Bills & Financial Transactions 

A. Treasurer's Financial Report - Treasurer Brandy Fleming reported on the General 
Checking $274,867.48 & Tax Account $1897.83, report accepted and filed. 

B. Clerk presents Township Bills - Clerk Pamela Chaffee presented bills and payroll totaling: 
$13,102.29 for the Board's approval. Motion by Trustee Richard Long supported by 
Treasurer Brandy Fleming to approve payment of the December 2016 bills, all ayes. Motion 
carried. 

C. Budget Review: Clerk Pamela Chaffee thanked the Board for their patience and asked them 
to wait another month to address the budget concerns. The members of the Board agreed to 
wait one or two months for the new clerk to get a better handle on the accounts of the Township 
before we make any budget adjustments. 

8. Unfinished Business: 
A. Fund Number for Building Authority. The clerk informed the board that the fund number for 
additional payments on Everett Township's portion of the bond debt of the White Cloud Area Fire 
District Building Authority is 101-279-965. Trustee Chaffee asked the Board to consider paying an 
extra amount on the bond loan to save taxpayer dollars in interest over the life of the bond debt. 
The clerk offered to contact Lora Kalkofen, Chairperson of the WCAFDBA to ask if we could make 
the payment directly to the bond holder, Choice One bank, thus avoiding any delay that may occur 
should we make the payment through the Building Authority. Tabled until next regular meeting. 
B. Hall Cleaning: The Board agreed to continue as we are. To be reviewed if any changes need to 
be made. 
C. Regular Township Hours: After a short discussion, it was decided to revisit this at a Spring 
meeting. 
D. Response to Ad - Applicants for Planning Com and Board of Review: Supervisor Maike 
supplied the Board with a chart of the vacancies currently needing to be filled which included not 
only the Planning Commission and the Board of Review, but also the COLA Board and the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. The Board asked that current applicants to the Planning Commission, as well as 
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sidents that may be interested, be asked to attend the next (January) Board meeting. 
aike had received two applicants for the two positions on the COLA Board, both 
tt Township residents. Supervisor Maike made the motion to appoint James 

Breinling an ane Witter to represent Everett Township on the COLA Board with Supervisor 
Maike and Trustee Long as alternates. Support by Clerk Pamela Chaffee. Ayes all. Motion passed. 
There is still one vacancy on both the Board of Review and the Zoning Board of Appeals. After a 
short discussion it was decided that, as there is no meeting of either board in the very near future, 
we would continue to seek applicants and bring this up again at the January Township Board 
meeting. 

9. New Business 

.ee Curt Chaffee will either purchase or compose an appropriate Thank-You 
n's many years of service to our township. 

A. Memo from Dale Twing, Drain Commissioner re: Solid Waste Planning: Supervisor 
Judy Maike made the motion to approve amending the Solid Waste Management Plan to 
allow the export of solid waste from Newaygo County to Wayne County. Second by Richard 
Long. Ayes all. Motion passed. Clerk Chaffee will notify Drain Commissioner Twing. 

B. Zoning Administrator's resignation - rescind?: Supervisor Maike had been in contact 
with Bob Hall who agreed to continue to work for our township as Zoning Administrator 
under the terms agreed to at the last Board meeting. Trustee Curt Chaffee made the motion 
to rescind the acceptance of Bob Hall's resignation as it had been presented at our last 
meeting. Support by Clerk Pamela Chaffee. Ayes all, motion passed. Also, as part of our 
terms agreed to at our last Board meeting, the motion was made by Supervisor Maike with 
support by Trustee Chaffee to hire Mike Mohr as "Deputy Zoning Administrator" to assist 
Bob Hall as an enforcement officer while training as Zoning Administrator as Bob Hall has 
very limited time to provide his services to our township. Ayes all, motion passed. 
Supervisor Maike will compose an official letter to Mike Mohr. 

C. Planning & Zoning News $185 per year: Supervisor Judy Maike made the motion to 
continue to subscribe to the Planning and Zoning News, supported by Clerk Pamela Chaffee. 
Ayes all, motion passed. 

D. Township Standard Operating Procedures - Hearings and Public Meetings: Supervisor 
Judy Maike shared a printed suggestion of Township SOPs - to be discussed next month. 

10. Officer's Reports 
a. Zoning Official/Planning Co./ZBA: The Planning Commission is ready to publish the ad to 

update the zoning for Salvage/Junk Yards. That hearing is scheduled to take place at the 
January meeting. (update: there were not enough days to provide the required public notice 
prior to the meeting, so this will be scheduled for the February meeting). 

b. County Commissioner: Commissioner Jim Maike Jr reported that there are changes to the 
County Board of Commissioners. Larry Lethom, who had much valuable knowledge and 
has had a positive influence on the County, is being replaced by Vern Willett. Steve 
Johnson will be replaced by Brian Kolk. The county parks are closed for the season, but are 
running in the black. Health care is still an issue for the County but they are hopeful that the 
problem will be solved with the changes coming with our new POTUS. 

c. Transfer Station: Jeffrey Craigmyle reported that the transfer station is going well but we 
only filled two dumpsters last week~end. Fees were discussed and Supervisor Maike 
suggested removing one of the dumpsters to reduce costs while our use is down. 
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d. Supenrisor: Supervisor Judy Maike asked the board members to have something ready at 
the next meeting to submit to the newsletter. She also updated the bo~d ori the new 
agreement made with AT&T that should save our township some expense. the new plan 
will cost us $25 a line for a monthly total of under $100, AND we may get some credit from 
AT&T for past payments. We will have to ask them to review our plan again in September 
of 2017. Supervisor Maike asked the Clerk to watch for the next bill to check that the 
changes are in place. She also asked that the Board review a new Joint Fire Board 
Ordinance and that it be added to next month's agenda. Ralph Zimmerman and Supervisor 
Judy Maike are the Everett Township's current representatives on the Fire Board. 
Supervisor Maike made the motion to accept Trustee Richard Long as our alternate to that 
Board. Supported by Clerk Pamela Chaffee. Ayes all, passed. 

e. Clerk: The new Everett Township Clerk, Pamela Chaffee, thanked the Board for their 
patience and especially Treasurer Brandy Fleming for her help. She handed out copies of 
the Newaygo County Directory that will need to be changed to reflect the new Board 
members and asked that everyone add or change any information to what they would like 
printed in that public directory and get the copy back to her. 

f. Treasurer: Treasurer Brandy Fleming told the Board that we had received a bill from the 
Drain Commissioner that had gone to her attention which was not for collected taxes but is 
literally a bill to the township. She said that bill should have come to the clerk's attention to 
be paid. 

g. Trustees: Welcome new Trustee Richard Long. 

11. Public Comment: none 

12. Adjournment was made at 2:35 p.m. 

Draft Minutes respectfully submitted by Pam Chaffee, Clerk 
01 /15/2017 



DAYTON TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 

DECEMBER 8, 2016 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER BY CLERK 5TROVEN AT 7:05 

2. PLEDGE LED BY STROVEN 

3. ROLL CALL: FRENS ABSENT WITH NOTICE. STROVEN,KAASTRA,SPARKS AND KUNNEN PRESENT. 

4. MOTION BY KUNNEN/KAASTRA TO APPROVE AGENDA. PASSED 

5. MOTION BY KAASTRA/SPARKS TO APPROVE THE NOVEMBER MINUTES. PASSED 

6. MOTION BY SPARKS/KAASTRA TO APPROVE THE TREASURER'S REPORT SUBJECT TO AUDIT. 

PASSED 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT; KEN HAGGART FREMONT PUBLIC SCHOOL SUPERINTENDENT JUST 

VISITING AND OBSERVING. 

8. ZONING ADMINISTRATOR REPORT REVIEWED. LANCE EXPLAINED THERE IS THE POSSIBILITY OF A 

REFERMENDUM VOTE IN SHERIDAN CHARTER TOWNSHIP REGARDING THE 425 AGREEMENT 

9. BOR WILL MEET DECEMBER 13, 2016. 

10. WEBSITE UPDATE BY KUNNEN; SUGGESTION TO USE OUR PERSONAL EMAILS RATHER THAN THE 

TOWNSHIP EMAIL. 

11. FREMONT COMMUNITY JOINT PLANNING COMMISION MINUTES REVIEWED 

12. FREMONT COMMUNITY REC AUTHORITY; RANDY PELL RESIGNED, FRENS IS FINDING A 

REPLACEMENT. NO REPORT FROM KAREN DIEKEMA. 

13. CORRESPONDENCE: NOTHING TO REVIEW 

14. MOTION BY SPARKS/KAASTRA TO PAY THE BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $7373,82. PASSED. 

15. OLD BUSINESS: NCEDO, NOTHING FURTHER FROM THEM. LANCE CONTACTED BLAKE AND 

VOICED CONSERN BY BOARDS FOR MORE INFO.BLAKE COMMENTED MORE INFO WILL BE 

COMING. 

16. NEW BUSINESS; GENE BILLINGSLEY HAS BEEN CONTACTED TO DO SNOWPLOWING FOR THE 

WINTER SEASON. 

17. MOTION BY SPARKS/KAASTRA TO REAPPOINT JOAN KOKX, DANIEL PELL, AND STAN 

ROMANOWSKI TO THE BOR. PASSED 

18. MOTION BY STROVEN.KAASTRA TO REAPPOINT GLEN SPARKS TO THE JOINT ZONING BOARD OF 

APPEALS. PASSED 

19. MOTION BY SPARKS/KAASTRA TO APPROVE AMENDING THE NEWAYGO COUNTY SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT PLAN TO ALLOW EXPORT OF SOLID WASTE TO WAYNE COUNTY. PASSED 

20. NO BUDGET CHANGES FOR 2017-2018 AT THIS TIME. 

21. TABLED NEW CALENDAR FOR 2017-2018 TO JANUARY MEETING. 

22. NO PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS. 

23. MOTION TO ADJOURN AT 7:35 BY KAASTRA/SPARKS. 

24. MEETING ADJOURNED. 
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MINUTES 
Regular Meeting of Neway20 City Council 

December 12, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Fedell called the meeting to order at 7;01 PM at City Hall located at 28 N. State Road, Newaygo MI 49337. 

Presiding officer: Mayor Fedel! 
Secretary: Clerk, Kim Biegalle 

Roll Call: Present: Day, Fedel!, Hikade, Johnson, Palmiter, Santana, Walerc2yk 
Absent: NIA 

Motion by Hikade, support by Johnson m approv~ the agenda as presented. AIF/MC 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by Day, support by Walerczyk to approve the Consent Agenda which includes the regular council minutes from 

11/14/16 and accounts payable of $25,155.26, $35,721.83, $37,722.71, $25,753.13, $13,188.30, $982.68 and 
$2,353.47. R.oll Call: Yeas: Day, Fedell, Hikade, Johnson, Palmiter, Santana, Walerczyk Absent: None Nay: 
None. CARRIED 

The following resolutions were also approved by Consent Agenda with Resolution 16-30 removed and to be discussed 
as a separate item. Motion by Hikade, support by Palmiter to separate Resolution 16-30 out for discussion. 
Motion carded by Day, Hikade, Johnson, Palmiter, Santana and Walerc.eyk; opposed by Fedell: 
A. Motion to approve Re.9olution 16·23 which re.appoints Wayne Fetterley, Ron Wight and Lee Black to 

the Planning Commission for three year terms 
B. Motion to approve Re.9olution 16-24 which re-appoints Morgan Hein2man and appojnts Mark Guzniczak and 

Aaron Leesbna to the TIPA/LDFA Board for four year terms and appoints Kelly Tinkham to fill a vacancy 
through 12/3 l /l 7 

C. Motion to approve Resolution 16-25 re-appointing Ed Fedell and Jane Parsley and appointin~ Teresa Cooper 
for three year terms to the PSD (Principal Shopping District) Board 

D. Motion to approve Resolution 16-26 which re-appoints Jon Sr.hneider to the Building Authority for a four 
year tenn 

E. Motion to approve Resolution 16-27 which re-1\ppoints At1 Westcott, Wayne Fetterley and Bob Siders to the 
Boa.rd of Review for three year tenns 

G, Motion to approve Resolution 16-28 which re-appoints Art We~tcott to the Election Commission for a four 
year te11n and appoints Mike King r.o fill a vacancy tluough 12/31/18 

H. Motion to approve Resolution 16-29 which appoints Mike Burns to the Newaygo Area District Library Board 
for a four year tenn 

I. Motion to approve Resolution 16-31 which sets the regular dates for Council, Planning and TlF A for the 
2017 calendar year 

Motion by Johnson, support by Day to approve Resolution 16-30 which appoints members to the newly fonned NEDO 
(Newaygo Economic Development Office) Board for staggered terms. Motion carried by Day, Fedoll, Johnson, 
Palmiter, Santana and Walerczyk; opposed by Hikade. Council members Hikado and Palmiter had several 
questions regarding the NEDO Board and its members. They asked if there were by-laws, who the chairperson 
is/will be, who are some of these board members and who will be providing rhe Council the boaTd minutes and 
infonnation about this board's meetings. Fedell stated that the Mayor appoints board members with confimiation 
of City Council and there are currently no by-laws, just the ordinance and the chair will be decided at the first 

MINUTES: 12/12/16 
Page 1 of3 
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meeting. Hikade has concerns about making sure the taxpayers are represented on this board. Santana asked 
who this board will report to; Fedell stated ultimately Council, just as every other committee and board. Johnson 
stated that he is on this board and will represent the taxpayer and community. Fedell went over every board 
member and gave a brief description of them to Council. Schneider stated that the minutes will be passed on to 
the Council packets but these meetings are open to the public and anyone can attend; recommended these 
mer:nbers be appointed. 

RESERVED TIME 
Patrick Mutchler of Brickley DeLong presented the City's audit report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. He went 

through the audit book, hit some highUghcs and stated that the City received a cloan opinion. Stated Schneidei­
did an great job on the "Management's Discussion and Analysis" portion of the audit and the City staff also do a 
good job and are very helpful to the audit team. 

COMMITI'EE REPORTS 

MANAGERS REPORT 
Schneider mentioned that he would have a document fi·om the City attomey next month regarding the fire district and 

truck purchase. The document will allow for some flexibility if necessary. Regarding the wastewater treatment 
plant, Schneider stated that the City has to do a new full permit application and not a modified one. Going to try 
to get a permit for year round discharge and hopefully be able to rate the plant at a high.er capacity. He is 
currently working on a USDA grant. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Ron Wight, DPW Superintendent, stated that his department has the Christmas decorations up and is working on snow 

plowing. 
Wert-Carr of The Stream gave an update on the ~ade grant they are assisting some of the downtown businesses with 

and talked about Sui Generis and their new store opening. She also mentioned that there was some interest in Sui 
Generis' previous location, some interest in some available space on the first floor of The Stream as well as some 
events happening at The Stream by the Newaygo Middle School students; entrepreneur club. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 
Motion by Santana, support by Palmiter to approve amending the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to 

allow export of solid waste to Wayne County. Council members Johnson and Hikade abstained from the vote as 
Nestle-Gerber is their employer. Alf/MC 

Motion by Hikac1e, support by Palmiter to approve the donation agreement for the prnperty on Fremont Street/E. M-82. 
AIF/MC Schneider stated there was no change to the document which had been presented to Council previously. 
He has a signed document from the property owner and just needed Council's final approval. 

Motion by Wale:rczyk, support by Santana to approve the "Notice of Intent" to apply to Rural Development for a grant 
and/or loan. This would be published in the paper jn December, a resolution would be presented to Council in 
January and then there is a 45 day citizen response waiting period before process continues. AIF/MC Schnelder 
explained that the amount requested doesn't necessarily mean it is the amount the City comm.its to. This amount 
fixes the linor as well as other items that would be for future expansion. Johnson asked if the City gets a loan, if 
rates would be raised. Schneider responded that rates would need to be raised. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
Day mentioned he had seen that Verizon may be putting a tower down Croton Road and wondered if the City knew 

anything; Scbneido- responded that he had not. 
Walerczyk thanked Fedell for the explanation of the board members for Resolution 16-30. 
Hikade stated he wants NEDO to be succes~ful, wants to see growth in the City; he will wait and see what happens. 

Wished eveiyone a Merry Christmas. 
Palmiter stated to Schneider and Cicy staff th.at they did a good job on the audit. 
Johnson said that the Fremont Police Department have an active shooter class and asked if the Newaygo Police were 

aware; Sgt. Walerczyk stated Newaygo Police already does this class and offers to area businesses. Johnson 
stated it may be a good class fo1· the Council to go through. 

Santana stated rhat his church has done a similar class and found it very helpful. Loves that he can ski in town and 
appreciates the DPW for their plowing. 

MINUTES: 12/12/16 
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Apr. 5. 2017 11:30AM 

Schnoidet felt the City was ending the year on a good note. 
Fedell thanked tho Council and officers for their service. 

Motion by Hikade, supported by Johnson to adjourn tl\e meeting. AIF/MC 

No. 3274 P. 3 
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BRIDGETON TOWNSHIP BOARD 
December 12, 2016 Minutes 

Sµpervisor Alvesteffer called meeting to order at 7:00 PM Board members 
present; Alveste:ffer, Schuiteman, Drake. Holmes and Dore. Absent: none 
Fifteen others were present. 
Meeting was opened by prayer and pledge to the flag 
Drake moved and Dore seconded to approve the agenda as presented. 
CARRIED. 
S¢huiteman moved and Alvesteffer seconded to approve November 2016 
bqard meeting minutes. CARRIED. 
Sd,huiteman moved and Dore seconded to approve consent agenda as 
pr~sented. CARRIED. 
Alf esteffer moved and Schuiteman seconded to appoint Janis Barnhard to 
Planning commission board for a three year term. CARRIED. 
Alyesteffer moved and Dore seconded to appoint Donna Matteson, Dennis 
Ha:wkey and Randy Erb, if he can legally, to the Board of Review for two 
years term. CARRIED. 

p, 1 

A]vesteffer moved and Schuiteman seconded to appoint Mike Reagan to the 
Zoiling Board of Appeals for a three year term. CARRIED. 
Al~esteffer moved and Holmes seconded to approve a amendment for Public 
Wo;rks for Newaygo County Solid Waste to allow export to Wayne Cowity. 
CAiRRIED 
Al v.este:ffer will check on bids for Main St from the road commission. 
Alviesteffer will check out prices to hire someone to move the safe and a file 
cabinet to hal1. 
Alvesteffer moved and Schuiteman seconded to pay bills of $1 1,998.79 
CARRIED. 
AJv~steffer moved and Drake seconded to have Dave VanOver plow our hall 
parking lot at 4 inches of snow for $50. each time. CARRIED. 
Schuiteman moved and Drake seconded to upgrade supervisor laptop and 
printer, software etc for up to $1000. CARRIED. 
We v;.'ill have a work session on Jan. 21st at 9;00 AM for all boards and 
comhlittees etc. for our plans and goals for the new year. 
Schuiteman moved and Dore to adjourn meeting at 8:25 PM. 

CA~ED. , r: '. , 
, _ ·@t2'4 ,---::~,___,, '.f/ ~<c:../ ~ 

Carolyn Drake, Bridgeton Township Clerk 



A. Meeting Called to Order 

City of White Cloud 
12 N. Charles Street 

White Cloud, Michigan 49349 

Regular Meeting Minutes for 
December 5, 2016 

The Regular Meeting of the White Cloud City Council was held on the above date at the White 
Cloud City Offices. Mayor Donald Barnhard called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
1. Roll Call 

Council Members Present: Mayor Donald Barnhard and Mayor Pro-Tern Charles Chandler 
Councilmembers: Henn Becker, Richard Dault, Jeffrey Murchison and Cassie Stewart (7:03PM) 
Members Absent: None 
Staff Present: City Manager/Clerk Lora Kalkofen, Sergeant Dan Evans and Deputy 
Clerk/Treasurer Hilary Davis 
Public in Attendance: Carl Sprout, Orrie and Pat Ebenstein, Candice Dault, and Laura Priest 

2. Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Murchison, Seconded by Becker to approve the December 5, 2016 agenda as presented. 

Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

3. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
Pastor Jeffery Murchison gave the invocation and Mayor Barnhard led in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

B. Public Comment: - Received 

C. Approval of Minutes 
1. Approval of the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of November 21, 2016 

Minutes of the City of White Cloud City Council meeting held on November 21 , 2016 were 
presented to Council for consideration. 

Motion by Chandler Seconded by Dault to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes for the White 
Cloud City Council meeting held on November 21, 2016 as presented. 

Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

D. Authorization to Pay Bills & Payroll Wages 
A listing of invoices and payroll was presented to Council for discussion and consideration. 

Motion by Murchison, Seconded by Becker to approve the payment of invoices and payroll wages 
totaling $60,129.88. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Becker, Dault, Murchison, Chandler, Priest, Stewart and 
Barnhard 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 
Abstained None 

Motion Carried 



E. Department Reports 
1. Police Department Report 
Chief Mendham submitted a Police Department Activity Report for the month of November 20 I 6. 
Motion by Becker, Seconded by Dault to accept the Police Department Report as presented. 

Vote: _Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

2. Treasurer's Report 
Treasurer Becky Freeman submitted a Revenue/Expenditure Report on activities through the end of 
November 2016. 
Motion by Dault, Seconded by Becker to accept the Treasurer's Report as presented. 

Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

F. City Manager Report 
The City Manager/Clerk Lora Kalkofen discussed the following items with Council: 

• 2016 General Election Recount - On November 30, 2016 Jill Stein from the Green Party 
requested a Presidential Recount in Michigan. In Michigan, the cost of a recount is $125 per 
precinct. A statewide recount could cost Michigan counties over $4 million. 
Newaygo County has decided to start our county recount on Monday December 5, 2016. The 
deadline to have the results to the State of Michigan is December 12, 2016. 

• City Server - Riverside lntemet came in to evaluate the City's server for the addition of the 
cemetery program and found that the server storage capacity is about 97% full. The City does 
not have the ability to add an additional drive for more operating space. The operating system 
is Windows 2008 and that version is not supported for additional updates. The City has 
cleaned out all duplicate files to lighten the drive. The server was purchased in 20 IO and the 
City's has had a few issues in the last year due to file storage. Currently, the City is operating 
with two drives. The unit.will need to be replaced within 4 to 6 months. 
Kalkofen has called the surrounding cities to see who they use for server upgrades. EL T came 
in to give the City a bid on replacement and Kalkofen will get bids from at least two 
additional companies. 
An estimate for replacement and installation would be in the range of $5,000 to $7,000 for a 
similar unit with at least double the capacity and expansion capabilities. 

• MEDC Community Development - Mark Guzniczak from Right Place will be working 
with the community to be fully certified as a Redevelopment Ready Community (RRC). This 
is a bid undertaking that could have a very positive effect on the community's development. 

• Employee Health Insurance - Kalkofen has been monitoring the trends of employee health 
insurance costs and so far, it looks like the City might receive a 4% to 6% increase at renewal 
time. 

• Pension Plan - Kalkofen presented to Council an article from MERS regarding the possible 
pension changes being considered during lame duck. She stated that she will keep Council 
updated on this issue. This could have devastating effects to municipalities. 

• Rural Task Force - Kalkofen presented Council with a spreadsheet showing the State and 
Federal dollars being spent in the City's region on roads. 

• ODA & Loe.al Community Stabilization Fund - The Downtown Development Authority 
received an $11,573.50 payment for lost personal property tax. 

• OPW Truck - The new DPW truck was delivered on Tuesday. The old truck will be cleaned 
and put up for sale. 
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• Fireboard Agreement - Kalkofen presented a semi-final draft of the Fireboard Agreement 
to Council. The townships have one more meeting to finalize the agreement before presenting 
the final agreement to each of the separate townships for approval. 

• 2017 Council Meeting Dates - Kalkofen asked the Council what meeting dates would work 
for them and gave them a calendar stating all of the committee meetings and holidays. She 
asked Council for direction on what to do about meeting in January due to the holidays taking 
the normal meeting dates. After some discussion Council decided that January 9, 2017 would 
work for a January meeting date. They also agreed to the first Monday of the month meeting 
be held at 7PM and the third Monday of the month being held at 6PM. 

Motion by Murchison, Seconded by Dault to approve the Manager's Report as presented. 
Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

G. U nfinishcd Business 
1. City Projects 

a. City Owned Property, Solid Waste Recycling and Road Repairs - No action 
2. Project Funding 

a. City Income Tax., Millage Proposal, Special Assessment - No action. 

H. New Business 
I. Police Department Equipmenit 

Sergeant Evans presented Council with a quote from Pro Comm Inc. to up-fit the Police 
Department's Chevy Tahoe so that it can be used for patrol. Currently, the Tahoe does not have a 
cage and all of the lighting is not installed. Evans brought it to the Council's attention that during 
the day the lights were hard to see on the cruiser due to the limited amount installed. Also, it is a 
hazard to have any suspect in the back of the vehicle with no cage to protect the officers. The 
quote for all installs totaled $4,465.50. 

Motion by Chandler, Seconded by Becker to approve the up-fit of the Chevy Tahoe for the Police 
Department. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Becker, Dault, Murchison, Chandler, Priest, Stewart and 
Barnhard 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 
Abstained None 

Motion Carried 

2. Resolution 2016-20 Allowing Export of Solid Waste to Wayne County 
Council was presented with Resolution 2016-20 allowing Newaygo County to export solid waste 
to Wayne County. 

Motion by Dault, Seconded by Chandler to approve Resolution 2016-20 allowing the export of solid 
waste to Wayne County. 

Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

3. Open Appointments 
Council was presented with a listing of appointments that were available on the City's boards and 
committees. The list also showed members whose tenns were due to end December 3 I st of this 
year. Those people willoe contacted to see if they would like to serve another term. Kalkofen 
asked Council for recommendations to fill the open positions. 
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4. Personnel Change Recommendations 
a. Contract for Chief Position 

The contract with the City of Grant for Police Chief requests a 90-day cancellation. The 
City has received a letter of cancellation from the City of Grant with a request to waive 
the cancellation clause in the contract. 

Motion by Becker, Seconded by Dault to accept the cancellation of contract with the City of Grant 
and to waive the 90-day clause. 

Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

b. Chief of Police Position 
Due to ChiefMendham's promotion to Sherriff the Chief of Police position will be open 
in the Police Department. The Personnel Committee made the recommendation for 
Sergeant Evans to take over the Chief of Police position. Sergeant Evans has worked with 
the Police Department full-time since 2014. He has had great reviews from the 
community. The same recommendation has come from Chief Mendham and City 
Manager Kalkofen. 

Motion by Becker, Seconded by Stewart to appoint Sergeant Evans to Chief of Police starting 
December 31 , 2016. 

Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

c. Police Depar,tment Staffing 
With the Chief of Police position change and the contract with the City of Grant ending 
the Police Department is having staffing issues. Most of the part-time staff have jobs in 
other precincts and scheduling has become difficult. Kalkofen presented Council with 
two options to help with the staffing issues in the Police Department. 
The first option is to have a full-time Chief of Police with part-time officers filling the 
remaining hours. The second option is to have a full-time Chief of Police with a full-time 
officer and using a lesser amount of part-time officers. 
The Personnel Committees recommendation is to have a Chief of Police, full-time officer 
and use a lesser amount of part-time officers. 

Motion by Priest, Seconded by Dault to approve the hire of a full-time police officer. 
Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Becker, Dault, Murchison, Chandler, Priest, Stewart and 

Barnhard 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 
Abstained None 

Motion Carried 
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d. School Liaison Officer 
City Manager Kalkofen was presented with a request for a wage increase for consideration 
for the School Liaison. Kalkofen was able to work out a 20-cent increase within the budget. 
This increase would solely be on the City's cost since it was not worked into the contract 
with White Cloud Public Schools. The Personnel Committee recommended doing the 
increase. 

Motion by Becker, Seconded by Priest to approve a 20-cent wage increase for the School Liaison. 
Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Becker, Dault, Murchison, Chandler, Priest, Stewart and 

Barn.hard 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 
Abstained None 

Motion Carried 

e. Zoning Administrator 
Kalkofen did some research in the surrounding areas to find out how much the pay their 
Zoning Administrator. The City is in the middle of the range of wages. The current Zoning 
Administrator. Robert Hall, has been with the City since 2007. With the new Rental 
Ordinance about to come into play, the Zoning Administrator will have an increased work 
load. The recommendation from the Personnel Committee and the City Manager is to raise 
the Zoning Administrator's pay $1 .57 an hour. 

Motion by Dault, Seconded by Chandler to approve a $1 .57 wage increase for the Zoning 
Administrator. 

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Dault, Murchison, Chandler, Priest, Stewart and Barnhard 
Nays: Becker 
Absent: None 
Abstained None 

L. Public Comment: - Received 

J. Council Member Comments - Received 

K. Committee, Board and Authority Minutes 
1. Parks and Recreation Committee Minutes 

L. Correspondence 

M. Adiournment 

Motion Carried 

Motion by Murchison, Seconded by Priest to adjourn the meeting at 8:22 P.M. 
Vote: Ayes- All Nays- None Motion Carried 

-
H'11NN~l'V"'1. lerk/Treasurer 

ed on December 19, 2016 
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November's Meeting of the Regular Board met on December 1, 2017, 7p. 

Meeting was called to order, all were present. 

Minutes were accepted as written. 

Treasurer's Report accepted as written. 

A motion was made to pay the bills by Birr, Oeater 2nd
, passed. 

Public Comment: John Brock and John Shula from the fire barn came and spoke regarding runs this month. The Rattin 

house had an issue with their gas line notes have been kept. They found some coats at $50 per coat with 17 or 18 coats 

being needed, a motion was made by Fetterley to purchase the coats for the Fire Dept., Birr 2~d, passed. They also 

passed out invites to the Fire Dept. Christmas Party. 

Zoning: Ralph Rattin asked for a RV Pole app, later this app was cancelled. Jim Maile, 1 Mile took out a pole barn app. 

Bob spoke of the Rathgeb property some time earlier he had asked for a land division, nothing ever came of it. The 

piece of land has been sold, Rathgeb to appty for land division. Bob received some copies of zoning apps from Big Prairie 

for special use (Bement's Kennels) it was decided that he will most likely modify our current app to suit. It was discussed 

that he should make sure with the State and the County that he has all of his licensing in order before we make any 

decisions regarding this venture. Terpening property it appears that the box structure has been moved, Bob to go take 

measurement to make sure that setbacks are satisfied. 

Planning: Next mee·ting in January. Michigan State Police were at the previous meeting to discuss with us the Medical 

MJ issue in Michigan. 

Clerk: We talked about the possibility of a recount of the election in Michigan. 

NB: NCEO Meeting December 7 at 7:30. 

Fetterley made a motion to approve a NSF fee to be billed to anyone who bounces a check in Goodwell, the fee was set 

at $30.00, Birr 2nd
, passed. New Plat books are needed new one's come out in 2017, we will see what the publish date 

is. 

A motion was made by Fetterley to appoint Steve Warmbein, Paul Fetterley and Laureen Deater as our Zoning Board of 

Appeals, Birr 2nd
, passed. 

A Memo from the Board of Public Works was received. Nestle-Gerber wants to go land fill free, to accomplish this an 

amendment to Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan needs to be approved. A motion was made by Mike 

Deater to approve the amendment that needs to be made to the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to 

haul solid waste to Wayne County, Paul Fetterley, 2nd
, passed. 

A party or gift for Barb was discussed, nothing decided. 

UFB: List of Hall Duties and Rental Fees, to be researched, and discussed at a future meeting. 

A motion to adjourn was made by Deater, Birr 2nd, passed. 

Next meeting December 28, 2016 at 7p. 



1242 FREMONT CITY COUNCIL 
r( MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING 

\/ T,JJHday, December 5, 2016- 7:00 PM 

Mayor James Rynberg calle~~gular meeting to order at 7:00 PM, and Councilmernber 
Carpenter gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag. 

Present at Roll Call: Mayor Rynberg and Councilmember' s Dick Conley, Jane Drake, Don 
Henry and Mike Carpenter. 

Staff Present: City Manager Todd Blake and City Clerk Vicci TerVeer 

Public Present: Mike Dennis and Bryan Kolk 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

Motion by Councilmember Henry seconded by Councilmember Drake to approve the meeting 
agenda; motion approved. 

Consent Action Item 

Motion by Councilmember Henry, seconded by Councilmembcr Carpenter to authorize and 
approve the following Consent Action item: 

• Minutes of the Regular City Council Session held November 21, 2016 
• Resolution R-16-17: Governmental Agencies Performance Agreement Regarding the City of 

Fremont's planned use ofMDOT Right-of-Ways during 2017 
• Adopt City Council meeting schedule for 2017 
• Authorize 2017 Annual Christmas Bonus for City Employees 
• Approve Fremont Chamber of Commerce' Annual Request for placement of street banners, road 

closures and use of Branstrom Park, Fremont Market Pavilion and Veteran's Memorial Park for 
the Harvest Festival and Christmas Stroll, as recommended by City staff 

Support Proposed Amendment to Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan 

Motion by Councilmember Drake, seconded by Councilmember Henry to support the proposed 
amendments to the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan to accommodate Gerber 
Products potential need to transport solid waste to Wayne County if necessary; motion approved. 

Accounts Payable & Payroll Remittance 12/02/16 Check Register Report for $68,264.74 

Motion by Councilmember Conley, seconded by Councilmember Drake to approve the 12/02/16 
Accounts Payable & Payroll Remittance Check Register Reports totaling $68,264.74; motion 
approved. 

Ordinance 0-16-02: Amend Chapter 11 "Licenses" of the Code of Ordinances 

Motion made by Councilmember Henry, seconded by Councilmember Drake to adopt Ordinance 
0-16-02 amending Chapter 11 "Licenses" of the City Code of Ordinances by changing the 
guidelines for transient merchants selling products within the City boundaries; motion approved 
by a roll call vote of: 

Yeas: Rynberg, Conley, Drake, Henry, Carpenter 
Nays: None 
Absent: None 

Approve Construction of Stone Patio & Walkway in Arboretum Park 

Mr. Jim Magee, grandson of William & Margaret C. Branstrom, and the Fremont Area 
Community Foundation have requested the City authorize a installation of a walk.way and a 
circular patio area on the north side of Arboretum Park, both made of fieldstone. Mr. Magee has 
also requested the patio area be dedicated to the memory of his grandmother Margaret Branstrom 
with special reference. 

Motion by Councilmember Henry, seconded by Councilmcmber Drake to authorize the project 
to be constructed and that it be dedicated as requested; motion approved. 

Reports & Communications 

City Manager Blake updated Council on his annual Goals and Objectives and reported the City 
hired part-time Fremont Police Officer Ricky Kumat to fill the vacant full-time officer position. 

The Following Communications were Transmitted for Council Information 

• FACF 2016: "Newaygo County Community Needs and Opportunities: A Conversation Opener" 
• Bob Jordan Retirement Celebration notice - FACF, December 1, 2016, 4:30 - 6:30 P.M. 
• Fremont Area Community Foundation Organizational Realignment 
• Fremont Fire Department Minutes - November 28, 2016 



Adjournment 

1243 
Fremont City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
December 5, 2016 

Motion by Councilmember Henry, seconded by Councilmember Conley to adjourn the meeting 
at 7:58 PM; motion approved. 

~ "'~4 J 7M.R.;,nberg, Mayor 

~); w i) . ~J'-JP o& 
1~ci L. Ter7e, City Clerk 
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TO: Sheridan Charter Township Board 

FROM: Maggie Kolk, Clerk 

DATE: December 20, 2016 

RE: Board Meeting Minutes 

I . Call to Order. 

The regular Board Meeting of the Sheridan Charter Township Board was held at the 
Township Hall and called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Supervisor Dougan. 
Present: Wolfsen, Watkins, Kolk, Russell , Dougan 
Absent: Oosterhouse, Makin 

2. Approval of Agenda. Add $535.90 for voucher for Kolk, Old Business e. Bike Lanes 
on 64

1h 
Street, and New Business h. Zoning Administrator's report. Watkins moved. 

Russell seconded. All ayes. 2 absent. Motion Carried. 
3. Approval of 11/15/16 minutes. 

Russell moved to approve the minutes as presented. Dougan seconded. All ayes. 2 
Absent. Motion Carried. 

4. Treasurer's sewer report. 
Russdl moved to approve th~ Treasurer's sewer report subject to audit. Watkins 
seconded. 

5. Clerk and Treasurer's report. 

Russell moved to approve the Clerk and Treasurer's report subject to audit. Wolfsen 
seconded. 
ROLL CALL 

Ayes - Russell, Wolfsen, Dougan, Kolk, Watkins 
Nays-None 
Absent - Oosterhouse, Makin 
MOTION CARRlED 

6. Expense Voucher's. Watkins moved to approve the voucher for Uy! totaling $100 
for education allowance, Lance totaling $192.36 for education allowance and 
supplies for playground repair, Gill totaling $182.57 for cleaning supplies. 
Oosterhouse totaling $101.79 for computer virus protection, Kolk totaling $535.90 
for supplies and election mileage. Dougan seconded. 

ROLL CALL 
Ayes - Wolfsen, Russell, Kolk, Watkins, Dougan 
Nays- None 
Absent - Oosterhouse, Makin 
MOTION CARRIED 

7. Public Comment 
a. None 

8. Old Business 

a. Refuge Park update - We may potentially offer community service hours for 
cleanup at the park. 



9. 

b. Recreation Authority update - There were some roof issues which were taken 
care of. There is some other repairs that need to be done at this time. The Rec 
Center is now running a traveling basketball team. The pool heater has been fixed 
and it is at 82 degrees. Church volleyball is back. The School is not using the 
Recreation Center except for the pool. 

c. Aquatic Nuisance Special Assessment update- Committee met a couple of weeks 
ago. Discussed the proposals from PLM and detennined that the cost cannot 
exceed $46,000. The committee is going to approach Mr. Wyn at the High 
School and see if his class or some of his students would be willing to do the 
water quality testing. 

d. 425 Agreement - There has been a request for referendum from proper1y owners 
that are within the amendment area. This voids the last Resolution that was 
passed in November. Wolfsen moved to approve the Resolution 16-05 to rescind 
the resolution 16-04 that approved the 425 amendment in November 15, 2016. 
Russell seconded. 

e. 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 
e. 

ROLL CALL 
Ayes - Kolk, Watkins, Dougan, Wolfsen, Russell 
Nays-None 
Absent - Oosterhouse, Makin 
MOTION CARRIED 

Bike Lanes on 64111 St. - The Bike Path Committee will give us $25,000 toward 
our cost to do the bike lanes on 641h. 

New Business 

Board of Review appointments - Russell moved. Dougan seconded. All ayes. 2 
Absent, Motion Carried. 
Joint Zoning Board of Appeals appointments (Lisa Deur) Dougan moved. 
Russell Seconded. All ayes. 2 Absent, Motion Carried. 
Joint Planning Commission appointments (Jeff Wharton) Russell moved. 
Dougan seconded. All ayes. 2 Absent, Motion Carried. 
Proposed budget for 2017 - for infonnation 
Proposed sewer budget for 2017 - Wolfsen moved to approve the 2017 sewer 
budget. Russell seconded. 
ROLL CALL 

Ayes Watkins, Wolfsen, Russell, Dougan, Kolk 
Nays - None 
Absent - Oosterhouse, Makin 
MOTION CARRIED 

f. Solid Waste Planning amendment approval - Watkins moved and Russell 
seconded. All ayes. 2 absent. Motion Carried. 

g. Schedule of meetings for 2017 for information. 
h. Zoning Administrator's report - reviewed. 

10. Public Comment 
11. Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m. 
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City Commission Minutes April 17, 2017 

Grant City Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 17, 2017 

The special meeting of the Grant City Commission was held on Monday, April 17, 2017, at the City of Grant Offices. 

I. Call to Order: Mayor Julie Hallman called the meeting to order at 7:00p.m. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

3. Roll C"/1: 
PRESENT: Mayor Julie Hallman, Matt Bouwkamp, Harold Portell, Cheryl Weeks, 
Kevin Smith, and Gabe Sanchez 
ABSENT: 
EXCUSED: Anne Pickard 
Others Present: Ryan Rudzis - City Manager, Sherry Powell - Assistant City Manager/Clerk, Brad Wade -
Chief of Police, Shawn Botsford - DPW Supervisor, Janet Botsford - Grant Water Dept/DPW, Colleen Lynema, 
and Lisa Lightfoot_of the River Country Chamber of Commerce. 

4. Approval of the Agenda 
Motion made by Bouwkamp, second by Smith to approve the agenda. 
Motion carried unanimously 

5. Public Comment 
None 

6. Consent Agenda Items 
Motion made by Portell, second by Weeks to approve the consent agenda. 
Motion carried unanimously 

7. Unfinished Business 
None 

8. New Business 
a. Resolution l 7-04: Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan Amendment 
Rudzis stated this is so Nestle Gerber can haul to a different county. 
Motion made by Portell, second by Smith to approve the resolution. 
Motion carried unanimously 

b. Motion Item #1: Approval of new contract with IAI 
Hallman stated this is who we have now. 
Motion made by Weeks, second by Portell to approve the motion. 
Motion carried unanimously 

c. Motion Item #2: Increase of employees contribution to health insurance plan premium: 
Motion made by Bouwkamp, second by Portell to approve the increase. 
Motion carried unanimously 

d. River Country Chamber : Road Closure Discussion: 
Lightfoot distributed copies of the letter requesting road closures for both Chamber events. The plan is to close 
M-37 for one hour for the Harvest Moon Festival and for the entire Christmas event. A Chamber update was 
provided also. The Chamber currently has 268 members. They are starting to work on lnstagram. The Home & 
Garden Show is this Saturday. 
Weeks asked if we have an a lternate route. 
Wade clarified the alternate route they had discussed. He has concerns using Lake Street. 
Consensus made by the Commission to move forward with the request to MOOT. 

The meeting will be held in the new City Hall located at 280 South Maple Street 
PO llox 435, Grant Ml 49327 (231) 834-7904 FAX: (231) 834-5984 
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City Commission Minutes April 17, 2017 

9. Other Business 
None 

IO. Information Items 
Hallman thanked Chief Wade for his efforts and representing the City well. 
Wade stated his recent conference was an excellent week of education. The explained the incident Mayor 

11. 

Hallman was referring to had started out as a very difficult situation for a family. He was fortunate to hel~it 
around with a positive outcome. 

Public Comments /'7 , 
None V 

12. Executive Session to discuss annual evaluation )(_ ~ 
Motion made by Portell, second by Bouwkamp to go into Executive Session to discu~s t ~ ~ager's 
Evaluation. 
Roll Call: Mayor Julie Hallman-Yes, Matt Bouwkamp-Yes, Harold Portell-Y~s, e ks-Yes, Kevin 
Smith-Yes, and Gabe Sanchez-Yes 
Motion carried unanimously at 7:14pm. • 

Regular Session resumed at 7:54pm. ~ 
Motion made by Portell, second by Bouwkamp to raise the City M er s s y $4,000 starting next fiscal 
year. 
Motion carried unanimously 

13. Adjournment 
Motion made by Weeks, second by Smith to adjourn the meeti 
Motion carried unanimously 

Mayor Julie Hallman 

The meeting will be held in the new City Hall located at 280 South Maple Street 
PO Box 435. Grant Ml 49327 (231) 434.7904 fAX: (231) 834,5'84 
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Croton Township 

Board Meeting 

December 12, 2016 

Meeting called to order: 7:00 pm 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Supervisor Morgan Heinzman. 

P. 002 

Members Present: Supervisor Morgan Heinzman, Clerk Debbra Wright, Treasurer Kirn 
Edwards, Trustee's Ralph Green, Bill Nottlelmann. 
Motion Heinzman, 2nd by Nottelmann, approval of consent agenda, minutes of 
November 14, 2016 board meeting and bills as presented by the Clerk. All in favor 
motion passed. Motion by Green 2nd Nottelmann, additions to Agenda, Board 
discussion on past and future projects. Vehicle for the Fire Department. Waste to 
Wayne County. All in favor, motion passed. Motion by Green, 2nd by Heinzman to 
approve Treasurer's report as presented by the Treasurer. All in favor, motion passed. 
Motion by Green, 2nd by Edwards to approve Budget Amendment Activity Report as 
presented by the Supervisor. Roll call vote, Ayes, Wright, Nottelmann, Heinzman, 
Edwards, Green. 
Nays, none. Absent/Abstain, none. 
Department/Community Reports 
Campground: Charles Bonk, main bathroom/office is coming along well. Trusses were 
just delivered. Board discusses bids for repairing the road through the campground. 
Supervisor Heinzman will meet with Cozy Point Association to look over the bids as 
well, before deciding on company. Project to complete in June 2017. 
Transfer Station: John Erard, slowing down for the winter. 
Zoning Department: Zoning Admin. Morgan Heinzman, 5 zoning permits for the month. 
And 12 new home permits for the year 2016. Sent out 4 letters to residence. All have 
complied and are working to improve their properties. 
Fire Department: Chief Billy Westgate, gives report, for the month of November 7 
medical runs, 1 mutual aid to Big Prairie total of 8 runs. 
Road Projects: Trustee Ralph Green, 3 roads to date to look at, 1 being a private road. 
Will present road projects at the January 09, meeting. 
Planning Commission: Supervisor Heinzman, Kim Edwards will be replacing Lonny Hall 
on the Planning Commission. Kim will be calling other members of the PC to catch up 
on their projects. 
Croton Township Library: No Report 
Appointments: We are looking for a representative from Bill's Lake to join the PC. Bill 
Nottelmann will be replacing Ralph Green on the Zoning Board of Appeals. The board is 
looking for 1 regular and 2 alternatives for the ZBA. Also 2 Board of Review members. If 
anyone is interested in serving on a board please call the Croton Township Office at 
231 652-4301 . Motion by Wright, 2nd by Heinzman to approve Resolution 2016-023, 
Resolution to Adopt the Newaygo Community Recreation Authority's (NCRA) 
Revised/Updated Recreation Plan. All in favor, motion passed. Motion to commit to 
budget, $12,000.00 for the 2017 Summer Recreation Program. Roll call vote, Ayes: 
Notte!mann, Edwards, Green, Heinzman, Wright. Nays: None. Absent/Abstain: None. 
Motion by Heinzman, 2nd Green for the Croton Township Fire Department Medical First 
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Responders to no long respond to Priority 2 & 3 runs. So, it be recorded as of January 
01, 2017, Croton Township Fire Department will only respond to Priority 1 calls. All in 
favor, motion passed. Croton Township was the last of Newaygo County to respond to 
priority 2 & 3 calls. Motion by Heinzman 2nd by Edwards to approve budget 
amendments as presented by the Supervisor. Ayes: Wright, Edwards, Green, 
Nottelmann, Heinzman. Nays: None. Absent/Abstain: None. Motion by Heinzman, 2nd 

by Green not to exceed $50,000.00 to purchase and equip, including AEO, a new 
smaller vehicle for Croton Township Fire Department to do strictly Medical runs. Roll 
call vote, Ayes: Wright, Green, Nottelmann, Edwards, Heinzman. Nays: None. 
Absent/Abstain: None. Motion by Green, 2nd by Heinzman to approve Resolution 2016-
024 to amend the Newaygo County Solid Waste Management Plan, to allow export to 
Wayne County. All in favor, motion passed. Supervisor Heinzman asks the board 
members to bring to the table for the January, 2017 meeting any concerns pertaining to 
past projects .and any new ideas for future projects, they would like to see done. 
Meeting Adjourned: 8:15 pm. 
Respectfully Recorded and Submitted by, 
Debbra Wright, Croton Township Clerk 



BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 
306 S. NORTH STREET 
P.O. BOX 885 
WHITE CLOUD, Ml 49349 
PHONE 231.689. 7214 
FAX: 231.689.7266 

DA TE: November 28, 2016 

TO: Township Officials/ Clerks of Municipalities 

FROM: Dale E. Twing 
Chairman, Board of Public Works 

RE: Solid Waste Planning-final phase 

MEMO: 

As we've previously mentioned, Nestle-Gerber is attempting to go landfill free, to do so they need to 
haul some of their waste to Wayne County. In Wayne County they have a waste to energy incinerator. 
(Kent County's incinerator is at capacity) In order to legally haul to Wayne County we have to amend 
the Newaygo County Solid Waste management Plan, to allow export to Wayne County. 

As part of the DEQ process we need at least 67% of the local municipalities to formally approve of the 
amendment. We have conducted our required 90 day public review and held a Public Hearing. (At 
which no residents showed up to voice any comments or concerns) 

If your board/council could please pass the following motion (hopefully before the end of 2016) it 
would be greatly appreciated and allow us to submit the plan amendment to the DEQ: 

Motion by k 'o , seconded ~,~LIi. to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste 
Management Plan to allow expori o~aste to Wayne County. 

A copy of the minutes showing this motion was passed would also be greatly appreciated. 
Email to dalet@co.newaygo.mi.us 
Fax to 231-689-7266 
Mail to :BPW 306 S. North St. White Cloud, MI 49349 

If you have any questions with regard to this matter, please feel free to contact our office. 

**Please note the 689-7225 BPW phone is inactive, please call: 689-7214 



GARFIELD TOWNSHIP 

Regular Board Meeting December 13, 2016 
DRAFT ONLY-approved January 10, 2017 

The meeting was called to order by George Suchy at 7:00pm 

Pledge led by: George 
Members present were: George Suchy, Amy Ekkel, Kristin Melvin, Rob Kinninbugh, Jill Vandenberg 

Public present: Erik Larsen, Ron Huismann, Terry Williams, Pat Sullivan, Malvin Koolman, Angie Chase, 
Miriam Strohpaul, Ray Troyer, Terry Vandenberg, Fritz Carlson, Marge Redder, Jim Vile, Michael Wallace, 
Marilyn Melvin, Nancy Kinnibugh, Ray Brenner, Daniel Stacey, Clifford Hole, La net Pressler, 

Rob made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 8, 2016 meeting. Amy seconded. Motion 
carried. 

Public Comments: Sheriff's office gave an update on things happening in township area-generalization 
of crimes in the area. 

OLD BUSINESS: 
*Received fire bill on Thursday should have been October. Bill has been received and will be paid. 
Kristin is going to contact them regarding receiving a more detailed incident report {people who show 
up, apparatus on seen, what was done, etc ... ) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
"'Township Board Members, Committee and Commission members have all been swore in. List is 
attached of all members that were present. Bold names were not present. 
*ZBA Member addition - George Heartwell. George Suchy made a motion to appoint George Heartwell 
to the ZBA. Rob seconded. Motion carried. Kristin will contact to set up time to be sworn in. 
*Rob made a motion to approve the resolution #16-12-13. Jill seconded. Motion carried. 
*Rob made a motion to approve the Solid Waste Planning-Final Phase for Nestle Gerber. Amy seconded. 
Motion carried. 
* January Special Meetings. January 3· 2017 at 7pm personal, January 19, 2017 Recreation Ideas. Kristin 
will get posted. 

Committee Reports: 
Roads: Discussion on roads and possible projects 
Lake: 
Cemetery: 
COLA: Going well 
Library: Library is going well, still some controversy with a couple of members. Readership & Programs 
are up as well as participation. Re-couping money from different services. Very happy with the director 
and changes that are happening. 
NCRA: Working on master plan, future projects -Baseball field at Garfield or additional fields since 
league is growing and expanding. 

Public Comments: Pat Sullivan-question regarding fire board 



Rob made a motion to pay the bills as presented for payment. Amy seconded. Motion carried. 

Amy made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Rob seconded, motion carried. 

Kristin Melvin 
Clerk, Garfield Township 

Township Board Members 

George Suchy-Supervisor 
Kristin Melvin- Clerk 
Jill Vandenberg-Treasurer 
Rob Kinninbugh-Trustee 
Amy Ekkel-Trustee 

Planning Commission 

Criag Schilhaneck -Chairman 

Miriam Strohpaul 

Marilyn Melvin 

Harry Stroven 

Gabrielle Blackwell 

Rob Kinninbugh 

Ron Huismann 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Harry Stroven - Chairman 

Fritz Carlson 

Nancy Kinninbugh 

Michael Wallace 

George Heartwell 

Cemetery Committee 

Pat Sullivan-Chairperson 

Pat Topij 

Thor Vandenberg 

Jim Vile 

Daniel Stacey 

Library Committee 

Marge Redder 

Angie Chase 

Board of Review 

Terry Vandenberg 

Cliff Hole 

Ray Brenner 

Road Committee 

Gabrielle Blackwell-Chairperson 



Jim Vile 

Pat Sullivan 

Robert Kinninbugh 

Terry Williams 

Craig Schilhaneck 

Zoning Admininstration 

George Suchy-Zoning Admin 

Erik Larsen 

Deputy's 

Ray Troyer- Treasurer 

Marilyn Melvin-Clerk 

NCRA 

Nancy Kinnibugh 

Erik Larsen 



GARFIELD TOWNSHIP 
Regular Board Meeting December 13, 2016 

DRAFT ONLY 

The meeting was called to order by George Suchy at 7:00pm 

Pledge led by: George 
Members present were: George Suchy, Amy Ekkel, Kristin Melvin, Rob Kinninbugh, Jill Vandenberg 

Public present: Erik Larsen, Ron Huismann, Terry Williams, Pat Sullivan, Malvin Kooiman, Angie Chase, 
Miriam Strohpaul, Ray Troyer, Terry Vandenberg, Fritz Carlson, Marge Redder, Jim Vile, Michael Wallace, 
Marilyn Melvin, Nancy Kinnibugh, Ray Brenner, Daniel Stacey, Clifford Hole, Lanet Pressler, 

Ron made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 8, 2016 meeting. Amy seconded. Motion 
carried . 

Public Comments: Sheriff's office gave an update on things happening in township area-generalization 
of crimes in the area. 

OLD BUSINESS: 
*Received fire bill on Thursday should have been October. Bill has been received and will be paid. 
Kristin is going to contact them regarding receiving a more detailed incident report (people who show 
up, apparatus on seen, what was done, etc ... ) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
*Township Board Members, Committee and Commission members have all been swore in. List is 
attached of all members that were present. Bold names were not present. 
*ZBA Member addition - George Heartwell. George Suchy made a motion to appoint George Heartwell 
to the ZBA. Rob seconded. Motion carried. Kristin will contact to set up time to be sworn in. 
*Rob made a motion to approve the resolution #16-12-13. Jill seconded. Motion carried. 
*Rob made a motion to approve the Solid Waste Planning-Final Phase for Nestle Gerber. Amy seconded. 
Motion carried. 
* January Special Meetings. January 3· 2017 at 7pm personal, January 19, 2017 Recreation Ideas. Kristin 
will get posted. 

Committee Reports: 
Roads: Discussion on roads and possible projects 
Lake: 
Cemetery: 
COLA: Going well 
library: Library is going well, still some controversy with a couple of members. Readership & Programs 
are up as well as participation. Re-couping money from different services. Very happy with the director 
and changes that are happening. 
NCRA: Working on master plan, future projects - Baseball field at Garfield or additional fields since 
league is growing and expanding. 

Public Comments: Pat Sullivan-question regarding fire board 



Rob made a motion to pay the bills as presented for payment. Amy seconded. Motion carried. 

Amy made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Rob seconded, motion carried. 

Kristin Melvin 
Clerk, Garfield Township 

Township Board Members 
George Suchy-Supervisor 
Kristin Melvin- Clerk 
Jill Vandenberg - Treasurer 
Rob Kinninbugh-Trustee 
Amy Ekkel-Trustee 

Planning Commission 

Criag Schilhaneck -Chairman 

Miriam Strohpaul 

Marilyn Melvin 

Harry Stroven 

Gabrielle Blackwell 

Rob Kinninbugh 

Ron Huismann 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Harry Stroven - Chairman 

Fritz Carlson 

Nancy Kinninbugh 

Michael Wallace 

George Heartwell 

Cemetery Committee 

Pat Sullivan-Chairperson 

Pat Topij 

Thor Vandenberg 

Jim Vile 

Daniel Stacey 

Library Committee 

Marge Redder 

Angie Chase 

Board of Review 

Terry Vandenberg 

Cliff Hole 

Ray Brenner 

Road Committee 

Gabrielle Blackwell-Chairperson 



Jim Vile 

Pat Sullivan 

Robert Kinninbugh 

Terry Williams 

Craig Schilhaneck 

Zoning Admininstration 

George Suchy -Zoning Ad min 

Erik Larsen 

Deputy's 
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Nancy Kinnibugh 

Erik Larsen 



BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 
306 S. NORTH STREET 
P.O.BOX885 
WHITE CLOUD, Ml 49349 
PHONE 231.689.7214 
FAX: 231.689.7266 

DATE: November 28, 2016 

TO: Township Officials/ Clerks of Municipalities 

FROM: Dale E. Twing 
Chairman, Board of Public Worlcs 

RE: Solid Waste Planning-final phase 

MEMO: 

As we've previously mentioned, Nestle-Gerber is attempting to go landfill free, to do so they need to 
haul some of their waste to Wayne County. In Wayne County they have a waste to energy incinerator. 
(Kent County's incinerator is at capacity) In order to legally haul to Wayne County we have to amend 
the Newaygo County Solid Waste management Plan, to allow export to Wayne County. 

As part of the DEQ process we need at least 67% of the local municipalities to formally approve of the 
amendment. We have conducted our required 90 day public review and held a Public Hearing. (At 
which no residents showed up to voice any comments or concerns) 

If your board/council could please pass the folloV\,ing motion (hopefully before the end of 2016) it 
would be greatly appreciated and allow us to submit the plan amendment to the DEQ: 

Motion by ~ D . seconded b~JJ\ to approve amending to the Newaygo County Solid Waste 
Management Plan to allow expoif o~aste to Wayne County. 

A copy of the mmutes showing this motion was passe~ would also be greatly appreciated. 
Email to dalet@co.newaygo.mi.us 
Fax to 231-689-7266 
Mail to :BPW 306 S. North St. White Cloud, :MI 49349 

If you have any questions with regard to this matter, please feel free to contact our office. 

* *Please note the 689-7225 BPW phone is inactive, please call: 689-7214 



GARFIELD TOWNSHIP 

Regular Board Meeting December 13, 2016 
DRAFT ONLY-approved January 10, 2017 

The meeting was called to order by George Suchy at 7:00pm 

Pledge led by: George 
Members present were: George Suchy, Amy Ekkel, Kristin Melvin, Rob Kinninbugh, Jill Vandenberg 

Public present: Erik Larsen, Ron Huismann, Terry Williams, Pat Sullivan, Malvin Kooiman, Angie Chase, 
Miriam Strohpaul, Ray Troyer, Terry Vandenberg, Fritz Carlson, Marge Redder, Jim Vile, Michael Wallace, 
Marilyn Melvin, Nancy Kinnibugh, Ray Brenner, Daniel Stacey, Clifford Hole, lanet Pressler, 

Rob made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 8, 2016 meeting. Amy seconded. Motion 
carried. 

Public Comments: Sheriff's office gave an update on things happening in township area-generalization 
of crimes in the area. 

OLD BUSINESS: 
•Received fire bill on Thursday should have been October. Bill has been received and will be paid. 
Kristin is going to contact them regarding receiving a more detailed incident report (people who show 
up, apparatus on seen, what was done, etc ... ) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
"'Township Board Members, Committee and Commission members have all been swore in. List is 
attached of all members that were present. Bold names were not present. 
•zBA Member addition - George Heartwell. George Suchy made a motion to appoint George Heartwell 
to the ZBA. Rob seconded. Motion carried. Kristin will contact to set up time to be sworn in. 
•Rob made a motion to approve the resolution #16-12-13. Jill seconded. Motion carried. 
•Rob made a motion to approve the Solid Waste Planning-Final Phase for Nestle Gerber. Amy seconded. 
Motion carried. 
• January Special Meetings.January 3· 2017 at 7pm personal, January 19, 2017 Recreation Ideas. Kristin 
will get posted. 

Committee Reports: 
Roads: Discussion on roads and possible projects 
Lake: 
Cemetery: 
COLA: Going well 

Library: library is going well, still some controversy with a couple of members. Readership & Programs 
are up as well as participation. Re-couping money from different services. Very happy with the director 
and changes that are happening. 
NCRA: Working on master plan, future projects -Baseball field at Garfield or additional fields since 
league is growing and expanding. 

Public Comments: Pat Sullivan-question regarding fire board 



Rob made a motion to pay the bills as presented for payment. Amy seconded. Motion carried. 

Amy made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Rob seconded, motion carried. 

Kristin Melvin 
Clerk, Garfield Township 

Township Board Members 
George Suchy-Supervisor 
Kristin Melvin- Clerk 
Jill Vandenberg - Treasurer 
Rob Kinninbugh-Trustee 
Amy Ekkel-Trustee 
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Criag Schilhaneck -Chairman 

Miriam Strohpaul 

Marilyn Melvin 
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Zoning Board of Appeals 
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Jim Vile 

Pat Sullivan 
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Terry Williams 

Craig Schilhaneck 

Zoning Admininstration 
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Erik Larsen 

Deputy's 

Ray Troyer- Treasurer 
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NCRA 

Nancy Kinnibugh 

Erik Larsen 



GARFIELD TOWNSHIP 
Regular Board Meeting December 13, 2016 

DRAFT ONLY 

The meeting was called to order by George Suchy at 7:00pm 

Pledge led by: George 
Members present were: George Suchy, Amy Ekkel, Kristin Melvin, Rob Kinninbugh, Jill Vandenberg 
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Miriam Strohpaul, Ray Troyer, Terry Vandenberg, Fritz Carlson, Marge Redder, Jim Vile, Michael Wallace, 
Marilyn Melvin, Nancy Kinnibugh, Ray Brenner, Daniel Stacey, Clifford Hole, Lanet Pressler, 

Ron made a motion to approve the minutes of the November 8, 2016 meeting. Amy seconded. Motion 
carried. 

Public Comments: Sheriffs office gave an update on things happening in township area-generalization 
of crimes in the area. 

OLD BUSINESS: 
"'Received fire bill on Thursday should have been October. Bill has been received and will be paid. 
Kristin is going to contact them regarding receiving a more detailed incident report (people who show 
up, apparatus on seen, what was done, etc ... ) 
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*Township Board Members, Committee and Commission members have all been swore in. List is 
attached of all members that were present. Bold names were not present. 
"'ZBA Member addition - George Heartwell. George Suchy made a motion to appoint George Heartwell 
to the ZBA. Rob seconded. Motion carried. Kristin will contact to set up time to be sworn in. 
*Rob made a motion to approve the resolution #16-12-13. Jill seconded. Motion carried. 
"'Rob made a motion to approve the Solid Waste Planning-Final Phase for Nestle Gerber. Amy seconded. 
Motion carried. 
* January Special Meetings. January 3, 2017 at 7pm personal, January 19, 2017 Recreation Ideas. Kristin 
will get posted. 

Committee Reports: 
Roads: Discussion on roads and possible projects 
Lake: 
Cemetery: 
COLA: Going well 

Library: Library is going well, still some controversy with a couple of members. Readership & Programs 
are up as well as participation. Re-couping money from different services. Very happy with the director 
and changes that are happening. 
NCRA: Working on master plan, future projects -Baseball field at Garfield or additional fields since 
league is growing and expanding. 

Public Comments: Pat Sullivan-question regarding fire board 



Rob made a motion to pay the bills as presented for payment. Amy seconded. Motion carried . 

Amy made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Rob seconded, motion carried. 
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MERRILL TOWNSI-IIP 
1585 West 11 Mile Road, Bitcly, Michigan 49309 
Telephone 231.745.766 I FAX 231. 745.4105 

www.merril!township.com 
info@merri I !township.com 

Barry J. Baldwin, Supervisor Janet Osmolinski, Clerk Cathy Stroop, Treasurer 
Frank A. Jackson, Trustee Denise Suttles, Trustee 
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FROM: 231.745.4105 
Janet Osmolinski 
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BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 
aoa' s. NORTH STREET 
r~o.1:1oxons 
WHll'E CLOUD, Ml 40340 
PHONE 231.000.7214 
FAX: 231,0ll0.7206 

DATil: November 2R, 2016 

TO: Township Officials/ Clerk~ ctf M\l11ii1ip111iliell 

PROM: Dalo H. Twinr, 
Chainnan, Bolll'.d of Public Worku 

RR: Solid \Vasto Plnruliug0 line.l pbnse 

MEMO: 

As we've 11roviousty mentioned, Nc.-.,tlc-(krh1\l'. i., nttr.mpti11g to go lru:idJ:Ul free, to do so thoy uccd to 
haul some oftbolr waste to Wuyno County. In Wnyn~ Cc,unty \hoy have II w11sto'lo energy inciuerntol', 
(Kont County's incincr11tor 111 nt capAc-.ity) 'JJ1 orclc.r to legally boul IL' Wnync County wc'hnvc: to nu1eml 
the Newn.ygo County Solid Waste mnungemcnt l'lnn, to nllow export to Wnync Couuty. 

As p11rt oftbc DEQ J>rocuss we need nt least 6'/% oftbo lucalu111uillipnlilics lo foUJmlly approve of tho 
umondmm1t. We hrive: couduc:t<id our required 90 dny J>nhlic review nnd hold n Public Heming. (At 
which no residents showed u1> to voice !Illy co1urm:uts or co.nuimu;) 

ff your bonrd/council could 1,lce.sc pnso tho following motion (hopofully buforc lhe ond of 2016) it 
would bu ureuUy upprccintcd and allow us to submit tho plnn nnmndnir.ut. to tbo DEQ: .~ ;-r r) ffi LJ. ,..-,. 
Motion by~ U. I) (?' Rcconclcd l'!J L--Q . to npprc>(,c nmondinB to the Nownyr,o Co1111ty Solid W11~lc 
Mannr,cmcnt Plrm to allow oxport of 1101i<i ,\mstc to Wnyne County. 

A. copy of tho mfoutos sbowl11g this mollon was pnssc\l wonld el~o be l!,l'ently 11ppreciutcd. 
E01Qi1 to s)olct(g)co.now11_y.&l!.Jlli,1,1~ 
Fax to 231-1589-7266 
Mui! to :BPW 306 S. NorU1 St. White Cloud, MI ~9349 

Jfyou bavu uny quct1tlons with 1-e11,llld to lhfa molter, pk.MO fool fi~o to r.outAcl our ofik.e .. 

.... I'lellRC nolo tho 689-7225 nrw phone i~ innctive, plcuc call: 6U9-'/il4 



Agenda 

MERRILL TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MINUTES 

Merrill Township Community Complex 

1585 West 11 Mile Rd. 

Bitely, Ml. 49309 

April 17, 2017 

1. Call to order - Barry Baldwin called meeting to order at 7:00 pm 

2. Pledge to flag - Frank Jackson led Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Prayer - Barry Baldwin offered opening prayer 

4. Roll Call - Board members present - Supervisor Barry Baldwin, Clerk Janet Osmolinski, Treasurer 

Cathy Stroop, Trustee Frank Jackson. Trustee Denise Suttles absent . 

. 5. Approval of meeting agenda - Frank Jackson made motion to accept agenda as written. Cathy Stroop 

seconded. Ayes all. Motion carried. 

6. Approval of consent agenda - Frank Jackson made motion to approve Consent Agenda, Cathy Stroop 

seconded. All Ayes. Motion carried. 

7. Baldwin School -School Board President, Joe Brooks, gave handout on upcoming bond proposal. 

Encouraged everyone to come out and vote. Explained bond proposal and took questions. 

8. Lilly Township fire report -Treasurer, Cathy Stroop read March fire report 

9. Zoning Administrator's Report- Barry Baldwin read report. Copy filed . 

10. Supervisor's Report - Barry Baldwin reported - Two lots next to beach property are for sell. He 

checked into purchase price to see if something the Township might consider. Property too 

expensive. The property on the corner of M37 and 11 Mile Rd ., is being cleaned up looks good. 

Barry also had two new bids on Grant St., These bids were tabled to see if they include culverts. 

Barry will meet with Equalization Dept. later this month. Need fertilizer for cemetery. Frank 

made motion to allow Barry to purchase fertilizer up to $500. Janet Osmolinski seconded. All 

Ayes. Motion carried. Barry also checked with Lilly Fired Dept for the cost of first responders to 

service Merrill Township . So far no response. 

11 Clerk's Report - Newsletter needs to be approved, see attached. No one had anything to contribute . 

Everything else is going better learning lots. Election May 2, 2017 

12. Treasurer's Report - Report attached nothing more to add. 

13. Planning Commission report - No Report 

1 



14. Public Comment - Much was discussed on what Zoning Administrator is doing. Lots of blight and 

eyesores in Township, is this being addressed? Judy Morrison gave board a letter with 

suggestions on how to handle problem. 

Vis. Correspondence, Board action required - From Dale Twing, Drain Commission. Need approvalto 
/7[\ - · amend waste plan to include Wayne County. Nestle-Gerber is working toward being landfill 

free, they need to haul some waste to Wayne County. Janet Osmolinski made motion to comply 

with request from Drain Commission. Cathy Stroop seconded. All Ayes. Motion carried. 

16. Unfinished Business -

a. Purchase of Common Ground - Denise Suttles asked Janet Osmolinski to read text she 

received from Deb Jones on Common Ground. See text attached. Copy filed. 

b. No Parking Signs- Barry has not yet purchased but he will get them bought and installed. 

c. Newsletter - Per Janet Osmolinski newsletter attached need approval before taking it to 
printer. Jan Osmolinski made a motion to take newsletter with one correction to printer, have 

newsletter sent out with summer tax bill. Need to be printer and to County before May 2, 2017. 
Frank Jackson seconded. All Ayes, except Cathy Stroop nay. Motion carried. If cannot be 

printed and back to County by May 2, 2017 then will send newsletter with tax receipts. 

17. New Business 

a. Janitor/Maintenance Person - Frank Jackson would like the board to look into hiring a 

Janitor/maintenance Person. Current Janitor gave board a list of items that need to be repaired, 

replaced, or just taken care of. Eliminate the Janitor position and create a job description for 

Janitor/Maintenance Person. Tabled until a job description can be located for the current 
position, and if necessary a new job description written. 

B. Blight/Park- Frank Jackson would like to see the blight taken care of before money is spent 

on the park. After discussion Cathy Stroop made a motion to get bids on two properties that are 

in dangerous shape, Rev., Martins Church and property located on Woodland Lake Dr. Frank 

Jackson seconded. All Ayes. Motion carried. 

c. Hall Rental for NWTF - Barry asked for non-profit pricing for hall rental as this is a non-profit 

organization. Frank Jackson m;ide a motion to rent the hall at non-profit pricing. cathy Stroop 
seconded. All Ayes. Motion carried . 

d. Lawn Care Bids- Barry reported he received one bid for land care from Dale Rivait, DAR' s 
Snow & Mow, LLC. This is the same company we used last year. Frank Jackson made motion to 
accept bid. Cathy Stroop seconded. All Ayes. Motion carried. 

E. Using Park to Sell Food during Blessings of the Bikes - Janet Osmolinski advised she received 

a call that a person has a food wagon and wanted to use Common Ground Park to sell food. Per 

Frank Jackson & Barry Baldwin this is not allowed unless a non-profit organization. Janet will 

contact the party and tell them not allowed. 
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" . 
F. It was brought up by person's in the audience that they wanted Olie Powers thanked for the 

great job he is doing at the Transfer Station. It was also noted Gordon Elzinga does a good job 

cleaning. 

18. Adjourned - Barry Baldwin adjourned meeting at 9:00pm 
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